
 
Monday, September 13, 2021 AGENDA Page 1 

 
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA & RULES COMMITTEE 

SPECIAL MEETING 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 13, 2021 
2:30 P.M. 

Committee Members:  
Mayor Jesse Arreguin, Councilmembers Sophie Hahn and Susan Wengraf 

Alternate: Councilmember Lori Droste 
 

PUBLIC ADVISORY:  THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE  
 
Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 
2020, this meeting of the City Council Agenda & Rules Committee will be conducted exclusively 
through teleconference and Zoom videoconference.  Please be advised that pursuant to the 
Executive Order, and to ensure the health and safety of the public by limiting human contact that 
could spread the COVID-19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting location available.   
 
To access the meeting remotely using the internet: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or 
Android device: Use URL https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85429927302. If you do not wish for your 
name to appear on the screen, then use the drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename 
yourself to be anonymous. To request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon on the screen. 
 
To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and Enter Meeting ID:  
854 2992 7302. If you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, press 
*9 and wait to be recognized by the Chair.  
 
Written communications submitted by mail or e-mail to the Agenda & Rules Committee by 5:00 
p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting will be distributed to the members of the Committee 
in advance of the meeting and retained as part of the official record.  City offices are currently 
closed and cannot accept written communications in person. 
 

 

  

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85429927302


 
Monday, September 13, 2021 AGENDA Page 2 

AGENDA 
 

Roll Call 

Public Comment 
 
Review of Agendas 

1. Approval of Minutes: August 30, 2021 

2. Review and Approve Draft Agenda: 
a. 9/28/21 – 6:00 p.m. Regular City Council Meeting 

3. Selection of Item for the Berkeley Considers Online Engagement Portal 

4. Adjournments In Memory 
 
Scheduling 

5. Council Worksessions Schedule 

6. Council Referrals to Agenda Committee for Scheduling 

7. Land Use Calendar 
 
Referred Items for Review 
 

8. Discussion Regarding Impact of COVID-19 (novel coronavirus) on Meetings 
of Legislative Bodies  

 
9. 

 
Preliminary Analysis of Return to In-Person Meetings of City Legislative 
Bodies 

 
Unscheduled Items 
 

10. Strengthening and Supporting City Commissions: Guidance on the 
Development of Legislative Proposals 

 
Items for Future Agendas 

• Discussion of items to be added to future agendas 
 
Adjournment – Next Meeting Monday, September 27, 2021 

 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~  

2



 

 
Monday, September 13, 2021 AGENDA Page 3 

Additional items may be added to the draft agenda per Council Rules of 
Procedure. 
Rules of Procedure as adopted by Council resolution, Article III, C3c - Agenda - Submission of Time Critical 
Items 

Time Critical Items.  A Time Critical item is defined as a matter that is considered urgent by the sponsor 
and that has a deadline for action that is prior to the next meeting of the Council and for which a report 
prepared by the City Manager, Auditor, Mayor or council member is received by the City Clerk after 
established deadlines and is not included on the Agenda Committee’s published agenda.   

If the Agenda Committee finds the matter to meet the definition of Time Critical, the Agenda Committee 
may place the matter on the Agenda on either the Consent or Action Calendar.  

The City Clerk shall not accept any item past the adjournment of the Agenda Committee meeting for which 
the agenda that the item is requested to appear on has been approved. 

Written communications addressed to the Agenda Committee and submitted to the City Clerk Department 
by 5:00 p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting, will be distributed to the Committee prior to the 
meeting.   

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953 and 
applicable Executive Orders as issued by the Governor that are currently in effect.  Members of the City 
Council who are not members of the standing committee may attend a standing committee meeting even 
if it results in a quorum being present, provided that the non-members only act as observers and do not 
participate in the meeting. If only one member of the Council who is not a member of the committee is 
present for the meeting, the member may participate in the meeting because less than a quorum of the 
full Council is present. Any member of the public may attend this meeting.  Questions regarding this 
matter may be addressed to Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900. 
 

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including 
auxiliary aids or services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 981-6418 
(V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD) at least three business days before the meeting date.  

* * * 
I hereby certify that the agenda for this special meeting of the Berkeley City Council was posted at the 
display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 Martin Luther King 
Jr. Way, as well as on the City’s website, on September 9, 2021. 

 
Mark Numainville, City Clerk 
 
 
Communications 
Communications submitted to City Council Policy Committees are on file in the City Clerk Department at 
2180 Milvia Street, 1st Floor, Berkeley, CA, and are available upon request by contacting the City Clerk 
Department at (510) 981-6908 or policycommittee@cityofberkeley.info. 

3

mailto:policycommittee@cityofberkeley.info


4



 
Monday, August 30, 2021 MINUTES Page 1 

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA & RULES COMMITTEE 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

MONDAY, AUGUST 30, 2021 
2:30 P.M. 

Committee Members:  
Mayor Jesse Arreguin, Councilmembers Sophie Hahn and Susan Wengraf 

Alternate: Councilmember Lori Droste 
 

PUBLIC ADVISORY:  THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE  
 
Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 
2020, this meeting of the City Council Agenda & Rules Committee will be conducted exclusively 
through teleconference and Zoom videoconference.  Please be advised that pursuant to the 
Executive Order, and to ensure the health and safety of the public by limiting human contact that 
could spread the COVID-19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting location available.   
 
To access the meeting remotely using the internet: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or 
Android device: Use URL https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86311352473. If you do not wish for your 
name to appear on the screen, then use the drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename 
yourself to be anonymous. To request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon on the screen. 
 
To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and Enter Meeting ID:  
863 1135 2473. If you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, press 
*9 and wait to be recognized by the Chair.  
 
Written communications submitted by mail or e-mail to the Agenda & Rules Committee by 5:00 
p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting will be distributed to the members of the Committee 
in advance of the meeting and retained as part of the official record.  City offices are currently 
closed and cannot accept written communications in person. 
 

 

  

5

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86311352473
sbunting
Typewritten Text
01



 
Monday, August 30, 2021 MINUTES Page 2 

 
Roll Call: 2:33 p.m. All present (Droste substituting for Hahn). 

Public Comment – 4 speakers 
 
Review of Agendas 

1. Approval of Minutes: July 12, 2021 
Action: M/S/C (Wengraf/Droste) to approve the minutes of 7/12/21. 

 Vote: All Ayes. 

2. Review and Approve Draft Agenda: 
a. 9/14/21 – 6:00 p.m. Regular City Council Meeting 

 
Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Wengraf) to recommend to Councilmember Bartlett 
to revise Item 32 to be a referral to the City Manager and move the revised 
item to the Consent Calendar. 

      Vote: All Ayes. 
 

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Wengraf) to approve the agenda of the 9/14/21 
meeting with the changes noted below. 

      Vote: All Ayes. 
• Item Added: PRW Contract Recess Item (City Manager) 
• Item 6 Proclamation of Emergency (City Manager) – revised recommendation submitted 
• Item 32 Predevelopment Allocation (Bartlett) – revision requested by Committee; 

Revised report will be placed on Consent Calendar 
• Item 34 SB 459 (Commission) – Moved to Consent Calendar 
• Item 36 Zero Waste Commission (Commission) – Moved to Consent Calendar 
• Item 37 Fair Elections (Arreguin) – Revised item submitted; Vice-Mayor Droste added as 

a co-sponsor; Moved to Consent Calendar 
• Item 38 Observance Resolution (Kesarwani) – Revision to Item Title; Councilmember 

Harrison added as a co-sponsor; Moved to Consent Calendar 
• Item 39 License Plate Readers (Taplin) – Referred to Public Safety Committee 
• Item 40 Wildfire Prevention (Wengraf) – Councilmember Taplin and Vice-Mayor Droste 

added as co-sponsors; Moved to Consent Calendar 
 

Order of Items of Action Calendar 
Item 29 Zoning Ordinance 
Item 30 Objective Standards 
Item 31 Officeholder Accounts 
Item 33 Regulation of Bags 
Item 35 Open Government  

 

Selection of Item for the Berkeley Considers Online Engagement Portal      
– None Selected 

3. Adjournments In Memory – None (Mayor will introduce adjournments in 
memory at the meeting) 

 

6



 
Monday, August 30, 2021 MINUTES Page 3 

Scheduling 

4. Council Worksessions Schedule – received and filed 

5. Council Referrals to Agenda Committee for Scheduling – received and filed 

6. Land Use Calendar– received and filed
 

Referred Items for Review 
 

8. Discussion Regarding Impact of COVID-19 (novel coronavirus) on Meetings 
of Legislative Bodies 
 
Action: 3 speakers. Discussion held. No action taken.  

 
9. 

 
Preliminary Analysis of Return to In-Person Meetings of City Legislative 
Bodies 
 
Action: 2 speakers. Discussion held. No action taken.  

 
Unscheduled Items 
 

10. Strengthening and Supporting City Commissions: Guidance on the 
Development of Legislative Proposals 

 
Items for Future Agendas 

• Discussion of items to be added to future agendas - None 
 
Adjournment  

 

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Droste) to adjourn the meeting. 
      Vote: All Ayes. 
 
  Adjourned at 3:47 p.m. 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct record of the Agenda & Rules 
Committee meeting held on August 30, 2021. 
 
________________________ 
Mark Numainville 
City Clerk 
 
 

7



 

 
Monday, August 30, 2021 MINUTES Page 4 

Communications 
Communications submitted to City Council Policy Committees are on file in the City Clerk Department at 
2180 Milvia Street, 1st Floor, Berkeley, CA, and are available upon request by contacting the City Clerk 
Department at (510) 981-6908 or policycommittee@cityofberkeley.info. 

8

mailto:policycommittee@cityofberkeley.info


Tuesday, September 28, 2021 DRAFT AGENDA Page 1 

D R AF T  AG E N D A 

 
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Tuesday, September 28, 2021 
6:00 PM 

 
JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR 

Councilmembers: 
DISTRICT 1 – RASHI KESARWANI  DISTRICT 5 – SOPHIE HAHN 
DISTRICT 2 – TERRY TAPLIN  DISTRICT 6 – SUSAN WENGRAF 
DISTRICT 3 – BEN BARTLETT  DISTRICT 7 – RIGEL ROBINSON 
DISTRICT 4 – KATE HARRISON  DISTRICT 8 – LORI DROSTE 

 
PUBLIC ADVISORY:  THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE  
Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 2020, this meeting 
of the City Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference.  Please be 
advised that pursuant to the Executive Order and the Shelter-in-Place Order, and to ensure the health and safety 
of the public by limiting human contact that could spread the COVID-19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting 
location available.   
 
Live audio is available on KPFB Radio 89.3. Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable 
B-TV (Channel 33) and via internet accessible video stream at 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx. 
 
To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device:  Please use this URL 
<<INSERT URL HERE>>.  If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen, then use the drop down menu 
and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous.  To request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon by 
rolling over the bottom of the screen.  
 
To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and enter Meeting ID: <<INSERT MEETING 
ID HERE>>. If you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be 
recognized by the Chair.  
 
Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other rules 
of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or videoconference. 
 
To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record, email 
council@cityofberkeley.info. 
 
This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953.  Any member 
of the public may attend this meeting.  Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Mark Numainville, City 
Clerk, (510) 981-6900. The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the Agenda. Meetings will 
adjourn at 11:00 p.m. - any items outstanding at that time will be carried over to a date/time to be specified. 

 

9

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
mailto:council@cityofberkeley.info
sbunting
Typewritten Text
02.a



Tuesday, September 28, 2021 DRAFT AGENDA Page 2 

Preliminary Matters 

Roll Call:  

Ceremonial Matters: In addition to those items listed on the agenda, the Mayor may add additional 
ceremonial matters. 

City Manager Comments:  The City Manager may make announcements or provide information to 
the City Council in the form of an oral report.  The Council will not take action on such items but may 
request the City Manager place a report on a future agenda for discussion. 

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters: Persons will be selected to address matters not on 
the Council agenda.  If five or fewer persons wish to speak, each person selected will be allotted two 
minutes each.  If more than five persons wish to speak, up to ten persons will be selected to address 
matters not on the Council agenda and each person selected will be allotted one minute each. The 
remainder of the speakers wishing to address the Council on non-agenda items will be heard at the end 
of the agenda. 
 
Consent Calendar 
 The Council will first determine whether to move items on the agenda for “Action” or “Information” to the 

“Consent Calendar”, or move “Consent Calendar” items to “Action.” Three members of the City Council 
must agree to pull an item from the Consent Calendar for it to move to Action. Items that remain on the 
“Consent Calendar” are voted on in one motion as a group. “Information” items are not discussed or acted 
upon at the Council meeting unless they are moved to “Action” or “Consent”. 

No additional items can be moved onto the Consent Calendar once public comment has commenced. At 
any time during, or immediately after, public comment on Information and Consent items, any 
Councilmember may move any Information or Consent item to “Action.” Following this, the Council will 
vote on the items remaining on the Consent Calendar in one motion.  

For items moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons 
who spoke on the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again at the time 
the matter is taken up during the Action Calendar. 

Public Comment on Consent Calendar and Information Items Only: The Council will 
take public comment on any items that are either on the amended Consent Calendar or the Information 
Calendar.  Speakers will be entitled to two minutes each to speak in opposition to or support of Consent 
Calendar and Information Items.  A speaker may only speak once during the period for public comment 
on Consent Calendar and Information items. 

Additional information regarding public comment by City of Berkeley employees and interns: Employees 
and interns of the City of Berkeley, although not required, are encouraged to identify themselves as such, 
the department in which they work and state whether they are speaking as an individual or in their official 
capacity when addressing the Council in open session or workshops. 
 

10



Recess Items 

Tuesday, September 28, 2021 DRAFT AGENDA Page 3 

1.  Contract No. 32100192 Amendment: California Constructores for Construction 
of Pedestrian Improvements at California Street/Dwight Way Intersection 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution ratifying the action taken by the City 
Manager during recess to amend Contract No. 32100192 with California 
Constructores for work on the Fiscal Year 2020 Sidewalk Repairs Project, 
Specification No. 20-11409-C, to perform safety-related pedestrian improvements at 
the California Street/Dwight Way intersection, increasing the current contract amount 
by up to $175,900, for a total amount not to exceed $2,175,900.  
Financial Implications: General Fund - $175,900 
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300 

Consent Calendar 
 

2.  Contract No. 9712A Amendment: QuickCaption, Inc. for Real-Time Closed 
Captioning Stenography Services 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend 
Contract No. 9712A with QuickCaption, Inc. for the provision of real-time closed 
captioning stenography services, including captioning virtual meetings, at all work 
sessions, regular and special meetings of the City Council and Successor Agency to 
the former Redevelopment Agency, increasing the contract by $120,000 for a total 
not to exceed amount of $321,900.  
Financial Implications: General Fund - $120,000 
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900 

 
3.  Grant from the William and Flora Hewlett Foundation 

From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution accepting a $10,525 grant from the William 
and Flora Hewlett Foundation, which augments a prior grant of $20,000 awarded and 
accepted in 2019 for an assessment of arts space affordability challenges, 
displacement risks and possible strategies to protect affordable spaces for arts 
organizations, artists and cultural workers in Berkeley.  
Financial Implications: $10,525 (Grant) 
Contact: Dave White, City Manager's Office, (510) 981-7000 

 
4.  Formal Bid Solicitations and Request for Proposals Scheduled for Possible 

Issuance After Council Approval on September 28, 2021 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Approve the request for proposals or invitation for bids (attached 
to staff report) that will be, or are planned to be, issued upon final approval by the 
requesting department or division.  All contracts over the City Manager’s threshold 
will be returned to Council for final approval.  
Financial Implications: Various Funds - $6,675,000 
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300 

 

11



Consent Calendar 

Tuesday, September 28, 2021 DRAFT AGENDA Page 4 

5.  Contract: Genasys for Citywide Outdoor Warning System 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into 
contract with Genasys, Inc. for consulting, planning, construction, installation, 
software hosting, and implementation of a Citywide Outdoor Warning System 
(OWS), for a total amount not to exceed $1,974,457.  
Financial Implications: Measure FF - $1,974,457 
Contact: Abe Roman, Fire, (510) 981-3473 

 
6.  Contract No. 31900132 Amendment: Building Opportunities for Self-Sufficiency 

for Representative Payee Services 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her 
designee to execute a contract amendment with vendor Building Opportunities for 
Self-Sufficiency (BOSS) to provide Representative Payee services.  The amendment 
will add $100,000 to the current contract and extend it through June 30, 2022 for a 
total contract not to exceed amount of $300,000.  
Financial Implications: Mental Health Service Act Fund - $100,000 
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400 

 
7.  Contract: Berkeley Free Clinic for Laboratory Services 

From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her 
designee to execute a contract and any amendments or extensions with the Berkeley 
Free Clinic (BFC) for laboratory services, in an amount not to exceed $150,000 for 
the period July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2024.  
Financial Implications: General Fund - $150,000 
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400 

 
8.  Memorandum of Understanding with Alameda County Behavioral Health Care 

Services for Wellness Center Operations 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her 
designee to adopt a Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Berkeley 
and Alameda County Behavioral Health Care Services for the term July 1, 2021 
through June 30, 2023 for an expenditure of up to $491,933 to fund the operational 
costs of a Mental Health Wellness Center located in Berkeley.  
Financial Implications: Mental Health Service Act Fund - $491,933 
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400 

 

12



Consent Calendar 

Tuesday, September 28, 2021 DRAFT AGENDA Page 5 

9.  Donation: Memorial Bench at Cesar Chavez Park in Memory of Nancy Park 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution accepting a cash donation in the amount of 
$3,400 for a memorial bench to be placed at Cesar Chavez Park in memory of 
Nancy Park.  
Financial Implications: $3,400 (donation) 
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700 

 
10.  Donation: Memorial Bench at Greg Brown Park in memory of Michael, Anna, 

and John Wyman 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution accepting a cash donation in the amount of 
$3,400 for a memorial bench to be placed at Greg Brown Park in memory of Michael, 
Anna, and John Wyman.  
Financial Implications: $3,400 (donation) 
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700 

 
11.  Donation: Memorial Bench at the Jane Hammond Softball Field at Corodonices 

Park in memory of Dixie Lewis 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution accepting a cash donation in the amount of 
$3,400 for a memorial bench to be placed at the Jane Hammond Softball Field at 
Codornices Park in memory of Dixie Lewis.  
Financial Implications: $3,400 (donation) 
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700 

 
12.  Donation: Memorial Bench at Shorebird Park at the Berkeley Marina in Memory 

of Shay M. Finnegan 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution accepting a cash donation in the amount of 
$3,400 for a memorial bench to be placed at Shorebird Park in memory of Shay M. 
Finnegan.  
Financial Implications: $3,400 (donation) 
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700 

 
13.  Exclusive Negotiating Agreement with Innovation Properties Group for 199 

Seawall Drive 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her 
designee to execute an Exclusive Negotiating Agreement with Innovation Properties 
Group to develop a pre-development agreement that could lead to a long-term lease 
of City property at 199 Seawall Drive and a short-term license for a portion of the 
adjacent parking lot.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700 

 

13



Consent Calendar 

Tuesday, September 28, 2021 DRAFT AGENDA Page 6 

14.  Contract No. 10508 Amendment: Ben Noble, City and Regional Planning for 
Zoning Ordinance Revision Project (ZORP) 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an 
amendment to Contract No. 10508 with Ben Noble, City and Regional Planning, to 
develop objective standards in the Zoning Ordinance as ZORP Phase 2, increasing 
the contract amount by $125,000 to a new total not-to-exceed contract amount of 
$425,000, and extending the contract period to December 31, 2023.  
Financial Implications: General Fund - $125,000 
Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400 

 
15.  Purchase Orders: Bruce’s Tire, Inc. for New Automobile and Truck Tires 

From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute 
yearly purchase orders for new tires for City owned vehicles and equipment with 
Bruce’s Tire, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $2,900,000 for FY 2022 through FY 
2026.  
Financial Implications: Equipment Maintenance Fund - $2,900,000 
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300 

 
16.  Extending the Requirements for Telestaff Time Reporting 

From: Disaster and Fire Safety Commission 
Recommendation: The Disaster and Fire Safety Commission (DFSC) recommends 
that the Berkeley Fire Department require that all overtime recorded for Fire 
Suppression be coded properly in the Telestaff application to show the reason for the 
overtime. Further, to assist determining what overtime is eligible to be charged to 
Measure GG as “Minimum Staffing” that overtime must be properly coded as 
supporting minimum staffing.  (Currently, this would be code 00FS10 and 00FS11). 
This would not affect charges for Measure GG approved time or overtime.  In 
addition, we recommend that in any future reports to the DFSC on Measure GG 
budget that the report include a breakdown of the time by labor purpose of both 
regular and overtime.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Keith May, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-3473 

 
17.  Appointment of Tommy Escarcega to Mental Health Commission 

From: Mental Health Commission 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution appointing: Tommy Escarcega as a 
representative of the Special Public Interest, Consumer Category, to complete her 
first 3-year term beginning September 29, 2021 and ending September 28, 2024.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Jamie Works-Wright, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-5400 

 
  

14



Action Calendar 

Tuesday, September 28, 2021 DRAFT AGENDA Page 7 

 The public may comment on each item listed on the agenda for action as the item is taken up. For items 
moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons who spoke on 
the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again at the time the matter is 
taken up during the Action Calendar. 

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak use the "raise hand" function to determine 
the number of persons interested in speaking at that time. Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two 
minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the 
public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. Speakers are permitted to yield their time to 
one other speaker, however no one speaker shall have more than four minutes. The Presiding Officer may, 
with the consent of persons representing both sides of an issue, allocate a block of time to each side to 
present their issue. 

Action items may be reordered at the discretion of the Chair with the consent of Council. 

Action Calendar – Public Hearings 
 Staff shall introduce the public hearing item and present their comments. This is followed by five-minute 

presentations each by the appellant and applicant. The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing 
to speak use the "raise hand" function to be recognized and to determine the number of persons interested 
in speaking at that time. 

Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in 
speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. 
The Presiding Officer may with the consent of persons representing both sides of an issue allocate a block 
of time to each side to present their issue. 

Each member of the City Council shall verbally disclose all ex parte contacts concerning the subject of the 
hearing. Councilmembers shall also submit a report of such contacts in writing prior to the commencement 
of the hearing. Written reports shall be available for public review in the office of the City Clerk. 

 
18.  ZAB Appeal: 2943 Pine Avenue, Use Permit #ZP2020-0107 

From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing, and, upon conclusion, adopt a 
Resolution affirming the Zoning Adjustments Board (ZAB) decision to approve Use 
Permit #ZP2020-0107 to construct a 729 square-foot, second-story addition to an 
existing one-story 1,822 square-foot single-family dwelling, with an average height of 
23 feet 1 inch, add a fifth bedroom, and legalize an existing 10-foot fence at the rear 
and left side, on a lot that is existing non-conforming for lot coverage, and dismiss 
the appeal.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400 

 
19.  Response to Short Term Referral for Amendments to Accessory Dwelling Unit 

(ADU) Ordinance to Address Public Safety Concerns; Amending BMC Chapters 
23C.24 and 23F.04 (Continued from July 13, 2021) 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and, upon conclusion, adopt the first 
reading of a local Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) Ordinance [Berkeley Municipal 
Code (BMC) Chapter 23C.24] and amendments to relevant Definitions [BMC 
Chapter 23F.04] in the Zoning Ordinance.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400 

15



Action Calendar – Public Hearings 

Tuesday, September 28, 2021 DRAFT AGENDA Page 8 

20.  Adopt a Resolution and Ordinance for a Shared Electric Micromobility Permit 
Program 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon its conclusion:  
1. Adopt a Resolution approving a Shared Electric Micromobility Permit Program, 
establishing fees for the program, and designating the City Manager as custodian of 
the program; and  
2. Adopt the first reading of an Ordinance adding Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 
14.63 and amending Chapter 14.68 to establish the Shared Electric Micromobility 
Permit Program and related parking regulations.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300 

Action Calendar – New Business 
 

21.  Predevelopment Allocation, Ashby Recreation and Community Housing 
(ARCH) Consortium 
From: Councilmember Bartlett (Author), Mayor Arreguin (Co-Sponsor), 
Councilmember Taplin (Co-Sponsor) 
Recommendation: (Reviewed by the Budget & Finance Policy Committee) 
Refer to staff to work with the Ashby Recreation and Community Housing (ARCH) 
Consortium to develop a planning grant for the Ashby BART East Parking Lot.  
Policy Committee Recommendation: No final action was taken by the Budget & 
Finance Committee. The item is automatically returning to the Council agenda 
pursuant to the 120-day time limit for items referred to policy committees.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Ben Bartlett, Councilmember, District 3, (510) 981-7130 

 
22.  Approval of Interim Regulations for the Police Accountability Board and Office 

of the Director of Police Accountability for Handling Complaints Against Sworn 
Officers of the Police Department 
From: Director of Police Accountability 
Recommendation: Approve Interim Regulations to be used by the Police 
Accountability Board and Director of Police Accountability for Handling Complaints 
Against Sworn Officers of the Police Department under City Charter Article XVIII, 
Section 125 (Measure II). The City Council is asked to choose between the Board’s 
modified proposal, conditioned upon City Attorney approval, or the Interim Director’s 
preferred version.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Katherine Lee, Interim Director of Police Accountability, (510) 981-4950 

 
  

16



Action Calendar – Policy Committee Track Items 

Tuesday, September 28, 2021 DRAFT AGENDA Page 9 

23.  Referral to Strengthen Public Health and Environmental Impact Mitigation for 
Industrial Facilities in the Manufacturing Zone 
From: Councilmember Kesarwani (Author) 
Recommendation: Refer to the City Manager to: Establish a procedure for 
enhanced review of use permits in the manufacturing zone for industrial facilities—
upon initial submission or upon submission of an amended use permit—in order to 
ensure public health and environmental impacts are appropriately mitigated as a 
condition of the use permit. Further, if appropriate, consider mitigation that includes 
the use-permit applicant contracting with a certified third-party to install air quality 
monitoring device(s) that can enable periodic reporting on pollutants relevant to the 
particular industrial process proposed in the initial or amended use permit. Explore 
feasibility of increasing penalty fee schedule as a deterrence for use-permit violations 
related to public health and environmental impacts, such as air, noise, and water 
pollution.  
Financial Implications: Staff time 
Contact: Rashi Kesarwani, Councilmember, District 1, (510) 981-7110 

 

17



Action Calendar – Policy Committee Track Items 

Tuesday, September 28, 2021 DRAFT AGENDA Page 10 

24.  Amending BMC Section 14.56.070 for 3-Ton Commercial Truck Weight Limit on 
Berkeley’s Bicycle Boulevards and on At-Risk West Berkeley Residential 
Streets 
From: Councilmember Taplin (Author) 
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance amending Berkeley 
Municipal Code (BMC) Section 14.56.070 to add 3-ton commercial truck weight limits 
on: 
1. Ninth Street between Dwight Way and Heinz Avenue 
2. Addison Street between San Pablo Avenue and Sixth Street; 
3. Allston Way between San Pablo Avenue and Sixth Street; 
4. Bancroft Way between San Pablo Avenue and Sixth Street;  
5. Channing Way between San Pablo Avenue and Fourth Street; 
6. Dwight Way between San Pablo Avenue and Sixth Street; 
7. Camelia Street between Eighth Street and Ninth Street; 
8. Eighth Street between Jackson Street and Camelia Street; 
9. Ninth Street between Camelia Street and Cedar Street; 
10. Virginia Street between Sacramento Street and Martin Luther King Jr. Way; 
11. Virginia Street between Shattuck Avenue and Euclid Avenue; 
12. Channing Way between Martin Luther King Jr. Way and Piedmont Avenue; 
13. Heinz Avenue between Ninth Street and San Pablo Avenue; 
14. Russell Street between San Pablo Avenue and Shattuck Avenue; 
15. Russell Street between Telegraph Avenue and Claremont Avenue; 
16. California Street between Hopkins Street and University Avenue; 
17. California Street between Dwight Way and Russell Street; 
18. King Street between Russell Street and Stanford Avenue; 
19. Milvia Street from Dwight Way to Russell Street; 
20. Bowditch Street from Bancroft Way to Dwight Way; 
21. Hillegass Avenue from Dwight Way to Woolsey Street  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Terry Taplin, Councilmember, District 2, (510) 981-7120 

 
25.  Native and Drought Resistant Plants and Landscaping Ordinance Referral 

From: Councilmember Taplin (Author) 
Recommendation: Refer to the City Manager the development of an ordinance 
amending the Berkeley Municipal Code to require that plant materials (1) native to 
Berkeley and Northern California and (2) resistant to drought conditions shall be 
used exclusively in designing, planting, maintaining, and managing the landscape 
features of all City roadsides, parks, public areas, and other City properties and 
facilities.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Terry Taplin, Councilmember, District 2, (510) 981-7120 

 

18



Action Calendar – Policy Committee Track Items 

Tuesday, September 28, 2021 DRAFT AGENDA Page 11 

26.  Resolution in Support of Afghan Refugees 
From: Councilmember Taplin (Author), Mayor Arreguin (Author) 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution in support of refugees from Afghanistan.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Terry Taplin, Councilmember, District 2, (510) 981-7120 

 
27.  Adopt a Resolution Renewing and Re-Affirming Wildfire Prevention and Safety 

From: Councilmember Wengraf (Author) 
Recommendation: Request that the Berkeley City Council adopt a resolution re-
affirming that wildfire prevention and safety is a top priority in the City of Berkeley.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Susan Wengraf, Councilmember, District 6, (510) 981-7160 

 
28.  Amending BMC Section 14.56.040 to Reduce the Commercial Weight Limit on 

Marin Ave 
From: Councilmember Wengraf (Author), Councilmember Hahn (Co-Sponsor) 
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance amending Berkeley 
Municipal Code (BMC) Section 14.56.040 to reduce the commercial vehicle weight 
limit from four tons gross weight to three tons gross weight on Marin Avenue 
between Grizzly Peak Boulevard and The Marin Fountain Circle.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Susan Wengraf, Councilmember, District 6, (510) 981-7160 

 
Information Reports 
 

29.  Sanctuary City Contracting Compliance Report for FY 2020 
From: City Manager 
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300 

 
30.  Financial First Aid Kit: A Guide to Emergency Financial Preparedness for 

Berkeley Residents 
From: Auditor 
Contact: Jenny Wong, Auditor, (510) 981-6750 

 
Public Comment – Items Not Listed on the Agenda 

Adjournment 
NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: If you object to a decision by the City Council to approve 
or deny a use permit or variance for a project the following requirements and restrictions apply:  1) No 
lawsuit challenging a City decision to deny (Code Civ. Proc. §1094.6(b)) or approve (Gov. Code 
65009(c)(5)) a use permit or variance may be filed more than 90 days after the date the Notice of Decision 
of the action of the City Council is mailed. Any lawsuit not filed within that 90-day period will be barred.  2) 
In any lawsuit that may be filed against a City Council decision to approve or deny a use permit or variance, 
the issues and evidence will be limited to those raised by you or someone else, orally or in writing, at a 
public hearing or prior to the close of the last public hearing on the project. 
 

19



 

Tuesday, September 28, 2021 DRAFT AGENDA Page 12 

Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable B-TV (Channel 33),  
via internet accessible video stream at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx 

and KPFB Radio 89.3. 
Archived indexed video streams are available at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil. 
Channel 33 rebroadcasts the following Wednesday at 9:00 a.m. and Sunday at 9:00 a.m. 
 

Communications to the City Council are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic 
records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: e-mail addresses, names, 
addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any communication 
to the City Council, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or 
any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service 
to the City Clerk Department at 2180 Milvia Street. If you do not want your contact information included in 
the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. Please contact the City 
Clerk Department for further information. 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 
will be posted on the City's website at http://www.cityofberkeley.info. 

Agendas and agenda reports may be accessed via the Internet at 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil 

 
COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or 
services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 981-6418 (V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD) 
at least three business days before the meeting date. 
 

 
Captioning services are provided at the meeting, on B-TV, and on the Internet. 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

 
 

20

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil


Disaster and Fire Safety Commission

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

CONSENT CALENDAR
September 28, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Disaster and Fire Safety Commission

Submitted by: Jose Bedolla, Chairperson, Disaster and Fire Safety Commission

Subject: Extending the Requirements for Telestaff Time Reporting

RECOMMENDATION

The Disaster and Fire Safety Commission (DFSC) recommends that the Berkeley Fire 
Department require that all overtime recorded for Fire Suppression be coded properly in 
the Telestaff application to show the reason for the overtime. Further, to assist 
determining what overtime is eligible to be charged to Measure GG as “Minimum 
Staffing” that overtime must be properly coded as supporting minimum staffing.  
(Currently, this would be code 00FS10 and 00FS11). This would not affect charges for 
Measure GG approved time or overtime.

In addition, we recommend that in any future reports to the DFSC on Measure GG 
budget that the report include a breakdown of the time by labor purpose of both regular 
and overtime.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
Utilizing the purpose codes for minimum staffing should significantly reduce the time 
required to properly determine the overtime charges which can be legitimately charged 
to Measure GG.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
Currently, the tendency is to report a large percentage of worked overtime to Measure 
GG. The DFSC believes that much of this overtime is not demonstrably in alignment 
with the intent of the measure -  to enable the city to keep fire stations open and 
improve medical emergency response and disaster preparedness - resulting in 
overcharges to the Measure GG Budget. As a partial result, the funds for measure GG 
support to the Berkeley Fire Department are in danger of running out without meeting all 
of the intended purposes intended by the measure. 

BACKGROUND
The DFSC has sent several previous recommendations or communications to City 
Council to discuss what the commission saw as excess charges to the Measure GG 

Page 1 of 3

21

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/manager
sbunting
Typewritten Text

sbunting
Typewritten Text
02a.16



Extending the Requirements for Telestaff Time Reporting CONSENT CALENDAR
September 28, 2021

fund. The feeling of the commission has been, and still is, that more overtime is being 
charged to the Measure GG accounts than is actually justifiable.

In the past the claim has been made that the accounting system was not adequate to 
properly separate out the overtime required for minimum staffing. However, the current 
system both has the ability to track this time with more accuracy and the ability to 
extract reports based on that tracking. At the time of this writing, the supervisors are 
apparently not coding overtime assignments in Telestaff, however that coding is both 
possible and fairly easy. 

At the August 4, 2021 Disaster and Fire Safety Commission regular meeting, the 
commission voted to recommend that the Berkeley Fire Department require that all 
overtime recorded for Fire Suppression be coded properly in the Telestaff application to 
show the reason for the overtime. Motion: Rader, Second: Degenkolb, Vote: 6 Ayes: 
Couzin, Rader, Dean, Bradstreet, Degenkolb, Stein; 0 Noes; 2 Absent: Simmons, 
Bedolla; 0 Abstain.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
There is no environmental or climate impact to this recommendation.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
Measure GG clearly specifies what the funds generated by the voter approved tax were 
to be used for. In the past the excuse that our accounting system was not up to properly 
tracking that information provided an impetus to charge all fire suppression overtime as 
applicable to Measure GG. With the new accounting system, that rationale is no longer 
valid. As such, improper charges of overtime to Measure GG has become a matter of 
misappropriation of public funds. This recommendation is intended to make it easier to 
properly separate out charges that are appropriate to the intent of the Measure GG tax. 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
While previous recommendations have been made, none have been practical until now.

CITY MANAGER
The City Manager concurs with the content and recommendations of the Disaster and 
Fire Commission’s Report. At the time of this report, details regarding how the 
information was being transferred from the Telestaff program and added to Enterprise 
Resource Management Application (ERMA) was not fully realized by the Disaster and 
Fire Safety Commission. 

Telestaff records all overtime of personnel with various codes that relates to specific 
reasons that personnel are being hired to work. Those codes are noted and assigned in 
ERMA when payroll is being completed by finance staff. The Commission’s 
recommendation is a standard practice when staff is completing payroll procedures.  

Page 2 of 3

22



Extending the Requirements for Telestaff Time Reporting CONSENT CALENDAR
September 28, 2021

CONTACT PERSON
Keith May, Secretary, Disaster and Fire Safety Commission, 510-981-5508

Page 3 of 3

23



24



Mental Health Commission

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

CONSENT CALENDAR
September 28, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Mental Health Commission

Submitted by: Margaret Fine, Chairperson, Mental Health Commission

Subject: Appointment of Tommy Escarcega to Mental Health Commission

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt a Resolution appointing: Tommy Escarcega as a representative of the Special 
Public Interest, Consumer Category, to complete her first 3-year term beginning 
September 29, 2021 and ending September 28, 2024.  

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
None.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
The Mental Health Commission is authorized to be composed of thirteen members. 
However, there are presently five vacancies on the Commission. These vacancies 
impair the Commission's ability to adequately review and evaluate the community's 
mental health needs, resources, and programs.

Approval of the recommended action will keep the one position filled, and allow the 
Commission to move one step closer to having a full and diverse complement of 
commissioners to review and evaluate the community's mental health needs,  
resources, and programs.

BACKGROUND
California State law requires that appointments to the Mental Health Commission 
meet specific categories, who may serve up to nine years consecutively. The 
general public interest category may include anyone who has an interest in and 
some knowledge of mental health services. The special public interest category 
includes direct consumers of public mental health services and family members of 
consumers, which together must constitute at least fifty percent or nine of the 
commission seats. Direct consumers and family members shall each constitute at 
least 20% of the commission membership. 

Tommy Escarcega is a resident of Berkeley and has experience with community 
advocating and organizing in the area of Re-entry and voting. She has the compassion 
to help others and believes in using other models of treatment such as community 

Page 1 of 3

25

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
sbunting
Typewritten Text
02a.17



Appointment of Tommy Escarcega to the MHC CONSENT CALENDAR
September 28, 2021

Page 2

engagement and consumers not only having voice but a meaningful vote in the system. 
She would like to join the Mental Health Commission because she has experience with 
Berkeley Mental Health services and homelessness.  This would be her first term 
participating on the Mental Health Commission.

The Mental Health Commission passed the following motions at the July 22, 2021 
meeting:

Interview and vote on the nomination of Tommy Escarcega on the Mental Health 
Commission.

M/S/C (Fine, Prichett) Make a motion to nominate Tommy Escarcega to join us 
on the Mental Health Commission 
PASSED
Ayes: Blanton, cheema, Fine, Jones, Opton, Prichett, Noes: None; Abstentions: 
None; Absent: Moore, Taplin

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
There are no identifiable environmental effects or opportunities associated with the 
subject of this report.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
Approval of the recommended action will allow the Mental Health  Commission to move 
one step closer to having a full and diverse complement of commissioners to review and 
evaluate the community's  mental  health  needs,  resources,  and programs.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
None.

CITY MANAGER
The City Manager concurs with the content and recommendations of the Commission's 
Report.

CONTACT PERSON
Jamie Works-Wright, Commission Secretary, HHCS, 510-981-7721

Attachments: 
1: Resolution 

Page 2 of 3

26



RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

APPOINTMENT OF TOMMY ESCARCEGA TO THE MENTAL HEALTH 
COMMISSION

WHEREAS, membership of the Mental Health Commission is composed of thirteen 
appointments by the City Council as a whole, including one appointment by the Mayor (or 
designee), six special public interest appointments, and four general public interest 
appointments; and

WHEREAS, with the ongoing implementation of the Mental Health Services Act, the City 
of Berkeley will need to have a full complement of diverse appointees to the Commission 
to review and evaluate the community's mental health needs, resources, and programs 
and to fulfill its mandate; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Escarcega has an investment in the community advocating and 
organizing and is prepared to contribute to helping others.

WHEREAS, the Mental Health Commission at its July 22, 2021 meeting recommends 
appointment of Tommy Escarcega.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the 
Council appoints Tommy Escarcega as a representative of the Special Public Interest, 
Consumer category, to complete her first-term ending September 28, 2024. 

Page 3 of 3

27



28



2180 Milvia Street, Floor 5, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7130 ● E-Mail: bbartlett@cityofberkeley.info
1

ACTION CALENDAR 
September 28, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Councilmember Ben Bartlett (Author), Mayor Jesse Arreguin (Co-Sponsor) 

and Councilmember Terry Taplin (Co-Sponsor)
Subject: Predevelopment Allocation, Ashby Recreation and Community Housing 

(ARCH) Consortium

RECOMMENDATION
Refer to staff to work with the Ashby Recreation and Community Housing (ARCH) 
Consortium to develop a planning grant for the Ashby BART East Parking Lot.

POLICY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
No final action was taken by the Budget & Finance Committee. The item is 
automatically returning to the Council agenda pursuant to the 120-day time limit for 
items referred to policy committees. 

BACKGROUND
A joint non-profit housing and recreation proposal is being proposed for the BART lot 
east of the Ed Robert’s Campus (ERC). The proposal, ARCH (Ashby Recreation and 
Community Housing) envisions a state-of-the-art recreation facility coupled with deeply 
affordable housing. The partners are BORP (Bay Area Outreach & Recreation), EBSHC 
(East Bay Supportive Housing Collaborative) and the ERC. ARCH has a managing 
developer for the entire site and is contacting non-profit housing developers.
ARCH will be a destination for the Bay Area’s disabled community providing a fully 
adaptive recreation center, including a warm pool, all also available to the public. This 
will be combined with a deeply affordable housing complex for those living with mental 
illness, those with physical disabilities, and persons who are homeless or at risk of 
homelessness." On-site services will be included as needed. The housing complex will 
provide, as feasible, a right of return for displaced South Berkeley residents.
RECREATIONAL COMPONENT: Bay Area Outreach & Recreation Program (BORP) 
has 45 years of providing adaptive sports and recreation for people with physical 
disabilities in the East Bay. We are committed to leading a partnership of individuals 
and organizations to develop a facility that will provide the disability community with 
reliable and permanent opportunities for fitness and recreational activities. Situated next 
to BART and the Ed Roberts Campus, and built using universal design and green 
building principles, the facility will leverage public transit and existing services to provide 
broad access to the disability community. 
The envisioned complex will be more than an athletic facility or recreation center; it will 
be a community hub, providing an inspirational environment for individuals with 
disabilities, offering regular opportunities for fitness, wellness, recreation, enjoyment 
and competition. The opportunity to merge with affordable housing only strengthens our 
vision. Recognizing the tremendous need for increased recreational programming for 

Page 1 of 3

29

mailto:bbartlett@cityofberkeley.info
sbunting
Typewritten Text
02a.21



Office of Councilmember Ben Bartlett
2180 Milvia Street, Floor 5, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7130 ● E-Mail: bbartlett@cityofberkeley.info

2

people with disabilities, the Wayne & Gladys Valley Foundation has generously made a 
$5 million-dollar matching grant commitment to the BORP project. 
HOUSING COMPONENT: The recreational structure will be surrounded by deeply 
affordable housing, the need for which has never been greater. Aside from our general 
housing crisis there is a critical shortage of homes for those with disabilities and mental 
illness. Board and Care homes have historically provided housing for the mentally ill and 
are closing at an alarming rate. A “slice” of the ARCH housing will serve this population 
and provide staff and services for the special needs residents.
The number of housing units, their configuration, height and bulk, is to be determined 
and will evolve as the zoning and agreements between the City and BART are finalized. 
The EBSHC envisions between 50 to 100 units of completely universal design. It is too 
early in the BART/City process to predict further. Funds from a variety of sources will be 
needed: Conventional financing, Section 8, and every government and private source 
will be pursued--as is often the case with non-profit endeavors. 

ACTIVITIES
ARCH members have been actively engaged in efforts to prevent homelessness and 
influencing critical policy decisions. In 2020 EBSHC worked successfully with 
Assemblyman David Chiu and State Senator Nancy Skinner to pass AB 2377, which 
requires Board and Care facilities to give the counties and cities in which they are 
located 6-month notice before closure, and local government the first opportunity to 
offer to purchase. Having stable and affordable living places, with supportive services 
when needed, is key to solving the problems of homelessness in our community.”
A City of Berkeley predevelopment allocation will enable ARCH to create feasibility and 
architectural scenarios, assemble research and background materials, all necessary to 
apply for various funding from County, State and Federal sources and to respond to 
calls for proposals.

CURRENT SITUATION
The push for affordable housing has been growing in the past few years. In September 
2018, California authorized BART to construct housing on its property in order to 
address the housing crisis. Since then, there have been ongoing discussions between 
community members and city officials to clarify the planning process and provide a 
unified vision for how to best use the land. In December 2020, the City passed the 
Adeline Corridor plan, which aims to transform South Berkeley’s housing landscape 
through the creation of affordable housing. To build off of this momentum, the City 
should explore the feasibility of ARCH.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
ARCH provides an opportunity to infuse recreational activities with housing. Ultimately, 
its goals align with the City’s plans to expand access to affordable housing and, 
therefore, should be explored. 

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
To be determined by staff.

Page 2 of 3

30

mailto:bbartlett@cityofberkeley.info


Office of Councilmember Ben Bartlett
2180 Milvia Street, Floor 5, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7130 ● E-Mail: bbartlett@cityofberkeley.info

3

CONTACT PERSON
Councilmember Ben Bartlett 510-981-7130
James Chang jchang@cityofberkeley.info

Page 3 of 3

31

mailto:bbartlett@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:jchang@cityofberkeley.info


32



  
Office of the Director
of Police Accountability

1947 Center Street, 5th Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704   TEL: 510-981-4950   TDD: 510-981-6903   FAX: 510-981-4955
Website: www.cityofberkeley.info/dpa   Email: dpa@cityofberkeley.info

ACTION CALENDAR
September 28, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Police Accountability Board and
Office of the Director of Police Accountability

Submitted by: Katherine J. Lee, Interim Director of Police Accountability

Subject: Approval of Interim Regulations for the Police Accountability Board and Office 
of the Director of Police Accountability for Handling Complaints Against 
Sworn Officers of the Police Department

RECOMMENDATION
Approve Interim Regulations to be used by the Police Accountability Board and Director 
of Police Accountability for Handling Complaints Against Sworn Officers of the Police 
Department under City Charter Article XVIII, Section 125 (Measure II). The City Council 
is asked to choose between the Board’s modified proposal, conditioned upon City 
Attorney approval, or the Interim Director’s preferred version.

SUMMARY
Ballot Measure II, passed in November 2020, amended the City Charter to establish a 
Police Accountability Board (Board) and Director of Police Accountability (Director) to 
perform civilian oversight of the Berkeley Police Department. (Measure II was codified 
as City Charter Article XVIII, Section 125 [Attachment 1].) The Board and the Office of 
the Director of Police Accountability became operational in July 2021, and need 
procedures in place to receive and process complaints from members of the public 
alleging misconduct against Berkeley police officers. Because establishing a permanent 
set of policies and procedures will take several months, Interim Regulations are needed 
so that complaint processing may continue. Under Section 125(13)(c) of the City 
Charter, the City Council must ratify rules of conduct governing the Board’s conduct of 
business.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
None.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
Several complaints alleging police misconduct have been filed with the Office of the 
Director of Police Accountability since it began operations on July 1, 2021. Despite the 
fact that no regulations have been adopted, the Berkeley Police Department and its 
sworn members have been cooperating with the Office of the Director in good faith in 

Page 1 of 66

33

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/
sbunting
Typewritten Text
02a.22



Approval of Interim Regulations for Handling Complaints ACTION CALENDAR
Against Sworn Officers of the Police Department September 28, 2021

the handling of these complaints: the BPD has responded to requests for police reports 
and body-worn camera footage related to the incidents in question, and subject officers 
and witness officers have appeared for interviews by the DPA Investigator. 

To ensure that Interim Regulations were formalized as quickly as possible, the Interim 
Director agendized for the first meeting of the Police Accountability Board the 
establishment of a Regulations Subcommittee. The Subcommittee was formed, and had 
time to meet once to consider Interim Regulations proposed by the Interim Director. The 
Subcommittee modified the proposed draft in significant ways, however. The Board 
approved the Subcommittee’s proposal with a modification to one provision.

Because some provisions of the Board’s proposal could trigger an obligation to meet-
and-confer with the Berkeley Police Association, it is unknown whether the Office of the 
Director will be able to continue conducting its investigations of complaints against 
officers if the Board’s proposed Interim Regulations are adopted.

BACKGROUND

Overview

The purpose of the Charter amendment creating the Police Accountability Board and 
Director of Police Accountability is promote public trust through independent, objective, 
civilian oversight of the Berkeley Police Department, provide for community participation 
in setting and reviewing Police Department policies, practices, and procedures, and to 
provide a means for prompt, impartial and fair investigation of complaints brought by 
members of the public against sworn employees of the Berkeley Police Department. 
The Board replaced the Police Review Commission and created a new position, the 
Director of Police Accountability.

The Charter amendment language was the culmination of a lengthy meet-and-confer 
process between City staff and the Berkeley Police Association, who bargained in good 
faith over the impacts of the proposed Charter amendment.

Under the Charter amendment, the functions of the new Board and Director were to go 
into operation no later than January 1, 2022. Under Resolution No. 69,531-N.S., the 
City Council directed that the functions, duties, and responsibilities of the Board and 
Director be implemented by July 1, 2021, six months earlier than the timeline set forth in 
the Charter amendment. The Office of the Director of Police Accountability became 
operational on July 1, 2021, with Police Review Commission staff serving as interim 
staff of the new Office. The Mayor and City Councilmembers appointed Police 
Accountability Board members on June 1, 2021, and the Board held its first meeting on 
July 7, 2021.  

Interim Regulations Proposed by Interim Director of Police Accountability

Page 2 of 66

34



Approval of Interim Regulations for Handling Complaints ACTION CALENDAR
Against Sworn Officers of the Police Department September 28, 2021

Under Section 125(18)(a) of the Charter amendment, the Director and Board shall adopt 
regulations for handling complaints filed by any member of the public alleging 
misconduct by sworn employees of the Police Department. However, it will take time for 
the Board to develop permanent regulations due to their detailed nature. For this 
reason, the Interim Director developed proposed Interim Regulations so that the Office 
of the Director of Police Accountability could expeditiously commence investigations on 
complaints filed before a complete set of permanent regulations is finalized. [Attachment 
2, before redlines.]

The Interim Director’s proposal implements the new provisions and procedures put into 
place by the Charter amendment. Among the most significant are: 

 Timeframe. The time to complete investigations and notify a sworn officer of 
discipline is 240 days, instead of the previous 120-day limit.

 Standard of proof. The standard of proof applied in determining whether a sworn 
officer can be charged with committing misconduct is “preponderance of the 
evidence,” rather than the more stringent “clear and convincing evidence.”

 Findings and recommendations; hearings. For cases filed with the Office of the 
Director of Police Accountability, following an investigation, the Director will 
present to the Board investigative findings and, if warranted, disciplinary 
recommendations; in certain cases, a recommendation on the level of discipline 
will be made. The Board then decides whether to accept the Director’s 
recommendation or hold a confidential personnel hearing. The findings and 
recommendations of the Director or the Board are sent to the Chief of Police, 
who may agree or disagree. If the Chief disagrees, a process for the Director to 
request City Manager review follows.

 Review of Internal Affairs (IA) investigative record if complainant objects. For 
cases filed with the Berkeley Police Department and not the Office of the 
Director, a complainant may contest a finding other than a “sustained” finding on 
a misconduct allegation to the Director. The Director may dismiss the objection or 
convene a review panel of the Board to review IA’s investigative record. The 
Board may dismiss the case, agree with IA’s decision, or disagree with IA on 
certain grounds. If the Board disagrees with IA, the Chief may send a report to 
the City Manager, who will make a final decision.

As the Charter amendment does not address many of the details of the process for 
handling complaints from the public, the Interim Director recommends for the most part 
that many of the provisions of the former Police Review Commission’s Regulations be 
used, to the extent they are not inconsistent with the Charter amendment. The PRC 
Regulations are the product of periodic negotiations with the Berkeley Police 
Association over many years.

Page 3 of 66

35



Approval of Interim Regulations for Handling Complaints ACTION CALENDAR
Against Sworn Officers of the Police Department September 28, 2021

Police Accountability Board Revisions

At its first meeting, the Police Accountability Board established a Regulations 
Subcommittee. This Subcommittee met on July 28, 2021, to consider the Interim 
Regulations proposed by the Interim Director. [Attachment 2. Redlines show Board’s 
changes to Interim Director’s proposal.] In addition to her proposed draft, the Interim 
Director submitted to the Subcommittee a memorandum with an overview of her work 
[Attachment 3] and a copy of the Police Review Commission Regulations, annotated for 
reference [Attachment 4]. The Subcommittee approved the recommended Interim 
Regulations in large part, but decided to enact three significant changes. The full Board, 
at its August 4, 2021 meeting, accepted the Subcommittee’s recommendations, except 
that it modified one of the changes. Other, minor changes were made for clarity, as 
were the Interim Director’s corrections to her own erroneous cross-references.

The Board’s major changes to the proposed Interim Regulations are as follows:

1. Expanding who may file a complaint. Formerly limited to “aggrieved parties” – 
those directly affected by alleged police misconduct, the Board proposes that 
eyewitnesses to alleged misconduct be allowed to file complaints. The Board 
further expanded their own ability to initiate an investigation, to do so upon a vote 
of five Board members. Previously the Board could initiate an investigation only 
in cases involving a death or if no complainant was available to file a complaint. 
(Interim Regs., Sections I.A.8 and II.A.2.)

2. Extending the filing deadline. The proposed Interim Regulations provide for a 90-
day time limitation for filing complaints and a late-filing period, for those who can 
show good cause for not filing earlier, for complaints filed between 91 and 180 
days. The Board instead proposes a 180-day filing period, with no provision for 
filing after that date. (Interim Regs., Section II.A.3.)

3. How testimony is taken at hearings. The procedures the Interim Director 
proposed adhere to the process used by the Police Review Commission. At 
hearings, the complainant must answer questions from the Board and the subject 
officer or their representative, but is then excused from the hearing. The 
complainant and their representative are not allowed to question the subject 
officer or even to be present while the subject officer testifies and is questioned 
by the Board. These provisions were enacted as a result of the Berkeley Police 
Association’s successful lawsuit against the City (Berkeley Police Association v. 
City of Berkeley (2008) 167 Cal.App.4th 385) that required the PRC’s 
investigative records and hearing process to comport with the Public Safety 
Officers Procedural Bill of Rights Act (“POBRA”) and confidentiality provisions of 
Penal Code section 832.5, 832.7, and 832.8. 

Page 4 of 66

36



Approval of Interim Regulations for Handling Complaints ACTION CALENDAR
Against Sworn Officers of the Police Department September 28, 2021

The Board revised the Interim Director’s proposal to place the complainant and 
subject officers on equal footing with respect to asking questions and being 
present during the hearing. (Interim Regs., Section II.I.6.) However, the Board 
understands that the City Attorney’s opinion is needed regarding whether the 
Board’s proposal comports with state law and case law. The Interim Director has 
sought the City Attorney’s legal advice on this matter, which is expected to be 
completed by the time Council is considering this item.

The Board voted unanimously to recommend that the Council approve the Interim 
Regulations as shown on Attachment 2 (with redlines), with its recommendation of the 
changes in how testimony is taken conditioned on the City Attorney’s opinion that they 
are lawful. M/S/C (Calavita/Leftwich): Ayes – Calavita, Chang, Harris, Leftwich, Levine, 
Mizell, Moore, Owens, and Ramsey; Noes – None; Abstentions – None; Absent – None.

The Interim Director respectfully disagrees that the above three major changes should 
be approved at this time, and accepts all other modifications to the draft that were 
approved by the Board.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
No environmental or climate impacts.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

Board’s rationale

Regarding expanding the group of people who may file, the Board points out that other 
civilian oversight agencies allow eyewitnesses to misconduct to file complaints. 
Additionally, this is a “best practice” according to the National Association for Civilian 
Oversight of Law Enforcement (NACOLE).

As for the timeline for filing complaints, the Board believes that 90 days is too short, and 
referenced a 180-day timeline typical in the federal system. The Board also believes 
that the current 91- to 180-day deadline for a “late-filed” complaint, which the Board may 
accept upon the complainant’s showing of good cause for filing late, is virtually a de 
facto 180-day deadline, save for the obligation to explain the reason for the lateness. 

Finally, with respect to complainants’ presence throughout the hearing and ability to 
question the subject officer, the Board feels strongly that maintaining the former Police 
Review Commission process is lopsided and unfair to complainants, and that state law 
and case law could be interpreted differently than they were in 2007 and 2008.

Overall, the Board believes that, as a new body created with overwhelming support of 
Berkeley voters, it need not be beholden to the rules of the body it replaced, and should 
instead be responsive to the community’s desires without delay.

Page 5 of 66

37



Approval of Interim Regulations for Handling Complaints ACTION CALENDAR
Against Sworn Officers of the Police Department September 28, 2021

Interim Director’s rationale

The Interim Director does not disagree with the sentiment behind the three major 
changes proposed by the Board, and understands the eagerness to make the process 
more accessible and friendly to complainants. However, if any of the major changes are 
subject to meet-and-confer with the Berkeley Police Association, that will delay adoption 
of Interim Regulations, and could cause a delay or temporary suspension of 
investigations of pending and future complaints filed with the Office of the Director.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
Two alternatives are being presented for Council’s consideration.

CONTACT PERSON
Katherine J. Lee, Interim Director, Office of the Director of Police Accountability
(510) 981-4950

Attachments: 
1: City Charter, Article XVIII, Section 125
2: Proposed Interim Regulations
3: July 20, 2021 Memorandum from Interim Director Lee to Police Accountability Board 
Regulations Subcommittee, Lt. Dan Montgomery (BPD), and Sgt. Scott Castle (BPD) 
regarding Draft Interim Regulations
4: Annotated PRC Regulations, dated April 4, 2018.

Page 6 of 66

38



Page 7 of 66

39



Page 8 of 66

40



Page 9 of 66

41



Page 10 of 66

42



Page 11 of 66

43



Page 12 of 66

44



Page 13 of 66

45



Page 14 of 66

46



Page 15 of 66

47



Page 16 of 66

48



Page 17 of 66

49



Page 18 of 66

50



Page 19 of 66

51



Page 20 of 66

52



Page 21 of 66

53



Page 22 of 66

54



Page 23 of 66

55



Page 24 of 66

56



Approved by Police Accountability Board 
August 4, 2021 

Police Accountability Board 
Office of the Director of Police Accountability 

 
Interim Regulations for Handling Complaints Against Sworn Officers of the 
Police Department under City Charter Article XVIII, Section 125 (Measure II) 

Preamble 
These interim regulations for handling complaints against sworn members of the 
Berkeley Police Department are issued in accordance with an amendment to the 
Charter of the City of Berkeley adding Article XVIII, Section 125, approved by the 
voters of the City as Measure II on November 3, 2020. Measure II establishes a 
Police Accountability Board (Board) and a Director of Police Accountability 
(Director), and is intended to promote public trust by providing for prompt, impartial 
and fair investigations of complaints by members of the public against sworn 
employees of the Berkeley Police Department. The Board and Director replace the 
Police Review Commission (PRC), established by Ordinance No. 4,644-N.S. 
Under Resolution No. 69,531 N.S., the City Council directed that the core 
functions of the Board and Director be implemented by July 1, 2021. Under Article 
XVIII, Section 125(13)(c) of the City Charter, the Board must establish rules of 
procedure governing the conduct of its business, which are subject to ratification 
by the City Council. In order for the Director to accept and investigate complaints 
filed against sworn members of the Police Department beginning July 1, 2021, 
interim regulations are needed until such time as the Board adopts permanent 
regulations and the Council ratifies them. 
These interim regulations reflect the procedures for handling complaints against 
police officers as set forth in Measure II as well as the provisions of the PRC 
Regulations for Handling Complaints Against Members of the Police Department 
(effective April 4, 2018) that are not in conflict with Measure II. They shall apply to 
all complaints that were pending with the PRC as of July 1, 2021, and all 
complaints filed with the Office of the Director of Police Accountability on and after 
July 1, 2021. Applicability of permanent regulations to these pending cases will be 
determined later. 

I. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

A. Definitions 
The following definitions shall apply in these interim regulations: 
1. Administrative Closure: Closure of a complaint before a confidential 

personnel hearing is held. 
2. Aggrieved Party: Any person directly affected by the alleged police 

misconduct. 
3. Allegation: An assertion of specific police misconduct. 

Page 25 of 66

57



  PAB Approved Aug. 4, 2021 
Section I.A. 

p. 2 of 20 

 

4. Board Member: A member of the Police Accountability Board appointed 
by the City Council. 

5. Chief; Police Chief: Chief of the Berkeley Police Department. 
6. City’s discovery of alleged misconduct: The City’s discovery by a 

person authorized to initiate an investigation of an alleged act, 
omission, or other misconduct. 

7. Complaint: A declaration that alleges misconduct by a sworn employee 
of the Berkeley Police Department. 

8. Complainant: An aggrieved party A member of the public who files a 
complaint with the Office of the Director of Police Accountability. 

9. Days: Means calendar days unless otherwise specified. 
10. Director of Police Accountability (Director): The individual appointed by 

the City Council to investigate complaints and carry out the operations 
of the Police Accountability Board and the Office of the Director of 
Police Accountability (ODPA). 

11. Duty Command Officer (DCO): A sworn employee of the Berkeley 
Police Department designated by the Chief of Police to appear at a 
hearing or review proceeding to answer questions clarifying BPD 
policy. 

12. Hearing Panel: Three Board members impaneled to conduct a 
confidential personnel hearing. 

13. Investigator: Employee of the Office of Director of Police Accountability 
whose primary role is to investigate complaints filed with the ODPA. 

14. Mediation: A process of attempting to reach a mutually agreeable 
resolution, facilitated by a trained, neutral third party. 

15. Police Accountability Board (Board): The body established by City 
Charter Article XVIII, Section 125. 

16. Review Panel: Three Board members impaneled to conduct a review of 
a BPD investigative record. 

17. Subject Officer: A sworn employee of the Berkeley Police Department 
against whom a complaint is filed. 

18. Witness Officer: A sworn employee of the Berkeley Police Department 
who has personal knowledge of events described in a complaint, but is 
not a subject officer. 

(PRC Reg. Sec. II.B., modified.)

B. Confidentiality 
1. Importance. In their capacity as Board members, each Board member 

will have access to confidential data or information related to Berkeley 
Police Department personnel. ODPA staff will likewise have access to 

Page 26 of 66

58



   

Section I.B. 

p. 3 of 20 

 

such confidential information. It is vitally important to the integrity of the 
complaint process under Measure II that all parties involved understand 
and adhere to the confidentiality of the process, and do all in their 
power to protect the privacy rights of Berkeley Police Department 
employees as required by law. (PRC Reg. Preamble.) 

2. Duty. Board members, ODPA staff, and their agents and 
representatives shall protect and maintain the confidentiality of any 
records and information they receive consistent with state or federal 
law governing such records or information. (Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(20)(b).) 
In particular, such persons shall not violate the rights of sworn officers 
to confidentiality of personnel file information under Penal Code secs. 
832.7, 832.8 (3(d)), and state law. Confidential information may be 
provided through witness testimony or through electronic or hard-copy 
transmission, and the obligation to maintain confidentiality applies, 
regardless of how the information is communicated. (PRC Reg. Sec. 
IV.A.) 

3. Closed hearings; effect on public records. All confidential personnel 
hearings and closed session meetings relating to the investigation of 
complaints against sworn officers will be closed to the public. Records 
of these investigations are confidential and will not be disclosed to 
members of the public. However, any public records included in, or 
attached to, investigative reports shall remain public records. (PRC 
Reg. Sec. 1.A.) 

4. Handling confidential information. For any proceeding in which hard 
copies of confidential information are distributed to Board members, 
each Board member shall return all confidential material to ODPA staff 
at the close of the proceedings, or as soon thereafter as practicable. 
(PRC Reg. Sec. IV.B.2.) For any proceeding in which electronic copies 
of confidential information are distributed to Board members, each 
Board member shall delete all confidential information as soon as the 
information is no longer needed, and promptly inform ODPA staff that 
they have done so. (NEW) 

5. Effect of violation. A Board member who violates confidentiality before 
or during a confidential personnel hearing shall be automatically 
disqualified from further participation in the hearing. Additionally, a 
Board member or the Director may agendize an alleged violation of 
confidentiality for discussion and action at a regular meeting of the 
Board, which may take adverse action upon a two-thirds vote of those 
present. Such adverse action may include: notice of the violation to the 
Board member’s nominating Councilmember or to the City Council, or a 
prohibition from participating in future confidential personnel hearings 
for the remainder of the Board member’s term. (PRC Reg. VI.D.3.)  

Page 27 of 66

59



  PAB Approved Aug. 4, 2021 

Section II.A. 

p. 4 of 20 

 

II. COMPLAINTS FILED WITH THE OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR OF POLICE 
ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. Initiating a complaint 
1. Complaint form. A complaint alleging misconduct by one or more sworn 

officers of the Berkeley Police Department must be filed on a form 
provided by the Office of the Director of Police Accountability. (Art. 
XVIII, Sec. 125(18)(a)(1); PRC Reg. Secs. I.B.7, II.A.1.) Complaint 
packets must include information about the difference between 
mediation and an investigation; language advising a complainant who 
is the subject of, or has commenced, litigation relating to the incident 
that gave rise to the complaint to consult an attorney before filing a 
complaint; and conclude with the following: “I hereby certify that, to the 
best of my knowledge, the statements made herein are true. I also 
understand that my oral testimony before the Board shall be given 
under oath.” Complaints shall be signed by the complainant, except for 
complaints initiated by the Board. (PRC Reg. Sec. II.A.1.) 

2. Who may file. Only an “aAggrieved party”ies, as well as eyewitnesses 
to alleged police misconduct, may file a complaint, except that if no 
complainant is available to initiate a complaint, and in any case 
involving a death, 5 Board members may vote to authorize an 
investigation or take other such action they deem appropriate. 
Complaints may also be initiated by the Board upon a vote of five 
Board members to authorize an investigation. (PRC Reg. Secs. I.B.2., 
II. A.3.) 

3. Filing period. A complaint must be filed within 18090 days of the 
alleged misconduct, except that the 18090 days shall be tolled if: 

a) the complainant is incapacitated or otherwise prevented from filing 
a complaint; or 
b) the complainant is the subject of a criminal proceeding related to 
the subject matter of the complaint, in which case the time for the 
complainant to file is tolled until the criminal matter has been 
adjudicated or dismissed. 
(PRC Reg. Sec. II.A.2.) 

4. Late-filed complaints. Complaints filed between 91 and 180 days of the 
alleged misconduct must be reviewed by the Police Accountability 
Board in a closed session meeting. Six Board members must find good 
cause for the late filing, by clear and convincing evidence, to accept the 
complaint. A complaint filed after 180 days after the alleged misconduct 
will not be accepted. (PRC Reg. Sec. II.A.2.a) 

5.4. Sufficiency of complaint. Complaints must allege facts that, if true, 
would establish that misconduct occurred. Complaints that do not 
allege prima facie misconduct, or are frivolous or retaliatory, shall be 

Page 28 of 66

60



  PAB Approved Aug. 4, 2021 

Section II.A. 

p. 5 of 20 

 

submitted by the Director to the Board for administrative closure at the 
next regular meeting that allows the complainant to be provided at least 
5 days’ notice. If a majority of Board members agree, the case will be 
closed; if the Board rejects the Director’s recommendation, the Notice 
of Complaint and Allegations must be issued within 10 days, unless the 
complainant has elected mediation. This section does not apply to 
complaints initiated by the Board under Section II.A.2. (PRC Reg. Sec. 
II.A.4.a.) 

6.5. Right to representation. Complainants and subject officers have the 
right to consult with, and be represented by, an attorney or other 
representative, but a representative is not required. If the ODPA is 
notified that a complainant or subject officer is represented, then the 
ODPA shall thereafter send copies of any materials or notices provided 
to the complainant or subject officer(s) to their representatives. (PRC 
Reg. Sec. II.A.5.) 

B. Mediation 
1. Election 

a. ODPA staff shall provide every complainant with information about 
the option to select mediation, and make every effort to ensure 
complainants understand this option. The complainant may elect to 
enter into mediation up until they are notified that the Director has 
submitted findings and recommendations as set forth in Section II. 
G.1 below.  

b. If the complainant elects mediation, ODPA staff shall notify the 
subject officer within 7 days that the complainant has opted for 
mediation, and include a copy of the complaint if not previously 
provided. This notice shall also inform the subject officer of their 
right to agree to or reject mediation within 10 days. 

c. A subject officer who agrees to mediation must agree to toll the 
City's 240-day disciplinary deadline if the officer later withdraws 
from mediation before mediation session begins. 

d. Once both parties agree to mediation, the complainant no longer 
has the option to have their complaint investigated and to proceed 
to a confidential personnel hearing, unless the subject officer 
withdraws from mediation. 

2. Completion 
After receiving notice from the mediator that a mediation has concluded, 
ODPA staff shall close the case and inform the Board. 

 (Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(18)(a)(2); PRC Reg. Sec. II.B., modified)

C. Complaint investigation 

Page 29 of 66

61



  PAB Approved Aug. 4, 2021 

Section II.C. 

p. 6 of 20 

 

1. Time for completion. Complaint investigations must begin immediately, 
proceed expeditiously, and be completed within 120 days of the City’s 
discovery of the alleged misconduct, unless a Government Code sec. 
3304(d) applies (Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(18)(e)), except: 
a. If the complainant or subject officer is the subject of criminal 

proceedings related to the complaint, the ODPA shall not 
commence an investigation until the criminal matter is adjudicated 
or dismissed. All time limits for processing the complaint shall be 
tolled during the pendency of the proceedings. As soon as 
practicable after the filing of a complaint, the ODPA shall contact the 
District Attorney’s Office to determine the status and anticipated 
resolution of the criminal proceeding (PRC Reg. Sec. III.C.3.). 

b. A longer time period for the investigation, not to exceed 195 days, 
may be agreed upon as provided under Section II.O. 

2. Transmittal of complaint. Complaints accepted by the Director shall be 
sent by hard copy or electronically to the Chief of Police, BPD Internal 
Affairs, Board members, and each sworn officer against whom the 
complaint is filed. (Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(18)(g).)  

3. Notice of Complaint and Allegations. Within 28 days of a complaint 
filing or the acceptance of a late-filed complaint, the ODPA shall 
prepare and send a Notice of Complaint and Allegations by hard copy 
or electronically to the complainant, the Chief of Police or BPD Internal 
Affairs, and each identified subject officer. The Notice of Complaint and 
Allegations need not be sent if the complaint requests mediation, or the 
Director recommends administrative closure. (PRC Reg. Sec. III.B.1, 
modified.) 

4. Sworn officers’ schedules. The Chief of Police or their designee shall 
provide ODPA staff with the schedules of all sworn employees of the 
Police Department. (PRC Reg. Sec. VII.A.1.) 

5. Nature of investigation. The investigation shall consist of conducting 
recorded interviews with the complainant, subject officers, witness 
officers, and civilian witnesses; and collecting relevant documentary 
evidence, including, but not limited to, photographic, audio, and video 
evidence. (PRC Reg. Sec. III.C.1.) 

6. Production, subpoena, and preservation of records. The Berkeley 
Police Department and all other City departments must produce 
records and information requested by the Office of the Director of 
Police Accountability and Board in connection with investigations, 
without redaction or limitation, unless required by state or federal law. 
(Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(20)(a).)  

a. The Director may issue subpoenas to compel the production of 
books, papers, and documents as needed to carry out their duties 
and functions. (Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(20)(c).) 

Page 30 of 66

62



  PAB Approved Aug. 4, 2021 

Section II.C. 

p. 7 of 20 

 

b. Whenever a PRC investigation is tolled, the Chief of Police shall take 
appropriate steps to assure preservation of the following items of 
evidence: 
I. The original Communications Center tapes relevant to the 

complaint. 
II. All police reports, records, and documentation, including body-

worn camera video. 
III. Names, addresses, telephone numbers, and statements of all 

witnesses. (PRC Reg. Sec. II.E.2.) 
7. Interview notices. Subject officers and witness officers must appear for 

interviews related to complaints. (Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(20)(c); PRC Reg. 
Exhibit A.) ODPA staff shall notify subject and witness officers at least 9 
days before a scheduled interview date by hard copy or, when feasible, 
email. An officer who is unavailable for an interview shall contact the 
Director or the Investigator immediately to state the reason for their 
unavailability. (PRC Reg. Sec. III.D.2.) 

8. Conduct of interviews, exercise of Constitutional rights. Interviews 
should be conducted such that they produce a minimum of 
inconvenience and embarrassment to all parties. Subject and witness 
officer interviews shall be conducted in compliance with the Public 
Safety Officers’ Procedural Bill of Rights Act1 (“POBRA”). When 
possible, ODPA staff shall avoid contacting BPD employees at home, 
and avoid contacting others at their place of employment. (PRC Reg. 
Sec. III.D.1.) While all officers have a right to invoke the Fifth 
Amendment, they also have a duty to answer questions before the 
ODPA regarding conduct and observations that arise in the course of 
their employment, and are subject to discipline for failure to respond. 
The exercise of any constitutional rights shall not be considered by the 
Board in its disposition of a complaint (PRC Reg. Sec. III.D.3.)

D. Pre-hearing complaint disposition. 
1. Administrative Closure 

a. Grounds 
The grounds upon which a complaint may be administratively closed 
include but are not limited to the following: 

i. Complaint does not allege prima facie misconduct or is 
frivolous or retaliatory. 

ii. Request for closure by complainant. 

                                            
1   Government Code Sec. 3300 et seq. 

Page 31 of 66

63



  PAB Approved Aug. 4, 2021 

Section II.D.1. 

p. 8 of 20 

 

iii. Unavailability of complainant where staff has attempted at least 
3 telephone, electronic mail and/or regular mail contacts.  
Attempts to reach the complainant by telephone and/or mail 
shall be documented in the recommendation for Administrative 
Closure. 

iv. Mootness of the complaint including but not limited to 
situations where the subject officer’s employment has been 
terminated or where the complaint has been resolved by other 
means. 

v. Failure of the complainant to cooperate, including but not 
limited to: refusal to submit to an interview, to make available 
essential evidence, to attend a hearing, and similar action or 
inaction by a complainant that compromises the integrity of the 
investigation or has a significant prejudicial effect. 

vi. Failure of ODPA staff to timely complete its investigation, as 
set forth in Section II.C.1. 

b. Procedure 
A complaint may be administratively closed by a majority vote of 
Board members during closed session at a regularly scheduled 
meeting. The complainant shall be notified of the opportunity to 
address the Board during the meeting no later than 7 days before the 
meeting. Cases closed pursuant to this section shall be deemed 
“administratively closed” and the complainant, the subject officer, 
and the Chief of Police shall be notified by mail.  

c. Effect of Administrative Closure 
Administrative Closure does not constitute a judgment on the merits 
of the complaint.  

(PRC Reg. Sec. V.A.) 
2. No Contest Response 

A subject officer who accepts the allegations of the complaint as 
substantially true may enter a written response of “no contest” at any 
time before the Director submits their findings and recommendations to 
the Board under Section II.G.1. If the subject officer sends a “no contest” 
response, the Director shall so notify the Board when findings and 
recommendations are sent to them. (PRC Reg. Sec. V.B., modified)

E. Initial submission and consideration of investigative findings and 
recommendations. 
1. Time to submit. Within 60 days of completing an investigation, the 

Director must submit and present investigative findings and 
recommendations to the Board in a closed session and convene a 
confidential personnel hearing if the Board requests it. (Art. XVIII, Sec. 

Page 32 of 66

64



  PAB Approved Aug. 4, 2021 

Section II.E. 

p. 9 of 20 

 

125(18)(i).) This deadline may be extended as provided under Section 
II.O. 

2. Standard of proof. In determining whether a sworn officer has 
committed misconduct, the standard is “preponderance of the 
evidence.” (Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(18)(c).) 

3. Categories of Findings 
a. If the evidence shows that the alleged act did not occur, the finding 

shall be "Unfounded.” 
b. If the evidence fails to support the allegations, but the allegations 

cannot be shown as false, the finding shall be “Not Sustained.” 
c. If the evidence shows that the alleged act did occur, but was lawful, 

justified, and proper, the finding shall be “Exonerated.” 
d. If the evidence shows that the alleged act did occur and the action 

was not justified, the finding shall be "Sustained." 
(PRC Regs., Sec. VIII.B.) 

4. Recommendation of discipline and level of discipline. If the Director 
recommends a “sustained” finding on any allegation of misconduct, a 
recommendation of whether discipline is warranted must also be 
included. For those cases where an allegation of misconduct, if 
sustained, would involve any of the classes of conduct described in 
Penal Code 832.7, as enacted pursuant to Senate Bill 1421, the 
Director must include a recommendation regarding the level of 
discipline. (Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(18)(i).) 

5. Board decision. Upon reviewing the Director’s investigative findings, the 
Board must then decide whether to hold a confidential personnel 
hearing. 

a. If the Board agrees with the Director on all findings and 
recommendations, (i.e., no need for hearing), the Director shall send 
the findings and recommendations to the Chief of Police. The 
findings and recommendations must be sent within 195 days of the 
City’s discovery of alleged misconduct, except if extended as 
provided under Section II.OM.2. 

b. If the Board decides that further fact-finding is needed, the Board 
may vote to hold a confidential personnel hearing. 

(Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(18)(i).)

F. Scheduling a hearing, assigning Hearing Panel members, distributing 
hearing packet. 
1. Time. If the Board decides to move forward with a confidential 

personnel hearing, it must be held within 60 days of the date the ODPA 
has completed its investigation. (Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(18)(i).) 

Page 33 of 66

65



  PAB Approved Aug. 4, 2021 

Section II.F. 

p. 10 of 20 

 

2. Scheduling hearing. ODPA staff shall determine the availability of 
subject officers before setting a hearing date and time. Hearings are 
not to be scheduled on an officer’s day off or during vacation or other 
leave, unless two or more subject officers on same complaint do not 
share a common day on duty. (PRC Reg. Sec. VII.A.1.) 

3. Hearing Panel. ODPA staff shall secure a Hearing Panel to conduct the 
confidential personnel hearing. A Hearing Panel shall consist of three 
Board members, except that in death cases and any cases in which six 
Board members vote to sit as a whole, the entire Board, with a 
minimum of six Board members, will constitute the Hearing Panel. 
(PRC Reg. Sec. VI.A.) 

4. Obligation to serve; unavailability. Board members must serve on 
roughly an equal number of Hearing Panels each year. (PRC Reg. Sec. 
VI.B.1.) If a Hearing Panel member becomes unavailable, they shall be 
replaced by another Board member, and notice of substitution shall 
issue as soon as possible. If substituted within 7 days of a hearing, the 
subject officer retains the right to challenge the Board member for 
cause. The notice of challenge of a substituted Board member must be 
made at least 3 business days before convening the hearing and 
constitutes good cause for continuing the hearing. (PRC Reg. Sec. 
VI.B.2.) 

5. Effect of continuance. If a hearing is rescheduled due to unavailability 
of the complainant, a subject officer, or either party’s attorney, another 
Hearing Panel may be assigned. However, the Hearing Panel 
composition shall not change after the hearing has been convened. 
(PRC Reg. Sec. VI.B.3) 

6. Notice of hearing. The ODPA must issue a written hearing notice at 
least 14 days before the hearing to all parties, witnesses, 
representatives, Hearing Panel members, and the Police Chief. This 
notice must include the time, date, and location of the hearing, and the 
composition of the Hearing Panel. (PRC Reg. Sec. VII. A.2) 

7. Hearing Packet. The ODPA shall provide the Hearing Panel with a 
Hearing Packet, which shall contain the Director’s findings and 
recommendations, and all evidence and documentation obtained or 
produced during the investigation (Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(18)(i)), at least 
14 days before the hearing date. The Hearing Packet shall also be sent 
to the subject officer(s), any representatives, the Duty Command 
Officer, and the Police Chief. The complainant shall receive a Hearing 
Packet without documents containing confidential investigatory 
materials or findings and recommendations. Witness officers and 
civilian witnesses shall receive a copy of only their interview transcript. 
(PRC Reg. Sec. VII.B., modified.)

Page 34 of 66

66



  PAB Approved Aug. 4, 2021 

Section II.G. 

p. 11 of 20 

 

G. Board member impartiality; recusals; challenges 
1. Conduct. 

a. Board members shall maintain basic standards of fair play and 
impartiality, and avoid bias and the appearance of bias. In 
confidential personnel hearings, they shall hear all viewpoints. (Art. 
XVIII, Sec. 125(8)(b).)  

b. No member of a Hearing Panel shall publicly state an opinion 
regarding policies directly related to the subject matter of a pending 
complaint; publicly comment on any of the facts or analysis of a 
pending complaint; or pledge or promise to vote in any particular 
manner in a pending complaint. (PRC Reg. Sec. VI.D.2.)  

c. A Board member who violates Section G.1.b above, before or 
during a confidential personnel hearing, shall be automatically 
disqualified from further participation in the hearing. Additionally, a 
Board member or the Director may agendize an alleged violation of 
that Section for discussion and action at a regular meeting of the 
Board, which may take adverse action upon a two-thirds vote of 
those present. Such adverse action may include: notice of the 
violation to the Board member’s nominating Councilmember or to 
the City Council, or a prohibition from participating in future 
confidential personnel hearings for the remainder of the Board 
member’s term. (PRC Reg. VI.D.3.)  

2. Recusal; disclosure of ex parte contacts. Board members recused for a 
conflict of interest must do so immediately when an item is taken up. 
Board members shall verbally disclose all ex parte contacts concerning 
the subject of the hearing and shall submit a written report of such 
contacts before the hearing begins. Ex parte contacts include any 
contact between a Board member and any party involved in the 
complaint before the public hearing. (Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(8)(b)(2).) 

3. Challenges to Hearing Panel member 
a. Basis for Challenge. A Board member who has a personal interest, 

or the appearance thereof, in the outcome of a hearing shall not sit 
on the Board.  Personal interest in the outcome of a hearing does not 
include political or social attitudes or beliefs. Examples of personal 
bias include, but are not limited to: 
i. a familial relationship or close friendship with the complainant or 

subject officer; 
ii. witnessing events material to the inquiry; 
iii. a financial interest in the outcome of the inquiry; 
iv. a bias for or against the complainant or subject officer. 

  

Page 35 of 66

67



  PAB Approved Aug. 4, 2021 

Section II.G. 

p. 12 of 20 

 

b. Procedure 
i. No later than 7 days of the date of mailing of the Hearing 

Packet, which includes the names of the Board members 
constituting the Hearing Panel, the complainant or the subject 
officer(s) may file a written challenge for cause to any Board 
member.  Such challenge must specify the nature of the conflict 
of interest. 

ii. The Director shall contact the challenged Board member as 
soon as possible after receipt of the challenge. 

iii. If the Board member agrees to recuse themself, the Director 
shall ask another Board member to serve. 

iv. If the Board member disagrees that the challenge is for good 
cause, they shall state their reasons in writing, and the Director 
shall make this determination. If the Director finds good cause 
for the challenge, the Director shall inform the challenged Board 
member and ask another to serve. 

v. If the Director rejects a challenge to a Board member and the 
Board member serves, the written challenge and the Board 
member's written response shall be made part of the hearing 
record. 

c. Replacement of Board member. Any Board member who is unable to 
serve for any reason shall be replaced by another Board member, 
except in cases involving a death. 

(PRC Reg. Sec. VI.C., modified.) 

H. Continuance requests; other pre-hearing motions 
1. Pre-hearing continuance requests. Requests to continue a hearing 

must be made to the Director as soon as the cause for continuance 
arises. The Director may grant the request only for good cause. Factors 
in determining good cause include: reason for request, timeliness, 
prejudice to the other party, filing date of complaint, and previous 
continuance requests. A request for a continuance made within 3 
business days of the hearing date shall not be granted unless the 
requester cannot attend due to a personal emergency or can 
demonstrate substantial prejudice if denied. A continuance granted at a 
subject officer’s request shall toll any disciplinary time period under the 
Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Berkeley and the 
Berkeley Police Association and the 60-day time limitation under Article 
XVIII, Section 125(18)(i). (PRC Reg. Sec. VII.C.4., modified) 

2. Newly Discovered Evidence or Witnesses. The complainant and 
subject officer shall provide any newly discovered evidence or 
witnesses’ names to the ODPA staff no later than 14 days before the 
scheduled hearing date, with an explanation as to why the evidence or 

Page 36 of 66

68



  PAB Approved Aug. 4, 2021 

Section II.H. 

p. 13 of 20 

 

witnesses could not have been discovered earlier and its significance.  
ODPA staff shall inform the Hearing Panel of the newly discovered 
evidence or witnesses as soon as possible. 
The Hearing Panel shall decide whether or not to allow the evidence or 
witnesses no later than 4 business days before the scheduled hearing 
date, and ODPA staff shall notify both the complainant and the subject 
officer of the Hearing Panel’s decision. (PRC Reg. Sec. VII.C.1.) 

3. Procedural issues. The complainant and subject officer shall raise any 
procedural issues by submitting them in writing to the Director at least 7 
days before the hearing date. Procedural issues can include, without 
limitation,: expiration of the 1-year limitation period under Government 
Code section 3304, or whether an officer should testify. (PRC Reg. 
Sec. VII.C.2.)

I. Hearing procedures 
1. Who may or must be present at hearing. Hearings are closed to the 

public. The Director and Investigator may be present during the entirety 
of the hearing. The Duty Command Officer may be present for all but 
the Board members’ deliberations. (PRC Reg. VII.D.1.) The 
complainant and the subject officer shall be present to answer 
questions from Board members, subject to state law. (Art. XVIII, Sec. 
125(18)(i).) An attorney or other representative for the complainant or 
the subject officer may participate in the hearing, but a representative is 
not required, and the complainant or subject officer is responsible for 
ensuring their representative’s presence at the hearing. (PRC Reg. 
VII.D.2.) 

2. Continuances. If good cause is shown, the Hearing Panel may continue 
the hearing due to the unanticipated unavailability of a witness or a 
representative. (PRC Reg. Sec. VII.D.3.) 

3. Party’s failure to appear. Absent good cause, if the complainant fails to 
appear within 30 minutes of the scheduled hearing time, the complaint 
will be dismissed. Absent good cause, if the subject officer fails to 
appear within 30 minutes of the scheduled hearing time, the hearing 
will proceed and the allegations may be sustained. (PRC Reg. Sec. 
VII.D.4.)  

4. Lack of full Hearing Panel. If two Hearing Panel members are present 
but a third fails to appear within 30 minutes of the scheduled hearing 
time, the hearing will be continued until a third Hearing Panel member 
is seated, unless all parties agree to proceed with two Hearing Panel 
members, in which case all findings must be unanimous. (PRC Reg. 
Sec. VII.D.5.) 

5. Chair of panel. The Hearing Panel shall select one member to serve as 
the Chairperson of the hearing. (PRC Reg. Sec. VI.A.) 

Page 37 of 66

69



  PAB Approved Aug. 4, 2021 

Section II.I. 

p. 14 of 20 

 

6. Presentation of findings and recommendations. The Director shall, 
outside of the presence of the complainant, complainant’s 
representative, and witnesses, present the investigative findings and a 
recommendation of discipline, if any; and the level of discipline in 
appropriate cases. (Derived from Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(18)(i).)  

7.6. Taking testimony at the hearing.  
a. The complainant and any civilian witnesses will be called into the 

hearing room to testify separately; the subject officers and their 
representatives may be present during their testimony. The 
complainant or their representative may make a statement or rely 
on the interview statements. Questioning will then proceed as 
follows: a) The complainant or the complainant’s representative may 
ask questions; b) Board members may ask questions; bc) the 
subject officer or his or her representative may ask questions; cd) 
Board members may ask follow-up questions. After questioning is 
completed, the complainant or their representative will have up to 
15 minutes to provide a summary of their case and a closing 
statement. (PRC Reg. Sec. VII.D.7., modified)  

b. The complainant and their representative, and civilian witnesses will 
each be excused from the hearing room after their testimony or 
representation is completed. (PRC Reg. Sec. VII.D.8.)  

c. The subject officers and any witness officers will be called into the 
hearing room to testify separately. The complainant and their 
representative may be present during their testimony. Subject officer 
representatives may be present for all testimony. Each subject officer 
may make a statement or choose to rely on the interview statements. 
Questioning will then proceed as follows: 1. Subject officers’ 
representatives may ask questions. 2. Board members may ask 
questions. The officer may then be questioned by 2 Board members 
unless the officer waives this requirement. 3. Complainant or their 
representatives may ask questions. 4. Board members may ask 
follow up questions. Each subject officer will be questioned by their 
representative first, after which the officer may be questioned by 2 
Board members, unless the officer waives this requirement. After 
questioning is completed, each subject officer will have up to 15 
minutes to provide a summary of their case and a closing statement.  

d. The subject officers and witness officers will each be excused from 
the hearing room after their testimony is completed. (PRC Reg. Sec. 
VII.D.9.) All except Board members and staff will then be excused 
from the hearing room. 

8.7. Subpoenas. The Board may issue subpoenas to compel the 
production of books, papers, and documents as needed to carry out 
their duties and functions. (Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(20)(c).) 

Page 38 of 66

70



  PAB Approved Aug. 4, 2021 

Section II.I. 

p. 15 of 20 

 

9.8. Maintaining order. No person at hearing shall become subject of 
undue harassment, personal attack, or invective. If the chairperson fails 
to maintain reasonable order, BPD employees may leave the hearing 
without prejudice. The burden shall be upon the BPD employee to 
establish to the City Manager’s satisfaction that their reason for leaving 
was sufficient. (PRC Reg. Sec. VII.D.10.) 

 
[Formatting issue. Unable to delete section break without causing additional formatting problems.]

Page 39 of 66

71



  PAB Approved Aug. 4, 2021 

Section II.J. 

p. 16 of 20 

 

J. Evidence 
1. General. The hearing need not be conducted according to technical 

rules of evidence. Any relevant evidence shall be admitted if it is the 
sort of evidence on which reasonable persons are accustomed to rely 
in the conduct of serious affairs.  

2. Procedure. Evidence shall be taken in accordance with the following 
provisions: 

a. The complainant and subject officers shall have the right to testify 
and refer to any relevant evidence that has been entered into the 
record. If the complainant or subject officers do not testify on their 
own behalf, they may be called and examined as if under cross-
examination.;  

b. Oral evidence shall be taken only under oath. 
c. The Chairperson shall exclude irrelevant and unduly repetitious 

evidence. 
d. The Chairperson shall exclude unruly or disruptive persons from the 

hearing. 
e. The Chairperson will conduct the hearing subject to being overruled 

by a majority of the Hearing Panel members. Hearing Panel 
members shall be primarily responsible for obtaining testimony. 
ODPA staff will answer Board members’ questions on the evidence, 
points of law, and procedure. 

f. The City Attorney's opinion will be sought whenever the 
interpretation of a City Ordinance or the City Charter is contested 
and pivotal to the case, or when a case raises substantial legal 
issues of first impression. 

g. If the Hearing Panel needs additional evidence or an opinion from 
the City Attorney to reach its findings, it may continue the hearing to 
a future date. 

h. If either party requests that the hearing be continued to consider 
motions or points of law, any applicable BPD disciplinary time limit 
shall be tolled for the period of such continuance. 

3. Judicial disposition. Either party may present to the Hearing Panel 
evidence of the disposition of a related matter by any branch of the 
judiciary (including but not limited to superior court, traffic court, and 
small claims court), and the Hearing Panel shall accept those findings 
as true. 

(PRC Reg. Sec. VII.E.)

Page 40 of 66

72



  PAB Approved Aug. 4, 2021 

Section II.K. 

p. 17 of 20 

 

K. Deliberation and Findings 
1. Deliberation. After the hearing has concluded, the Hearing Panel 

deliberates outside the presence of everyone except ODPA staff. The 
Hearing Panel shall not consider any information not received in the 
hearing packet or during the hearing. (PRC Reg. Sec. VIII.A.) 

2. Vote. The Hearing Panel shall affirm, modify, or reject the findings and 
recommendation of the Director of Police Accountability. (Art. XVIII, 
Sec. 125(18)(j).) All action of the Hearing Panel shall be by majority 
vote of those Board members present. (PRC Reg. Sec. VIII.B.)  

3. Transmittal of findings. The Hearing Panel’s decision must be 
submitted in writing to the Chief of Police within 15 days of the hearing 
(Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(18)(j)), unless extended as provided under Section 
II.OM.2. (Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(18)(m).) 

4. Content of findings. 
a. If the Hearing Panel agrees with the findings and recommendations 

of the Director, no explanation is required. 
b. If the Hearing Panel modifies or rejects a finding or recommendation 

of the Director, the Hearing Panel shall provide an explanation of its 
decision. (Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(18)(j).)  

c. Any Hearing Panel member dissenting from a finding or 
recommendation of the majority shall submit a separate written 
explanation of their reasoning (PRC Reg. Sec. VIII.B.), unless the 
dissenter agrees with the Director’s finding and recommendation. 
(NEW)

L. Findings of Chief of Police; tentative decision; final determination by 
Chief or City Manager. 
1. Chief’s decision. Within 10 days of receiving the findings and 

recommendations from the Director under Section II.GE.5.a. above, or 
from the Hearing Panel under Section II.MK.3.b. above, the Chief of 
Police shall take one of the following actions  

a. Issue a final decision if the Chief agrees with the Director or with the 
Hearing Panel. 

b. Submit a tentative decision to the Director and the Police 
Accountability Board. 

2. Director’s request to review tentative decision. If the Chief submits a 
tentative decision, the Director may request, within 10 days of receiving 
the decision, that the Chief submit the decision to the City Manager. If 
the Director does not make the request, the Chief’s decision becomes 
final. 

Page 41 of 66

73



  PAB Approved Aug. 4, 2021 

Section II.L. 

p. 18 of 20 

 

3. City Manager’s final decision. Within 25 days of receiving the submittal 
from the Chief, the City Manager or their designee shall submit a final 
determination, with a written explanation, to the Director, the Board, 
and the Chief. 

(Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(18)(k).) 
4. Extension of time. The deadlines in this Section II.L may be extended 

as provided under Section II.OM.2. (Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(18)(m).) 

M. Time limits; extensions. 
1. Overall limit. The time limit for investigations and notification of 

discipline is 240 days from the date of the City’s discovery of alleged 
misconduct, unless a Government Code section 3304(d) exception 
applies. (Art. XVIII, Sec.(125)(18)(d).) 

2. Other time limits. The deadlines for the Director to complete an 
investigation, present investigative findings to the Board, submit 
findings and recommendations to the Chief of Police, or request that 
the Chief submit a tentative decision to the City Manager; as well as 
deadlines for the Chief to act on findings and recommendations from 
the Director or Hearing Panel, and for the City Manager or their 
designee to make a final decision, are advisory, and may be adjusted 
by the Director after consulting with the City Manager and Chief, to 
ensure that all investigations and notifications are completed within 240 
days. The timeline for completing an investigation shall not be extended 
beyond 195 days. (Art. XVIII, Sec.125(18)(m).)

III. CONTESTING FINDINGS OF DECISION WHEN COMPLAINT FILED WITH 
THE POLICE DEPARTMENT. 

A. Application 
1. This Section III applies to complaints that a member of the public files 

with the Police Department only. 

B. Procedure 
1. When the Internal Affairs division of the Police Department has 

completed its investigation of a complaint, the Chief of Police shall 
issue a letter of disposition to the subject officer and the Director. The 
Chief shall also issue a letter of disposition to the complainant that 
complies with the Penal Code. (Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(19)(d).) 

2. If a finding is “not sustained,” “unfounded,” or “exonerated,” the 
complainant has 20 days from the date notice is sent (by mail or other 
reasonable means that the complainant agrees to), to contest the 
Chief’s determination to the Director. (Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(19)(e).) The 
Director, if appropriate, may request to review all files, transcripts, and 
records related to the complaint. (Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(19)(e)(1).) 

Page 42 of 66

74



  PAB Approved Aug. 4, 2021 

Section III.B. 

p. 19 of 20 

 

3. Within 15 days of receiving an objection from a complainant or a notice 
from the Chief that a complainant has objected, the Director, in their 
discretion, may notify the complainant that either: 
a. The objection is accepted and the Board will convene a Review 

Panel to conduct a review based on the investigative record 
provided by the Department; or 

b. The objection is dismissed. In such cases, the Director must notify 
the Board of such dismissal in writing within 30 days of notifying the 
complainant of the dismissal. 

(Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(19)(e)(1); Review Panel added.) 
 

4. If the Director decides that the Board will conduct a review, ODPA staff 
shall secure a Review Panel of three Board members to conduct a 
review of the investigative record at a closed session meeting. 
a. At the meeting, only Review Panel members and ODPA staff will be 

present. A Duty Command Officer may be present. 
b. The Review Panel shall evaluate the investigative record to 

determine whether the complainant’s objection has merit, either 
because the Department failed to proceed in a manner required by 
state and federal law, or because the Chief’s decision is not 
supported by the evidence in the record. 

c. All action of the Review Panel must be by majority vote. 
(NEW. Details not in Charter and no counterpart in PRC procedures.) 

5. The Review Panel must, within 45 days of the date the Director accepts 
an objection: 

a. Dismiss the complainant’s objection; or 
b. Issue a report agreeing with the Chief’s determination; or 
c. Issue a report disagreeing with the Chief’s determination if the 

Review Panel finds that: 1) the Department failed to proceed in a 
manner required by state and federal law; or 2) the Chief’s decision 
is not supported by the evidence in the record. The Director shall 
submit this report to the Chief and the City Manager. 

(Art. XVIII, Secs. 125(19)(f), 125(19)(g).) 
6. Within 15 days of receiving a Review Panel’s recommendation 

disagreeing with the Chief, the Chief may prepare a report for the City 
Manager addressing any concerns or objections. (Art. XVIII, Sec. 
125(19)(g).) 

7. Within 25 days of receiving the Chief’s report, the City Manager or their 
designee shall consider the reports of both the Board and the Chief, 

Page 43 of 66

75



  PAB Approved Aug. 4, 2021 

Section III.B. 

p. 20 of 20 

 

and send a final determination with a written explanation to the 
Director, the Board, and the Chief. (Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(19)(g).) 

8. The deadlines in this Section III are advisory, and may be adjusted by 
mutual agreement between the City Manager, the Director, and the 
Chief, to ensure that all investigations are completed such that the time 
limit for investigations and notification of discipline occurs within 240 
days, and investigation of all complaints filed with the Police 
Department are completed within 120 days of the City’s discovery of 
alleged misconduct, unless a Government Code section 3304(d) 
exception applies. (Art. XVIII, Sec. 125(19)(i).) 

IV. INFORMAL COMPLAINTS 

A. An informal complaint is a communication from a member of the public, not 
on a complaint form, that identifies an officer or officers by name, badge 
number, or other identifying features, and alleges any act of misconduct 
pertaining to the manner in which the officer performs their duties. Such 
complaints shall be treated confidentially. 

B. ODPA staff shall contact the complainant to explain the policy complaint 
and formal individual complaint processes. 

C. Informal complaints will be agendized for a closed session at the next 
regular Board meeting and distributed to the Board in closed session, with 
notice to the named officer(s). 

D. The Board shall consider the informal complaint and recommend what 
additional action, if any, the Director of Police Accountability should take. 

(Adopted by the PRC Jan. 8, 2020.) 

V. AVAILABILITY AND AMENDMENT OF REGULATIONS 

A. These Interim Regulations shall be posted on the website of the Office of 
the Director of Police Accountability, and ODPA staff shall furnish them to 
any person requesting a copy.  

B. Amendments to these Interim Regulations require a majority vote of the 
Board and ratification by the City Council. 

(PRC Reg. Sec. IX, modified.) 

Page 44 of 66

76



Page 45 of 66

77



Page 46 of 66

78



Page 47 of 66

79



Page 48 of 66

80



Page 49 of 66

81



Page 50 of 66

82



Page 51 of 66

83



Page 52 of 66

84



Page 53 of 66

85



Page 54 of 66

86



Page 55 of 66

87



Page 56 of 66

88



Page 57 of 66

89



Page 58 of 66

90



Page 59 of 66

91



Page 60 of 66

92



Page 61 of 66

93



Page 62 of 66

94



Page 63 of 66

95



Page 64 of 66

96



Page 65 of 66

97



Page 66 of 66

98



1

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7110 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7111
E-Mail: rkesarwani@cityofberkeley.info

Rashi Kesarwani
Councilmember District 1

   CONSENT CALENDAR
   September 28, 2021

TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council

FROM: Councilmember Rashi Kesarwani

SUBJECT: Referral to Strengthen Public Health and Environmental Impact 
Mitigation for Industrial Facilities in the Manufacturing Zone

RECOMMENDATION
Refer to the City Manager to:

● Establish a procedure for enhanced review of use permits in the
manufacturing zone for industrial facilities—upon initial submission or upon
submission of an amended use permit—in order to ensure public health and
environmental impacts are appropriately mitigated as a condition of the use
permit. Further, if appropriate, consider mitigation that includes the use-permit
applicant contracting with a certified third-party to install air quality monitoring
device(s) that can enable periodic reporting on pollutants relevant to the
particular industrial process proposed in the initial or amended use permit.

● Explore feasibility of increasing penalty fee schedule as a deterrence for use-
permit violations related to public health and environmental impacts, such as
air, noise, and water pollution.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
Industrial facilities can be in compliance with the requirements of their use permit 
without necessarily utilizing industry-standard best practices intended to safeguard 
public health and mitigate environmental impacts of their operations. For example, 
the City’s use permit for the LeHigh Hanson asphalt plant requires an enhanced 
enclosure for the asphalt loading area, but it does not require installation of a Blue 
Smoke Abatement System to control the emission of pollutants. The City Planning 
Department issues a use permit in perpetuity, and therefore, is unable to change the 
conditions for a use permit unless the applicant seeks a use-permit amendment in 
order to alter their operations in some capacity. In effect, use permits issued many 
years ago for industrial facilities lack a clear mechanism to be updated in order to 

Page 1 of 158

99

sbunting
Typewritten Text
02a.23



2

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7110 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7111
E-Mail: rkesarwani@cityofberkeley.info

adapt to evolving technologies and industry standards. While the California Air 
Resources Board (CARB) is the primary agency responsible for protecting the public 
from the harmful effects of air pollution, we note that CARB does not regulate asphalt 
plants. This Council referral seeks to ensure that initial and amended use permit 
applications from industrial facilities receive appropriate review and include 
conditions that safeguard public health and mitigate any environmental impacts.  

Possible appropriate mitigation to safeguard public health and mitigate environmental 
impacts may include:  

● Requirements to install new equipment and/or technologies to address air, 
noise, and water pollution as well as disposal of hazardous materials;

● State-of-the-art containment and enclosure mechanisms in order to ensure 
that release of noise, particulate matter, and/or chemical compounds are 
reduced or eliminated;

● Requirements to install monitoring systems in order for third parties to easily 
discern when pollutants exceed regulatory limits;

● Increased penalty fees for violations as a means of deterring unwanted 
behavior by industrial actors. 

BACKGROUND
Portions of West Berkeley are zoned specifically for heavy manufacturing and 
industrial uses. Over time, the area has been home to an array of industries that 
have provided blue-collar union jobs, such as the now-closed Pacific Steel Casting 
and Macauley Foundry. Currently, the LeHigh Hanson Aggregates asphalt plant—
located on Virginia Street between Second and Fourth streets—and Berkeley 
Forge—located on Eastshore Highway between Camelia and Gilman—continue to 
operate in West Berkeley. Over the years, industrial facilities in West Berkeley have 
elicited neighbor complaints and concerns related to public health and environmental 
impacts, such as air and noise pollution. 

History of Impacts from LeHigh Hanson (formerly Berkeley Asphalt)
In 1999, the Oceanview Neighborhood Association entered into a settlement 
agreement (attached) with both the City of Berkeley and Berkeley Asphalt Company 
(now LeHigh Hanson) to specify terms for mitigating noise and air quality impacts on 
neighbors. The terms of the agreement focused on: traffic patterns in order to prevent 
trucks from driving through residential neighborhoods; air quality controls to reduce 
dust and odors, such as enclosures for loading facilities; noise mitigations and sound 
barrier installations; and implementation of a complaint and response mechanism for 
resident concerns.

In 2015, Councilmembers Linda Maio and Lori Droste presented two informational 
status reports on West Berkeley Industries (attached) as a result of continued 
complaints from West Berkeley neighbors residing in close proximity to Pacific Steel 
Casting and LeHigh Hanson. According to a January 2015 Council item submitted by 

Page 2 of 158

100



3

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7110 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7111
E-Mail: rkesarwani@cityofberkeley.info

the Community Health Commission, more than 100 complaints were made in the 
2012 to 2013 timeframe by Berkeley residents and community groups to the Bay 
Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD)—the regional air pollution control 
agency charged with regulating pollution emissions in the nine Bay Area counties.

Most recently, beginning in the end of October 2020, the office of Councilmember 
Rashi Kesarwani began receiving multiple complaints of a noxious, sulfuric smell, 
most strongly noticed in West Berkeley, though also experienced as far east as 
neighborhoods surrounding the North Berkeley BART station. According to a 
BAAQMD December 9, 2020 fact sheet (attached), the agency fielded more than 190 
complaints about this odor in less than a two-month span of time.

Current Enforcement Actions Against LeHigh Hanson
While BAAQMD has regulatory authority over industries that negatively impact air 
quality, the City of Berkeley regulates the 1999 Settlement Agreement and use 
permit conditions. As the noxious odors continued into February 2021, BAAQMD 
issued four Notices of Violation (NOVs) related to nuisances due to odors on Dec. 3, 
2020 through Feb. 5, 2021. The last reported complaint about the odor occurred on 
Feb. 12, 2021. BAAQMD staff indicated that the facility’s plan to construct an 
enhanced enclosure for loading, in addition to adding a Blue Smoke Abatement 
System would help alleviate the odors, according to April 2, 2021 correspondence 
from Planning Director Jordan Klein.1

The City of Berkeley began issuing NOVs on Jan. 11, 2021 as recent inspections 
uncovered insufficient enclosures of the asphalt truck loading area. LeHigh Hanson 
was required to resubmit application materials for a building permit for construction of 
an enhanced enclosure as well as a Blue Smoke Abatement System that the 
company was opting to install in the loading area. As LeHigh Hanson failed to 
resubmit the materials by the stated February 1, 2021 deadline, the City issued a 
citation warning on February 10, 2021, indicating that if the company failed to comply 
within 15 days, the City would issue daily administrative citations with penalties. 
Additionally, a second violation was added to the warning related to their failure to 
entirely vacuum sweep the required portion of their facility to control dust. LeHigh 
Hanson was able to comply shortly thereafter, resubmitting their plans by Feb. 16, 
2021; the city approved the plans on March 1, 2021. Two days later, on March 3, the 
City issued another citation warning to complete construction and inspections 
associated with the enhanced enclosure system and Blue Smoke Abatement 
System. While the asphalt plant was able to complete construction of the enhanced 
enclosure shortly thereafter, it wasn’t until July 2021 that the company secured the 
permitting for the electrical work for the Blue Smoke Abatement System and made it 

1 See Planning Director Jordan Klein’s letter to the Sierra Club regarding enforcement of pollution 
control measures at Lehigh Hanson’s asphalt plant, attached.

Page 3 of 158

101



4

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7110 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7111
E-Mail: rkesarwani@cityofberkeley.info

operational. In total, City staff conducted seven different inspections from Dec. 2020 
to April 2021.

Health Outcomes in West Berkeley
One of the major contributing causes of asthma, which itself is a leading cause of 
childhood hospitalizations, is air pollution, according to Berkeley’s 2018 Health Status 
Report.2 The report finds that the West Berkeley zip code 94710 has the highest 
rates of asthma hospitalizations, particularly among children 0 to 14. The report also 
finds significant racial disparities, with asthma rates among our Black residents 10 
times higher than white residents.3 Given these health outcomes, we find that it is 
incumbent upon the City to fully exercise its permitting authority in order to ensure 
that industrial facilities mitigate any public health and environmental impacts.  

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS
Staff time. 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS
Strengthening the requirements of a use permit for industrial facilities is likely to 
result in mitigations that enhance environmental indicators, leading to a cleaner, 
safer environment for all.

CONTACT PERSON
Councilmember Rashi Kesarwani, District 1               (510) 981-7110

Attachments:
1999 Settlement Agreement
May 26, 2015 Status Report: Berkeley Asphalt; Pacific Steel Casting: Air Quality  
   Inquiries (#38)
July 14, 2015 Status Report: West Berkeley Industry (#69)
January 20, 2015 Community Health Commission Council item (#25): West Berkeley 
   Industrial Plants Air Quality
Bay Area Air Quality Management’s Fact Sheet on Berkeley Asphalt, Dec. 9, 
   2020
Planning Director Jordan Klein’s email to the Sierra Club regarding enforcement 
   of pollution control measures at Lehigh Hanson’s asphalt plant

2 See City of Berkeley Health Status Report 2018, pages 42 & 43
3 City of Berkeley Healthy Status Report 2018, p. 43

Page 4 of 158

102

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Health_Human_Services/Level_3_-_Public_Health/2018-health-status-report-berkeley.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Health_Human_Services/Level_3_-_Public_Health/2018-health-status-report-berkeley.pdf


Page 5 of 158

103



Page 6 of 158

104



Page 7 of 158

105



Page 8 of 158

106



Page 9 of 158

107



Page 10 of 158

108



Page 11 of 158

109



Page 12 of 158

110



Page 13 of 158

111



Page 14 of 158

112



Page 15 of 158

113



Page 16 of 158

114



Page 17 of 158

115



Page 18 of 158

116



Page 19 of 158

117



Page 20 of 158

118



Page 21 of 158

119



Page 22 of 158

120



Page 23 of 158

121



Page 24 of 158

122



Page 25 of 158

123



Page 26 of 158

124



Page 27 of 158

125



Page 28 of 158

126



Page 29 of 158

127



Page 30 of 158

128



Page 31 of 158

129



Page 32 of 158

130



Page 33 of 158

131



Page 34 of 158

132



Page 35 of 158

133



Page 36 of 158

134



Page 37 of 158

135



Page 38 of 158

136



Page 39 of 158

137



Page 40 of 158

138



Page 41 of 158

139



Page 42 of 158

140



Page 43 of 158

141



Page 44 of 158

142



  INFORMATION CALENDAR 
 CITY COUNCIL  May 26, 2015 

lmaio@cityofberkeley.info · 510.981.7110 · cityofberkeley.info/lindamaio 
ldroste@cityofberkeley.info · 510.981.7180 · loridroste.com 

 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM: Councilmembers Linda Maio and Lori Droste 
 
SUBJECT: Status Report: Berkeley Asphalt; Pacific Steel Casting: Air Quality 

Inquiries 
 
INTRODUCTION 
On January 20, 2015, the Berkeley City Council passed the following actions: 
  

1. Councilmembers Linda Maio and Lori Droste to work with residents, businesses, 
and City Staff to review complaints and make good faith efforts to mitigate 
impacts in the areas where the City has authority such as noise and odors and to 
bring their findings back to City Council. 

 
2. Direct the City Manager to enforce the terms of the Use Permit and the 1999 

Settlement Agreement with the Oceanview Neighborhood Association. 
 

3. If the City Manager and delegated staff or department finds the West Berkeley 
Lehigh Asphalt Company plant is not compliant with the Use Permit or the 1999 
Settlement Agreement with the Oceanview Neighborhood Association, the City 
and its jurisdictional bodies or the appropriate authority implements corrective 
action and enforces the 1999 Settlement Agreement Use Permit immediately. 

 
CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECT 
On January 20, 2015, the City Council tasked Councilmembers Maio and Droste to 
review complaints made regarding air quality in West Berkeley. Subsequently, 
Councilmembers Maio and Droste discussed concerns with residents. 
 
The City of Berkeley’s Economic Development Department aided in scheduling site 
visits to both businesses. During these site visits, we discussed resident concerns, the 
1999 Settlement Agreement with Berkeley Asphalt, and reviewed various operational 
standards of both industrial companies. 
 
FINDINGS 
Neighborhood Concerns 

Page 45 of 158

143

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
38



  

 

Councilmember Droste met with several groups of residents to review their concerns 
regarding industry in West Berkeley. Concerns largely fell into the following five 
categories: 
 

1. Public health 
2. Regulatory bodies 
3. Reporting protocol 
4. Business practices 
5. Information access 

 
Public health 
All of the residents interviewed shared the concern of odorous and non-odorous 
emissions on the community at large, particularly children in nearby homes and schools. 
In addition to these environmental and physical health concerns, some residents 
expressed increased anxiety when smelling odorous emissions. Another resident also 
stated that she was interested in the City’s disaster preparedness plan in the industrial 
areas where hazardous materials (i.e. liquid oxygen) are common. 
  
Regulatory bodies 
Many residents are concerned that industry in West Berkeley is violating local, state, 
and federal regulations, specifically the EPA Clean Air and Water Act and OSHA 
standards. Some residents also expressed interest in operations oversight and whether 
there are appropriate resources to inspect and mitigate concerns. In particular, there is 
a general concern over enforcement procedures and penalties if a violation occurs. The 
residents feel that the odors and occasional noise disturbances constitute a nuisance as 
defined by Code 23B.64.020. Furthermore, a few residents stated their concern over 
whether the Council-adopted Community Environmental Advisory Commission 
recommendation from March 13, 2007, was examined and acted upon. 
  
Reporting protocol 
Residents expressed displeasure over the air quality complaint process through Bay 
Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD). Complaints focused on the following 
issues: 

● The three notices of violation in 30 days for a public nuisance declaration is too 
lenient. 

● The five confirmed complaint threshold per day is insufficient. 
● Complaint lines with investigators are not available at all hours. 
● Complaint forms should be more detailed. 
● Residents are limited to one complaint a day. 
● Residents must be home and interact with an inspector if a complaint is logged. 

Often a smell has dissipated once an inspector has arrived.  
● The perception that public official complaints have more weight than residential 

complaints. 
● Individuals under 18 can’t file a complaint. 
● Reliance on an inspector’s sense of smell is not scientific. 

Page 46 of 158

144



  

 

  
Businesses practices 
Several residents claim that some industries in West Berkeley may not be following 
protocols for good business. Namely, they seem to be concerned that weekend and 
after-hour operations disturb residents. 
  
Information Access 
Residents feel that they were not notified of the impacts of existing industry when 
purchasing or renting their homes. Overall, these residents are unclear about what 
substances are contained in the emissions. 
 
Site Visits and Current Practices 
Pacific Steel & Casting Company, LLC (PSC) 
On March 3, 2015, Councilmembers Maio and Droste visited PSC, took a tour and met 
with management to discuss business practices and general resident concerns. 
Attached is PSC's most recent Emissions Minimization Plan (Attachment 1).  
 
Lehigh Hanson Berkeley Asphalt 
On March 27, 2015, Councilmembers Maio and Droste visited Berkeley Asphalt, took a 
tour and met with management, and went over the 1999 Settlement Agreement in 
detail. The City Manager’s Office is still in the process of reviewing that agreement.  
The following is a summary of what was discussed: 
 

● How are the factories prepared to handle a hazardous explosion in the area? 
Berkeley Asphalt trains their employees annually to handle hazardous materials 
onsite, which includes Hazardous Communications. As part of site specific 
training, they notify all persons on site of designated emergency evacuation 
meeting point. 

 
● When do the factories operate? 

Berkeley Asphalt’s permit allows them to operate 24 hours/day. The most 
common operating hours are 7:00AM to 3:00PM M-F. If they have production on 
the weekend or at night, Councilmember Maio and the Deputy City Manager are 
notified. These off-shift operations usually occur during the summer and fall, 
which is historically the busiest production period. 

 
● Has the asphalt company updated any technology to accommodate the warm 

mix? 
See the attached information on the MAXAM AquaBlack system (Attachment 2). 
This technology is fully implemented. 

 
● How is equipment modernized or kept up to date? 

In order to be sure equipment is operating properly, oil samples are taken 
monthly, and vibration testing occurs twice a year. Equipment is replaced as it 
wears with like-for-like replacement equipment or with improved technology.  

Page 47 of 158

145



  

 

 
● Is Berkeley Asphalt compliant with the 1999 Settlement Agreement? 

Here is a review of current practices: 
○ Distinguishing appropriate truck routes (haul routes):  

■ Bilingual notices including a map to customers and suppliers about 
appropriate truck routes and a process to ensure the routes are 
followed.  

■ Signs at the facility direct drivers where to go and of correct routes. 
○ Noise mitigation:  

■ All employees receive a notice about the use of each of the 
following pieces of noise mitigation equipment: 

● Sound barrier along eastern side 
● Sound attenuators  
● Sound absorbing barriers  

○ Bucket elevator head 
○ Screen deck tower 
○ Slat conveyor head 
○ Barriers covering aggregate bin wall and pugmill  

● Air exhaust valve mufflers (20 throughout the plant) 
● Exhaust stack tubular power flow silencer 
● Installed “white noise” back-up alarm on the loader (much 

quieter than conventional back-up alarms) 
○ Tarping:  

■ A notice to customers and suppliers includes a recommendation 
that they tarp their loads. Tarping does not mitigate odors but 
prevents material from spilling out. 

○ Current emissions monitoring: 
■ Berkeley Asphalt conducts tests (Attachment 3) at least every two 

years as required by the BAAQMD permit. 
■ Berkeley Asphalt contracts with a dust mitigation company whose 

equipment is on site  
 

Additionally, in 2013, Berkeley Asphalt made process improvements. A list of those 
recommendations and accompanying changes is attached (Attachment 4). 
 
FUTURE ACTIONS 
Councilmembers Maio and Droste have requested a meeting with BAAQMD to answer 
the following questions: 

● What are the odorous and non-odorous emissions from the industries in West 
Berkeley, what is their cumulative toxicity level, and what can be done to curb 
them? 

● What studies have been done/could be done to examine the cumulative impact 
of emissions in West Berkeley? 

● How can the air quality complaint process be altered to be more user-friendly and 
efficient? 

Page 48 of 158

146



  

 

● Why are inspectors not available 24-7? 
● What training do inspectors receive? 
● How to inspectors trace the source of an odor and what is then done to mitigate 

the odor? 
● What sampling tools do inspectors use? 
● Why can residents only make one complaint a day? 
● Why must residents remain home and interact with an inspector if a complaint is 

logged? 
● Why can’t minors file a complaint? 
● What alternatives to a subjective smell test are available? 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Councilmembers Maio and Droste will submit a complete report on their findings and 
recommendations to Council before the summer break. 
 
CONTACT 
Councilmember Linda Maio, District 1, 510-981-7110 
Councilmember Lori Droste, District 8, 510-981-7180 

Page 49 of 158

147



Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 1 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

Regulation 12, Miscellaneous Standards of Performance, Rule 13 

Foundry and Forging Operations 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 Pacific Steel Casting Company LLC 

 
District Site #187, 703, 1603 

1333 Second Street 
Berkeley, CA 94710 

      
      

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 1
Page 50 of 158

148



Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 2 
 

 

 

Subject                                                                                      Page # 
 
Designation of Confidential Business Information                      5 
Company Description                                                                   6 
Company Organization Chart                                                       8 
Schedule of Management Operators                                           10 
Operations Subject to EMP and Schedule of Operations           12 
Mold & Core Making Operations -  
Equipment, materials & Abatement                                            14 
Binder, mix ratio & MSDS                                                          20 
Abatement devices, PM & PM schedule                                     22 
Housekeeping measures to abate                                                 24 
Metal Management - 
Metal alloys                                                                                 26 
Practices to reduce fugitive emissions                                        27 
Furnace Operations - 
Furnace name and abatement devices                                         29 
Abatement devices, PM & PM schedule                                    30 
Housekeeping measures to abate                                                31 
Casting and Cooling Operations - 
Equipment name, cooling time, location and abatement            38 
Verification of cooling times                                                      39 
Abatement devices, PM & PM schedule                                    40 
Housekeeping measures to abate                                                42 
Shake Out Operations - 
Shakeout name and abatement devices                                       44 
Abatement devices, PM & PM schedule                                    45 
Housekeeping measures to abate                                                46 
Finishing Operations - 
Operation Type & location, abatement devices                          48 
Abatement devices, PM & PM schedule                                    52 
Housekeeping measures to abate                                                54 
Sand Reclamation - 
Sand Reclamation Equipment name and abatement devices     56 
Abatement devices, PM & PM schedule                                    57 
Housekeeping measures to abate                                                58 
Dross and Slag Management 
Dross and Slag Management                                                      60 
Abatement devices, PM & PM schedule                                    61 

Page 51 of 158

149



Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 3 
 

Housekeeping measures to abate                                                  63 
List of all abatement equipment and sources abated                     64 
Technical Data -  
Process Flow Data - figures in Appendix B                                 68 
Facility Layout / Floor Plan - figures in Appendix C                   69 
Fugitive Emissions Previously Realized                                      71 
Schedule for implementation of EMP prior to May 1                  73 
New or Future elements to be implemented                                 74 
 
 
 
 
Appendix A                   403.1 3.A - Organization Chart 
Appendix B                   403.1 A - Process Flow diagrams 
Appendix C                   403.1.B - Facility Layout / Floor Plans  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 52 of 158

150



Page 53 of 158

151



Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 5 
 

 

Describe the information you designate as “CONFIDENTIAL” that are trade secret or 
otherwise exempt under law from public disclosure. Specify what is “CONFIDENTIAL” and 
include specific section(s) and corresponding page number(s). 

 
Name of Section / Page Number(s) 

 
Description of Confidential Information 

Organization Chart / Appendix A This section is business confidential for security reasons and since 
their disclosure may give competitors and economic advantage. 
No bearing on air emissions. 

Schedule of Operations / Pg 12 This section is business confidential for security reasons. 

Mold and Core Making Operations / 
Page 14-18 

Binders used at the facility are business confidential since their 
disclosure may give competitors and economic advantage 

Description of Operations-Mold and 
Core Making Operations / Page 20 

The Binders, Mix Ratio & MSDS information is propriatary  

Appendix C All pages Plant Layout is business confidential for security reasons and since 
their disclosure may give competitors and economic advantage 

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

 

Page 54 of 158

152



Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 6 
 

 

 
Pacific Steel Casting Company LLC purchased Pacific Steel Casting Company.  The tranfer of assests was 
completed on August 29, 2014 
 
Pacific Steel Casting Company LLC (PSC LLC) has three (3) separate steel foundries, which are located 
within a two-block area in Berkeley, California. They are generally referred to as Plant 187, Plant 703 and 
Plant 1603. The facilities are located in the Berkeley manufacturing and industrial area. Other industrial 
facilities such as a forging manufacturer, pattern shop, machine shop, railroad lines, and brewery are also 
located near PSC LLC. Further, PSC LLC is located adjacent and close to a major East Bay freeway. 
 
PSC LLC produces high quality steel casting using different sand molding processes. Thousands of 
custom-made parts are produced at PSC LLC that are used in everyday lives by individuals and 
businesses. PSC LLC cast steel parts can be found in bridges, wheelchair lifts, truck parts, agricultural 
equipment, valves for sanitary sewers, public water systems, the oil and gas industry, landfill compactors 
and, in the structural aspects of buildings. 
 
PSC LLC employs over 400 employees. Most of them are union  members of the Glass Molders and 
Plastics Union, Local 164. Many of PSC LLC employees are second or third generation foundry 
employees. More than 85% of PSC LLC employees live near PSC LLC commuting within 15 miles or 
less. Employees from  PSC LLC participate in health and welfare and pension benefits.PSC LLC 
maintains an excellent safety and health record. PSC LLC regularly works with material manufacturers to 
develop better and lower emitting products. 
 
PSC LLC purchases scrap metal from qualified vendors. The scrap is melted into metal that are alloys of 
steel. The molten steel is poured into sand molds. This is the basic sand mold method of producing 
castings. The metal inside these molds cools and hardens to form the castings. Once the castings have 
cooled and adopted their forms, they are sent to the shakeout station in which the sand is separated from 
the casting both internally and externally. Sand from the shakeout station is transferred to a reclamation 
unit where it is cleaned of material and processed for reuse. This sand reuse conserves tons of new sand 
that would otherwise be needed and eliminates tons of sand from landfill disposal. The sand reclamation 
unit at PSC LLC is, and always has been, state of the art equipment. The cooled castings are next sent to 
the finishing department before going to the shipping department.  
 
In general, each Company plant produces steel castings using sand molding processes that are best suited 
for the design and size of the casting made at that plant. The binders are mixed with the sand and are used 
to harden the sand chemically with or without external heat. 
 
Plant I87 began operations in the 1930's making medium sized castings using primarily the Green Sand 
molding process. The binder for green sand molds is a combination of clay, water, and cornstarch 
compacted to form the necessary molds. 
 
Plant 703 began operations in 1975. This plant uses a Shell process for the molding system. This sand 
molding process uses a binder mixed with the sand and baked to form the necessary molds and cores for 
the castings. 
 

Page 55 of 158

153



Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 7 
 

Plant 1603 began operations in 1981. This plant primarily uses a phenolic urethane binder, which is a 
chemical binder mixed with the sand. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 56 of 158

154



Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 8 
 

 

- -  

 

A. Company Organizational Chart- Attach a copy of the organizational chart of the 
company, which describes the business structure and includes the name of the facility’s 
Responsible Official. 
 

B. Schedule of Management Operators - Provide the names and contact 
information of the Onsite Responsible Manager(s) and Onsite Alternate Contact(s) and 
their duty schedule. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 57 of 158

155



Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 9 
 

A. Company Organizational Chart 
 
In Appendix A - Confidential 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 58 of 158

156



Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 10 
 

B. Schedule of Management Operators 
 

Onsite Responsible Manager(s) 
 

Name: Confidential 
Title: Environmental, Health & Safety Director 
Phone: Confidential 
Email: Confidential 
Schedule/Shift: Confidential 

 
Name: Confidential 
Title: Chief Operating Officer 
Phone: Confidential 
Email: Confidential 
Schedule/Shift: Confidential 

 
 

Onsite Alternate Contact(s) 
 

Name: Confidential 
Title: Environmental Technician 
Phone: Confidential 
Email: Confidential 
Schedule/Shift: Confidential 
 
Name: Confidential 
Title: Supervisor 
Phone: Confidential 
Email: Confidential 
Schedule/Shift: Confidential 

 
Name: Confidential 
Title: Supervisor 
Phone: Confidential 
Email: Confidential 
Schedule/Shift: Confidential 
 
 

  

Page 59 of 158

157



Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 11 

 

 

Contents of the EMP 

12-13-403 

The owner of operator of the foundry or forge subject to Section 12-13-401 shall prepare a 
complete and accurate EMP that details the management practices, measures, equipment 
and procedures that are employed or scheduled to be implemented to minimize fugitive 
emissions of particulate matter and odorous substances for the operations subject to the 
EMP. 

 

A. Operations Subject to EMP and Schedule of Operations 
 

B. Description of Operations - Facilities with operations under 12-13-402 must list and 
provide description of all process equipment, material usages, abatement and control 
equipment and monitoring parameters to reduce fugitive emissions of particulates and 
odors. Please provide information for all the following operations that apply.   

 
C. Management Practices to Reduce Fugitive Emissions- Facilities with 

operations under 12-13-402 must list and provide descriptions of all preventative 
maintenance activities, pollution prevention and source reduction measures to reduce 
fugitive emissions of particulates and odors. Provide schedules of activities conducted.   

 
D. Description of Abatement and Control Equipment- Facilities must provide a 

comprehensive list of all abatement and control equipment for operations subject to 12-
13-402 and name the source(s) of operation in which it abates. 

 
 

  

Page 60 of 158

158



Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 12 
 

A. Operations Subject to EMP and Schedule of Operations  

The EMP shall address all of the following operations that are conducted at a foundry or 
forge per 12-13-402. 

Please check all facility operations that apply and provide the schedule of operation.  

 
Operation 

 
Schedule of Operations 

   402.1       Mold and Core Making 
Operations 

Confidential 

   402.2  Metal Management 
 

Confidential 

   402.3  Furnace Operations, including 
tapping and pouring 

 

Confidential 

   402.4  Forging Operations 
 

N/A 

   402.5  Casting and Cooling Operation 
 

Confidential 

   402.6  Shake Out Operations 
 

Confidential 

   402.7   Finishing Operations 
 

Confidential 

   402.8  Sand Reclamation 
 

Confidential 

   402.9   Dross and Slag Management 
 

Confidential 

 
 
  

Page 61 of 158

159



Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 13 
 

 

 

 

 

 

402.1 Mold and Core Making Operations 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 62 of 158

160



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
1

4
 

  B
. 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 -

 M
O

L
D

 A
N

D
 C

O
R

E
 M

A
K

IN
G

 O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
 

 

 
 

 
N

A
M

E
 O

F
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
 U

S
E

D
 I

N
 M

O
L

D
IN

G
 

O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
 

 
A

B
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

 

Section # 

E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

N
a

m
e

 a
n

d
 

M
a
n

u
fa

c
tu

re
r 

/M
o

d
e

l 
#
 

 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
S

#
 

a
n

d
 

A
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

  
N

E
S

H
A

P
s

 
S

e
c

ti
o

n
 

  
  

 
B

in
d

e
rs

 
 

   
 C

o
a

ti
n

g
s

 

    
A

d
h

e
s

iv
e

s
 

  
M

o
ld

 
R

e
le

a
s

e
 

A
g

e
n

ts
 

    
O

th
e

r 

   
S

o
u

rc
e

 
a

b
a

te
d

 

   A
b

a
te

m
e

n
t 

R
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 

b
y
 P

e
rm

it
 

  
A

#
 

   
T

y
p

e
 o

f 
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 
 

a
n

d
  

P
u

rp
o

s
e

 o
f 

A
b

a
te

m
e

n
t 

  
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 
M

o
n

it
o

re
d

 

  
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 P

a
ra

m
e

te
rs

 

1   

18
7-

 4
 M

ol
d 

m
ac

hi
ne

 
B

rit
is

h 
M

ol
di

ng
 

M
ac

hi
ne

s B
M

M
 

 C
T 

3 

Ex
em

pt
 

 40
 C

FR
 

63
.1

08
86

 

C
on

fid
en

t
ia

l 
N

A
 

N
A

 
C

on
fid

en
t

ia
l 

N
A

 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

N
A

 

  
  

  
   

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

.2
 

 

18
7 

- 2
 S

qu
ee

ze
r 

m
ac

hi
ne

s 
 SP

O
 

Ex
em

pt
 

 40
 C

FR
 

63
.1

08
86

   
  

C
on

fid
en

t
ia

l 
N

A
 

N
A

 
C

on
fid

en
t

ia
l 

N
A

 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

N
A

 

  
  

  
   

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

3  

18
7 

- 2
 M

ol
di

ng
 

m
ac

hi
ne

s B
M

M
 

 C
T 

6 

Ex
em

pt
 

 40
 C

FR
 

63
.1

08
86

 

C
on

fid
en

t
ia

l  
N

A
 

N
A

 
C

on
fid

en
t

ia
l  

N
A

 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

N
A

 

  
  

  
   

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

4 

18
7 

- 2
 C

or
e 

m
ac

hi
ne

 
D

ep
en

da
bl

e 
 40

0 
FA

, 2
00

SA
 

Ex
em

pt
 

 40
 C

FR
 

63
.1

08
86

 

C
on

fid
en

t
ia

l 
N

A
 

N
A

 
C

on
fid

en
t

ia
l 

N
A

 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

N
A

 

  
  

  
   

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

5 

18
7 

- 2
 C

or
e 

m
ac

hi
ne

s 
R

ed
fo

rd
 

 H
S 

22
 R

A
 

Ex
em

pt
 

 40
 C

FR
 

63
.1

08
86

 

C
on

fid
en

t
ia

l  
N

A
 

N
A

 
C

on
fid

en
t

ia
l  

N
A

 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

N
A

 

  
  

  
   

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

6 

18
7 

- 6
 C

or
e 

bl
ow

er
 sy

st
em

s 
B

 &
 P

 
 C

B
 5

 

Ex
em

pt
 

 40
 C

FR
 

63
.1

08
86

 

C
on

fid
en

t
ia

l 
C

on
fid

en
tia

l 
C

on
fid

en
tia

l 
C

on
fid

en
t

ia
l 

N
A

 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

N
A

 

  
  

  
   

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

7 

70
3 

- 2
 S

he
ll 

M
ol

di
ng

 
M

ac
hi

ne
s  

 D
SM

 3
 

70
3 

S2
0,

 
S2

4  
 40

 C
FR

 
63

.1
08

86
 

C
on

fid
en

t
ia

l  
N

A
 

C
on

fid
en

tia
l 

C
on

fid
en

t
ia

l  
N

A
 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

N
A

 

  
  

  
   

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

Page 63 of 158

161



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
1

5
 

  

A
. 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 -

 M
O

L
D

 A
N

D
 C

O
R

E
 M

A
K

IN
G

 O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
 

 

 
 

 
N

A
M

E
 O

F
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
 U

S
E

D
 I

N
 M

O
L

D
IN

G
 

O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
 

 
A

B
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

 

Section # 

E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

N
a

m
e

 a
n

d
 

M
a
n

u
fa

c
tu

re
r 

/M
o

d
e

l 
#
 

 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
S

#
 

a
n

d
 

A
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

  
N

E
S

H
A

P
s

 
S

e
c

ti
o

n
 

  
  

 
B

in
d

e
rs

 
 

   
 C

o
a

ti
n

g
s

 

    
A

d
h

e
s

iv
e

s
 

  
M

o
ld

 
R

e
le

a
s

e
 

A
g

e
n

ts
 

    
O

th
e

r 

   
S

o
u

rc
e

 
a

b
a

te
d

 

   A
b

a
te

m
e

n
t 

R
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 

b
y
 P

e
rm

it
 

  
A

#
 

   
T

y
p

e
 o

f 
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 
 

a
n

d
  

P
u

rp
o

s
e

 o
f 

A
b

a
te

m
e

n
t 

  
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 
M

o
n

it
o

re
d

 

  
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 P

a
ra

m
e

te
rs

 

   8 

70
3 

--
Sh

al
co

 
M

ol
di

ng
 

M
ac

hi
ne

 
 D

SM
 3

 

70
3 

S2
1 

 40
 C

FR
 

63
.1

08
86

 

C
on

fid
en

t
ia

l  
N

A
 

C
on

fid
en

tia
l 

C
on

fid
en

t
ia

l  
N

A
 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

9 

70
3 

- 2
 S

ha
lc

o 
M

ol
di

ng
 

M
ac

hi
ne

s  
 D

SM
 3

 

70
3 

S2
2,

 
S2

3 
 40

 C
FR

 
63

.1
08

86
 

C
on

fid
en

t
ia

l 
N

A
 

C
on

fid
en

tia
l 

C
on

fid
en

t
ia

l 
N

A
 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
7 

C
ar

bo
n 

A
bs

or
pt

io
n 

U
ni

t 
 O

do
r C

on
tro

l  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

Pr
es

su
re

 d
ro

p 
ac

ro
ss

 C
ar

bo
n 

un
its

 
1<

P<
9,

 T
em

p 
<1

10
 F

 
O

do
r l

ev
el

 <
 6

0 
od

or
 u

ni
ts

  
  

  

10
 

70
3 

- 2
 

B
ea

rd
sl

ey
 &

 
Pi

pe
r c

or
e 

m
ac

h.
 

 SF
 6

 C
A

 

70
3 

S1
3,

 
S1

4 
 40

 C
FR

 
63

.1
08

86
 

C
on

fid
en

t
ia

l 
N

A
 

N
A

 
C

on
fid

en
t

ia
l 

N
A

 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

11
 

70
3 

- 4
 R

ed
fo

rd
 

co
re

 m
ac

hi
ne

s 
 H

S 
16

 R
A

 

70
3 

S1
5,

 
S1

6,
 S

17
, 

S1
8  

 40
 C

FR
 

63
.1

08
86

  
 

C
on

fid
en

t
ia

l 
N

A
 

N
A

 
C

on
fid

en
t

ia
l 

N
A

 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

12
 

18
7 

- S
im

ps
on

 
Sa

nd
 M

ul
le

r 
 1.

5  

18
7 

S-
10

 
 40

 C
FR

 
63

.1
08

86
 

C
on

fid
en

t
ia

l 
N

A
 

N
A

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
10

 

B
ag

ho
us

e,
 P

ul
se

 Je
t 

 Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

W
ee

kl
y 

vi
su

al
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 o
f A

10
 a

re
 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
in

te
rio

r a
nd

 e
xt

er
io

r 
of

 th
e 

un
it 

fo
r m

ec
ha

ni
ca

l i
nt

eg
rit

y.
 

T h
e 

fil
te

r b
ag

s a
re

 v
is

ua
lly

 in
sp

ec
te

d 
fo

r r
ip

s/
te

ar
s. 

V
er

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 p

ul
se

 je
t 

ac
tiv

ity
 is

 v
er

ifi
ed

 w
ee

kl
y 

by
 th

e 
in

sp
ec

to
r. 

  

13
 

18
7 

- O
m

co
 

Sa
nd

 M
ix

er
 

 M
S 

1 

Ex
em

pt
 

 40
 C

FR
 

63
.1

08
86

 

C
on

fid
en

t
ia

l 
N

A
 

N
A

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
-1

0 

B
ag

ho
us

e,
 P

ul
se

 Je
t 

 Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

W
ee

kl
y 

vi
su

al
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 o
f A

10
 a

re
 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
in

te
rio

r a
nd

 e
xt

er
io

r 
of

 th
e 

un
it 

fo
r m

ec
ha

ni
ca

l i
nt

eg
rit

y.
 

Th
e 

fil
te

r b
ag

s a
re

 v
is

ua
lly

 in
sp

ec
te

d 
fo

r r
ip

s/
te

ar
s. 

V
er

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 p

ul
se

 je
t Page 64 of 158

162



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
1

6
 

       

ac
tiv

ity
 is

 v
er

ifi
ed

 w
ee

kl
y 

by
 th

e 
in

sp
ec

to
r. 

14
 

18
7 

- T
in

ke
r 

O
m

eg
a 

Sa
nd

 
m

ix
er

  
 TO

M
 2

50
 

Ex
em

pt
 

 40
 C

FR
 

63
.1

08
86

 
C

on
fid

en
t

ia
l 

N
A

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
N

A
 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
-1

0 

Sa
m

e 
as

 #
12

 
   

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

W
ee

kl
y 

vi
su

al
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 o
f A

10
 a

re
 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
in

te
rio

r a
nd

 e
xt

er
io

r 
of

 th
e 

un
it 

fo
r m

ec
ha

ni
ca

l i
nt

eg
rit

y.
 

Th
e 

fil
te

r b
ag

s a
re

 v
is

ua
lly

 in
sp

ec
te

d 
fo

r r
ip

s/
te

ar
s. 

V
er

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 p

ul
se

 je
t 

ac
tiv

ity
 is

 v
er

ifi
ed

 w
ee

kl
y 

by
 th

e 
in

sp
ec

to
r.  

Page 65 of 158

163



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
1

7
 

  

A
. 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 -

 M
O

L
D

 A
N

D
 C

O
R

E
 M

A
K

IN
G

 O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
 

 

 
 

 
N

A
M

E
 O

F
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
 U

S
E

D
 I

N
 M

O
L

D
IN

G
 

O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
 

 
A

B
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

 

Section # 

E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

N
a

m
e

 a
n

d
 

M
a
n

u
fa

c
tu

re
r 

/M
o

d
e

l 
#
 

 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
S

#
 

a
n

d
 

A
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

  
N

E
S

H
A

P
s

 
S

e
c

ti
o

n
 

  
  

 
B

in
d

e
rs

 
 

   
 C

o
a

ti
n

g
s

 

    
A

d
h

e
s

iv
e

s
 

  
M

o
ld

 
R

e
le

a
s

e
 

A
g

e
n

ts
 

    
O

th
e

r 

   
S

o
u

rc
e

 
a

b
a

te
d

 

   A
b

a
te

m
e

n
t 

R
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 

b
y
 P

e
rm

it
 

  
A

#
 

   
T

y
p

e
 o

f 
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 
 

a
n

d
  

P
u

rp
o

s
e

 o
f 

A
b

a
te

m
e

n
t 

  
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 
M

o
n

it
o

re
d

 

  
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 P

a
ra

m
e

te
rs

 

15
 

18
7 

- B
 &

 P
 

Sa
nd

 M
ul

le
r  

 75
 B

 

18
7 

S-
8 

 40
 C

FR
 

63
.1

08
86

 

C
on

fid
en

t
ia

l 
N

A
 

N
A

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
-1

, 
A

-7
 

B
ag

ho
us

e,
 S

ha
ki

ng
 in

to
 

C
ar

bo
n 

A
ds

or
pt

io
n 

 
 O

do
rs

 &
 P

ar
tic

ul
at

e 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

Pr
es

su
re

 d
ro

p 
ac

ro
ss

 C
ar

bo
n 

un
its

 
1<

P<
9,

 T
em

p 
<1

10
 F

 

16
 

70
3 

- S
he

ll 
sa

nd
 

co
at

in
g 

sy
st

em
 

 B
&

P 
M

ul
le

r 

70
3 

S-
5 

th
ru

  
S -

12
 

 40
 C

FR
 

63
.1

08
86

 

C
on

fid
en

t
ia

l 
N

A
 

N
A

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
-4

 

B
ag

ho
us

e,
 S

ha
ki

ng
 

 Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 - 

V
is

ua
l i

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
fo

r f
ilt

er
 a

nd
 

m
ec

ha
ni

ca
l i

nt
eg

rit
y 

an
d 

pa
rti

cu
la

te
 

Pr
es

su
re

 d
ro

p 
ac

ro
ss

 b
ag

ho
us

e  

17
 

16
03

 - 
O

m
co

 
Sa

nd
 M

ul
le

r 
 LA

M
 5

0  

16
03

 S
-1

4 
 40

 C
FR

 
63

.1
08

86
 

C
on

fid
en

t
ia

l 
C

on
fid

en
tia

l 
C

on
fid

en
tia

l 
C

on
fid

en
t

ia
l 

N
A

 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
-5

, 
A

-3
, 

A
-7

, 
A

-8
 

D
ry

 fi
lte

r, 
in

to
 

B
ag

ho
us

e,
 P

ul
se

 Je
t i

nt
o 

C
ar

bo
n 

A
ds

or
pt

io
n 

 O
do

rs
 &

 P
ar

tic
ul

at
e 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
3 

an
d 

A
7 

- P
re

ss
ur

e 
dr

op
 a

cr
os

s 
ba

gh
ou

se
s -

 4
.5

<P
<7

; 
A

5 
- V

is
ua

l i
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

fo
r f

ilt
er

 
in

te
gr

ity
  

  
  

A
8 

- F
ID

 c
on

tin
uo

us
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

 
A

t 5
0 

pp
m

 in
 a

 9
0 

m
in

ut
e 

av
er

ag
e)

: 
H

av
e 

fu
ll 

lo
ad

 c
ar

bo
n 

(5
2,

00
0 

lb
s.)

 o
n 

st
an

db
y 

w
ith

in
 3

 b
us

in
es

s d
ay

s. 
A

t 6
5 

pp
m

 in
 a

 9
0 

m
in

ut
e 

av
er

ag
e 

ch
an

ge
 c

ar
bo

n 
no

 la
te

r t
ha

n 
7 

ca
le

nd
ar

 
da

ys
. 

A
t 8

5 
pp

m
 in

 a
 9

0 
m

in
ut

e 
av

er
ag

e 
- 

C
ea

se
 sh

ak
eo

ut
 o

pe
ra

tio
ns

 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 a

nd
 p

ou
rin

g 
op

er
at

io
ns

 
w

ith
in

 2
 h

ou
rs

. 
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

In
le

t F
ac

e 
ve

lo
ci

ty
 in

to
 

co
ol

in
g 

ro
om

, m
in

im
um

 2
00

 ft
/m

in
.  

18
 

16
03

 - 
N

o 
B

ak
e 

M
ol

di
ng

 S
ys

te
m

  
   

  
  

16
03

 S
18

, 
S2

0 
 40

 C
FR

 
63

.1
08

86
 

C
on

fid
en

t
ia

l 
C

on
fid

en
tia

l 
C

on
fid

en
tia

l 
C

on
fid

en
t

ia
l 

N
A

 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
-3

, 
A

-7
, 

A
-

8 
  

 
  

B
ag

ho
us

e,
 P

ul
se

 Je
t i

nt
o 

C
ar

bo
n 

A
ds

or
pt

io
n 

 O
do

rs
 &

 P
ar

tic
ul

at
e 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
3 

an
d 

A
7 

- P
re

ss
ur

e 
dr

op
 a

cr
os

s 
ba

gh
ou

se
s 4

.5
<P

<7
;  

V
is

ua
l i

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
A

3 
an

d 
A

7 
- P

re
ss

ur
e 

dr
op

 a
cr

os
s 

ba
gh

ou
se

s -
 4

.5
<P

<7
; V

is
ua

l 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

  
  

  
A

8 
- F

ID
 c

on
tin

uo
us

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
 

A
t 5

0 
pp

m
 in

 a
 9

0 
m

in
ut

e 
av

er
ag

e)
: 

Page 66 of 158

164



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
1

8
 

 

H
av

e 
fu

ll 
lo

ad
 c

ar
bo

n 
(5

2,
00

0 
lb

s.)
 o

n 
st

an
db

y 
w

ith
in

 3
 b

us
in

es
s d

ay
s. 

A
t 6

5 
pp

m
 in

 a
 9

0 
m

in
ut

e 
av

er
ag

e 
ch

an
ge

 c
ar

bo
n 

no
 la

te
r t

ha
n 

7 
ca

le
nd

ar
 

da
ys

.  
A

t 8
5 

pp
m

 in
 a

 9
0 

m
in

ut
e 

av
er

ag
e 

- 
C

ea
se

 sh
ak

eo
ut

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 a
nd

 p
ou

rin
g 

op
er

at
io

ns
 

w
ith

in
 2

 h
ou

rs
. 

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
In

le
t F

ac
e 

ve
lo

ci
ty

 in
to

 
co

ol
in

g 
ro

om
, m

in
im

um
 2

00
 ft

/m
in

.  
  

  
  

19
 

16
03

 - 
K

lo
st

er
 

C
or

e 
Sa

nd
 

M
ix

er
  

 Ty
pe

 1
 

N
A

 
 40

 C
FR

 
63

.1
08

86
 

C
on

fid
en

t
ia

l  
C

on
fid

en
tia

l 
C

on
fid

en
tia

l 
C

on
fid

en
t

ia
l  

N
A

 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
-3

, 
A

-7
, 

A
-8

 

B
ag

ho
us

e,
 P

ul
se

 Je
t i

nt
o 

C
ar

bo
n 

A
ds

or
pt

io
n 

 O
do

r &
 P

ar
tic

ul
at

e 
M

at
te

r 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
3 

an
d 

A
7 

- P
re

ss
ur

e 
dr

op
 a

cr
os

s 
ba

gh
ou

se
s -

 4
.5

<P
<7

; 
V

is
ua

l i
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

  
  

  
A

8 
- F

ID
 c

on
tin

uo
us

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
 

A
t 5

0 
pp

m
 in

 a
 9

0 
m

in
ut

e 
av

er
ag

e)
: 

H
av

e 
fu

ll 
lo

ad
 c

ar
bo

n 
(5

2,
00

0 
lb

s.)
 o

n 
st

an
db

y 
w

ith
in

 3
 b

us
in

es
s d

ay
s. 

A
t 6

5 
pp

m
 in

 a
 9

0 
m

in
ut

e 
av

er
ag

e 
ch

an
ge

 c
ar

bo
n 

no
 la

te
r t

ha
n 

7 
ca

le
nd

ar
 

da
ys

.  
A

t 8
5 

pp
m

 in
 a

 9
0 

m
in

ut
e 

av
er

ag
e 

- 
C

ea
se

 sh
ak

eo
ut

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 a
nd

 p
ou

rin
g 

op
er

at
io

ns
 

w
ith

in
 2

 h
ou

rs
.  

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
In

le
t F

ac
e 

ve
lo

ci
ty

 in
to

 
co

ol
in

g 
ro

om
, m

in
im

um
 2

00
 ft

/m
in

.  

20
 

16
03

 - 
O

m
co

 
C

or
e 

Sa
nd

 
M

ix
er

 
 H

M
C

-5
 

N
A

 
 40

 C
FR

 
63

.1
08

86
 

C
on

fid
en

t
ia

l 
C

on
fid

en
tia

l 
C

on
fid

en
tia

l 
C

on
fid

en
t

ia
l 

N
A

 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

N
A

 

D
yn

am
ic

 A
ir 

Pu
ls

e 
C

le
an

er
 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
 Pa

rti
cu

la
te

 M
at

te
r 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 - 

V
is

ua
l I

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
- p

ar
tic

ul
at

e 

21
 

16
03

 - 
O

m
co

 
C

or
e 

Sa
nd

 
M

ix
er

 
 M

S1
 

N
A

 
 40

 C
FR

 
63

.1
08

86
 

C
on

fid
en

t
ia

l 
C

on
fid

en
tia

l 
C

on
fid

en
tia

l 
C

on
fid

en
t

ia
l 

N
A

 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
-3

, 
A

-7
, 

A
-8

 

B
ag

ho
us

e,
 P

ul
se

 Je
t i

nt
o 

C
ar

bo
n 

A
ds

or
pt

io
n 

 O
do

r &
 P

ar
tic

ul
at

e 
M

at
te

r 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
3 

an
d 

A
7 

- P
re

ss
ur

e 
dr

op
 a

cr
os

s 
ba

gh
ou

se
s -

 4
.5

<P
<7

; 
V

is
ua

l i
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

  
  

  
A

8 
- F

ID
 c

on
tin

uo
us

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
 

A
t 5

0 
pp

m
 in

 a
 9

0 
m

in
ut

e 
av

er
ag

e)
: 

H
av

e 
fu

ll 
lo

ad
 c

ar
bo

n 
(5

2,
00

0 
lb

s.)
 o

n 
st

an
db

y 
w

ith
in

 3
 b

us
in

es
s d

ay
s. 

A
t 6

5 
pp

m
 in

 a
 9

0 
m

in
ut

e 
av

er
ag

e 
ch

an
ge

 c
ar

bo
n 

no
 la

te
r t

ha
n 

7 
ca

le
nd

ar
 

da
ys

.  
A

t 8
5 

pp
m

 in
 a

 9
0 

m
in

ut
e 

av
er

ag
e 

- 
C

ea
se

 sh
ak

eo
ut

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 a
nd

 p
ou

rin
g 

op
er

at
io

ns
 Page 67 of 158

165



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
1

9
 

     

w
ith

in
 2

 h
ou

rs
. 

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
In

le
t F

ac
e 

ve
lo

ci
ty

 in
to

 
co

ol
in

g 
ro

om
, m

in
im

um
 2

00
 ft

/m
in

.  Page 68 of 158

166



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 20 

 

B. Description of Operations – MOLD AND CORE MAKING OPERATIONS 

 
Provide information on binders used in mold and core making operations. 

 

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 #
  

 
Name of Binder 

 
 

Binder Mix Ratio 

 
Name of Source(s) 
and/or District S# 

Where Binder  
Is Used 

 
 

Product Specification 
per MSDS 

1 Confidential Confidential No Bake Systems 
Plants 187 Cores & 
1603 Molding & 
Cores 

VOC CONTENT (%):  
Confidential 
 
PHENOL CONTENT (%):  
Confidential 
 

2 Confidential2 Confidential No Bake Systems 
Plants 187 Cores & 
1603 Molding & 
Cores 

VOC CONTENT (%):  
Confidential 
 
PHENOL CONTENT (%):  
Confidential 
 

3 Confidential Confidential No Bake Systems 
Plants 187 Cores & 
1603 Molding & 
Cores 

VOC CONTENT (%):  
Confidential 
 
PHENOL CONTENT (%):  
Confidential 
 

4 Confidential Confidential Plant 703 - Core & 
Shell molding 
S13 - S24 

VOC CONTENT (%):  
Confidential 
 
PHENOL CONTENT (%):  
Confidential 
 

5 Confidential Confidential Plant 703 - Core & 
Shell molding 
S13 - S24 

VOC CONTENT (%):  
Confidential 
 
PHENOL CONTENT (%):  
Confidential 
 

6 Confidential Confidential Plant 187 - CO 2 
Core Blower 
System 

VOC CONTENT (%):  
Confidential 
 
PHENOL CONTENT (%):  
Confidential 
 

7 Confidential Confidential Plant 187  Molding VOC CONTENT (%):  
Confidential 
 
PHENOL CONTENT (%):  

Page 69 of 158

167



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 21 
 

Confidential 
 

                        VOC CONTENT (%):        
 
PHENOL CONTENT (%):        
 

                        VOC CONTENT (%):        
 
PHENOL CONTENT (%):        
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 70 of 158

168



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 22 
 

C. Management Practices to Reduce Fugitive Emissions – MOLD AND CORE MAKING 
OPERATIONS 

 
Provide description of preventative maintenance (PM) activities including PM schedules and work 
practice standards for each abatement device for core and mold making operations.  

 

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 #
  

 
Name of Abatement Device 
and Manufacturer/Model # 

 
 

Description of  
Preventative Maintenance Activity 

and Work Practice Standards 

 
 
 

Schedule of PM 

1 

187 A8 Baghouse 
 
Torit/22,000 cfm  

1.Check manometer across baghouse 
0<P<7. 
2.Visual inspection - internal & external 
, check cartridge filter integrity and 
condition. 
3.Replace cartridge filters based on 
inspection and/or changing  manometer 
readings . 

1.Weekly  
 
2.SemiAnnual 
 
 
3.As required, based 
on inspection 

2 187 A7 Carbon Adsorption 
System 
 
Melrose/Blamer Eng. 60,000 cfm 

Replace carbon and prefilters  based on 
daily pressure readings across the 
carbon beds, prefilters and  the semi-
weekly odor tests  

As required - based on  
monitoring data 
(1<P<9), Odor test 
>25 odor units  

3 703 A4 Shaker Baghouse 
 
Industrial Clean Air/3-700SW 

1.Inspect & lube Shaker & Fan 
bearings, inspect & check sheaves & V 
belts 
2. Inspection of the interior of baghouse 
for structural integrity and fabric bag 
condition. Dye check baghouse and 
replace bags as necessary. Wire brush 
fan blades. 

1.Weekly 
 
2.Quarterly 

4 703 A7 Carbon Adsorption 
System 
 
Melrose 

Replace carbon and prefilters  based on 
daily pressure readings across the 
carbon beds, prefilters and  the semi-
weekly odor tests 

As required - based on  
monitoring data 
(1<P<9), Odor test 
>25 odor units 

5 187 A10 Baghouse, Pulse Jet 
 
5,600 cfm 

1. Check pulse jet pressures 
2. Inspection of the interior of baghouse 
for structural integrity and fabric bag 
condition. 
3. Replace filter bags based on 
inspection and/or changing  manometer 
readings . 

1. Monthly 
2. Quarterly 
 
 
3.As required, based 
on inspection 

6 187 A1 Baghouse, Pulse Jet 
 
Industrial Clean Air/30,000 cfm 

Monitor carbon  prefilters, troubleshoot 
if necessary.  
Inspection of  the interior of baghouse 
for structural integrity and fabric bag 
condition.  Replace filter bags as 
necessary. 

Daily 
 
Quarterly 

Page 71 of 158

169



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 23 
 

7 

1603 A3 Baghouse, Pulse Jet 
 
Bahnson/Hawley/HE-378-10 

1.Check Manometer across baghouse. 
2.Inspection  of the interior of baghouse 
for structural integrity and fabric bag 
condition. 
3.Replace bags based on inspection 
and/or changing  manometer readings . 

1. Monthly 
2. Quarterly 
3.As required, based 
on inspection 

8 1603 A7 Baghouse, Pulse Jet 
 
Bahnson/Hawley/HE-378-10 

Same as #7 1. Monthly 
2. Quarterly 
3.As required, based 
on inspection 

9 1603 A8 Carbon Adsorption 
 
Melrose 

Replace carbon and prefilters based on 
FID, steel output, pressure drops across 
carbon bed & prefilters checked daily 

Permit required - FID 
>65ppm  (PSC policy  
when FID outlet >20 
ppm and/or >700 tons 
of steel processed) 

 
 
 
  

Page 72 of 158

170



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 24 
 

C. Management Practices to Reduce Fugitive Emissions – MOLD AND CORE MAKING 
OPERATIONS 

 
Provide description of other housekeeping measures to abate and/or minimize fugitive emissions 
of odors and/or particulate matter at sources or source areas. 

 

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 #
  

 
Description of  

Housekeeping Measure 

 
 

Purpose of Activity 

 
 

Schedule of 
Activity 

1  Sweeping mold & core 
rooms once per shift, at a 
minimum.  

Contain particulate matter On going 

2 All paved outdoor areas 
are swept twice per day. 

Storage bins containing used sand and/or broken 
molds are moved and stored outside. Storage 
areas are swept to remove any spilled or leaking 
sand, inorder to remove a potential source of 
airborne particulate matter. 

Twice per day 

3 Visually check exhaust 
stacks for particulate and 
dust. 

Insure proper functioning of the baghouse, and 
identify presence of torn bags or bags that have 
fallen off. 

Daily 

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

Page 73 of 158

171



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 25 
 

 

 

 

402.2 Metal Management 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 74 of 158

172



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 26 
 

 

B. Description of Operations - Metal Management  
 

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 #
  

Name of Non-Exempt 
Metal or Metal Alloy 
Used for Production 

 
 

Metal Type 

 
 

Method of Verification for Determining  
Chemical Composition 

1 Ferrous Feed Stock 
(Incoming Scrap) - 100% 
recycled scrap steel  Ferrous     Non-Ferrous 

All 3 plant scrap yards, yearly random 
sampling of all vendors - composition 
verified using Optical Emission 
Spectrometer and  carbon anlyzer testing 
equipment. 

2 Ferrous Feed Stock (After 
Melting) - 100% recycled 
scrap steel  Ferrous     Non-Ferrous 

All Heats- composition verified using 
Optical Emission Spectrometer and carbon 
analyzer testing equipment. Off specification 
material identified by heat analysis initiates 
additional testing of the feed stock in the 
scrap yard storage.  

3 Ferro Chromium 
 Ferrous     Non-Ferrous 

Product certified by vendor 

4 Ferro Manganese 
 Ferrous     Non-Ferrous 

Product certified by vendor 

5 Ferro Molybdenum 
 Ferrous     Non-Ferrous 

Product certified by vendor 

6 Ferro Vanadium 
 Ferrous     Non-Ferrous 

Product certified by vendor 

7 Nickel 
 Ferrous     Non-Ferrous 

Product certified by vendor 

8 Molybdenum Trioxide 
 Ferrous     Non-Ferrous 

Product certified by vendor 

9 Silicon Manganese 
 Ferrous     Non-Ferrous 

Product certified by vendor 

10 Ferro Aluminum 
 Ferrous     Non-Ferrous 

Product certified by vendor 

            
 Ferrous     Non-Ferrous 

      

            
 Ferrous     Non-Ferrous 

      

 

Page 75 of 158

173



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 27 
 

B. Description of Operations - Metal Management                                                               

Describe the facility’s metal inspection program, work practice standards and material 

acquisition plan/procedures upon receipt of scrap or unprocessed metal. Include any 

pollution prevention management practices and source reduction measures to ensure 

the metal received is clean.  

All Pacific Steel scrap yards are indoors,  under cover, to minimize fugitive dust.  Only scrap originating from 
the United States which does not contain motor vehicle scrap is purchased. Each Request for Quote (RFQ) and 
Purchase Order (PO) provided to a scrap vendor shall include the following; 

"Material types not acceptable: Automotive Body Scrap, By-products, cans, cylinders, oil, used oil filters, other 
lubricants, free organic liquids, cholorinated plastic parts, dirt, engine block components, galvanized, lead 
components, mercury switches, I-beam, Paint, pipe, plastic, skeleton, tubing, or turnings.  Scrap must be lead, 
mercury and Radiation free." 

All 3 plant scrap yards conduct yearly random sampling of all vendors - composition of scrap is verified using 
Optical Emission Spectrometer and carbon analyzer testing equipment. In addition, all heats are analyzed and  
the composition is verified. If a descrepant heat analytical result is discovered, additional verification of the 
scrap used for that heat  is conducted.  All scrap deliveries to PSC must be visually inspected to make sure that 
each delivery does NOT contain any of the materials listed above. 

If any of the above materials are noted in the delivery, the load is rejected and returned to the suppliers. Any 
rejected scrap shipments not immediately returned to the supplier, shall be sequestered or visibly marked until 
the shipment is returned to the vendor. 

All scrap yard employees are trained concerning proper metal management handling procedures. Training is 
conducted yearly. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 76 of 158

174



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 28 
 

C. Management Practices to Reduce Fugitive Emissions– Metal Management 

Describe control measures to minimize fugitive emissions from scrap or unprocessed 

metal. 

All scrap is stored indoors under cover.  At the end of each shift the scrap rooms are first swept with a 
magnetic sweeper to pick up any metal fines, followed by regular sweeping to contain any dust. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 77 of 158

175



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 29 

 

 

 

 

402.3 Furnace Operations 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 78 of 158

176



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
3

0
 

   
 

 

B
. 

D
e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 -

 F
U

R
N

A
C

E
 O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
S

 

Section # 

F
u

rn
a

c
e

 N
a

m
e

 a
n

d
 

M
a

n
u

fa
c

tu
re

r/
 M

o
d

e
l 
#

 

 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

S
#

 a
n

d
 

A
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

  
N

E
S

H
A

P
s

 
S

e
c

ti
o

n
 

T
y
p

e
 o

f 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

 
S

o
u

rc
e

 
a

b
a

te
d

 

 
T

y
p

e
 o

f 
 

A
b

a
te

m
e

n
t 

D
e

v
ic

e
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
A

#
 

 
P

u
rp

o
s

e
 o

f 
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 
M

o
n

it
o

re
d

 

  
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 P

a
ra

m
e

te
rs

 

1 
18

7 
- E

le
ct

ro
m

el
t -

 E
le

ct
ric

 
A

rc
 F

ur
na

ce
 A

R
C

 
FU

R
N

A
C

E  
 

 Q
T 

18
7 

S-
1 

 40
 C

FR
 6

3.
10

89
5(

b)
 

40
 C

FR
 6

3.
10

68
6 

  M
el

tin
g 

  H
ea

t T
re

at
in

g 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

B
ag

ho
us

e,
 P

ul
se

 Je
t 

A
-9

 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r a
ba

te
m

en
t 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

G
ra

in
 lo

ad
in

g 
le

ss
 th

an
 0

.0
01

7 
gr

ai
ns

 p
er

 
dr

y 
cu

bi
c 

fo
ot

. P
re

ss
ur

e 
dr

op
 a

cr
os

s t
he

 
ba

gh
ou

se
 2

<P
<1

2.
 

 Se
m

i a
nn

ua
l o

pa
ci

ty
 te

st
in

g 
 

2 
18

7 
- 2

 B
er

kl
ey

 S
te

el
 H

ea
t 

Tr
ea

t -
 H

EA
T 

TR
EA

TI
N

G
 

FU
R

N
A

C
ES

  
 G

as
 fi

re
d 

he
at

 tr
ea

t o
ve

n 

18
7 

S-
18

 
 Ex

em
pt

 
  M

el
tin

g 

  H
ea

t T
re

at
in

g 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  
N

A
 

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  

3 
70

3 
- E

le
ct

ro
m

el
t -

 
EL

EC
TR

IC
 A

R
C

 
FU

R
N

A
C

E 
 C

Q
T 

7'
 1

09
7 

70
3 

S-
27

 
 40

 C
FR

 6
3.

10
89

5(
b)

 
40

 C
FR

 6
3.

10
68

6  

  M
el

tin
g 

  H
ea

t T
re

at
in

g 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

B
ag

ho
us

e,
 S

ha
ki

ng
 

A
-3

 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r a
ba

te
m

en
t 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

Pr
es

su
re

 d
ro

p 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

ba
gh

ou
se

 1
<P

<9
 

 Se
m

i a
nn

ua
l o

pa
ci

ty
 te

st
in

g 
 

4 
16

03
 - 

W
hi

tin
g 

EA
F 

R
oc

ke
r 

St
yl

e 
 E

LE
C

TR
IC

 A
R

C
 

FU
R

N
A

C
E 

   8'
-0

 R
.H

. R
oc

ke
r T

ilt
 

16
03

 S
-1

 
 40

 C
FR

 6
3.

10
89

5(
b)

 
40

 C
FR

 6
3.

10
68

6  

  M
el

tin
g 

  H
ea

t T
re

at
in

g 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

B
ag

ho
us

e,
 P

ul
se

 Je
t 

A
-1

 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r a
ba

te
m

en
t 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

G
ra

in
 lo

ad
in

g 
le

ss
 th

an
 0

.0
03

3 
gr

ai
ns

 p
er

 
dr

y 
cu

bi
c 

fo
ot

. P
re

ss
ur

e 
dr

op
 a

cr
os

s t
he

 
ba

gh
ou

se
 2

<P
<1

2.
  

 Se
m

i a
nn

ua
l o

pa
ci

ty
 te

st
in

g 
 

5 
16

03
 - 

2 
U

ni
ts

 - 
Jo

hn
st

on
 

 G
as

 fi
re

d 
re

ci
rc

ul
at

in
g 

bo
x 

ty
pe

 T
em

pe
rin

g 
ov

en
s 

Ex
em

pt
 

   
  

  
  M

el
tin

g 

  H
ea

t T
re

at
in

g 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

N
A

 
N

A
 

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  

6 
16

03
 - 

5 
U

ni
ts

 - 
Jo

hn
st

on
 

 G
as

 fi
re

d 
bo

x 
ty

pe
 Q

ue
nc

h 
he

at
 tr

ea
t o

ve
ns

 

Ex
em

pt
 

   
  

  
  M

el
tin

g 

  H
ea

t T
re

at
in

g 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

N
A

 
N

A
 

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  

7 
16

03
 - 

Jo
hn

st
on

 1
52

4 
 G

as
 fi

re
d 

C
ar

 b
ot

to
m

  
no

rm
al

iz
in

g 
he

at
 tr

ea
t o

ve
n 

Ex
em

pt
 

   
  

  

  M
el

tin
g 

  H
ea

t T
re

at
in

g 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

N
A

 
N

A
 

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  M
el

tin
g 

  H
ea

t T
re

at
in

g 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  

Page 79 of 158

177



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 31 

 

C. Management Practices to Reduce Fugitive Emissions- FURNACE OPERATIONS 

 
Provide description of preventative maintenance (PM) activities including PM schedules and work 
practice standards for each abatement device for furnace operations. 

 

S
e

c
ti

o
n

 #
  

 
Abatement Device and 
Manufacturer/Model # 

 
Description of  

Preventative Maintenance Activity 
and Work Practice Standards 

 
 

Schedule of PM 

1 187 - A-9 
 
BHA/GE 36,000 cfm 

Visual inspection of duct exhaust 
checking for PM. 
Verify leak detector supply air and 
opacity readings, check alarms  

Daily 

2 A-9 Continued 
 
      

Visual inspection of ductwork system 
for leaks. 
Inspect & lube shaker & fan bearings, 
inspect & check sheaves & V belts 

Monthly 

3 A-9 Continued 
 
      

Inspection of the interior of baghouse 
for structural integrity and fabric bag 
condition. Dye check baghouse, 
replace bags as necessary 

SemiAnnual 

4 703 - A-3 
 
Industrial Clean Air 4-3200AE 

Visual inspection of duct exhaust 
checking for PM. 

Daily 

5 A-3 Continued 
 
      

Visual inspection of ductwork system 
for leaks. 
Inspect & lube shaker & fan bearings, 
inspect & check sheaves & V belts 

Monthly 

6 A-3 Continued 
 
      

Inspection of the interior of baghouse 
for structural integrity and fabric bag 
condition. Dye check baghouse, 
replace bags as necessary 

SemiAnnual 

7 1603 - A-1 
 
Bahnson Hawley/2-294-14-10 

Visual inspection of duct exhaust 
checking for PM. 
Verify leak detector supply air and 
opacity readings, check alarms 

Daily 

8 A-1 Continued 
 
      

Visual inspection of ductwork system 
for leaks. 
Inspect & lube shaker & fan bearings, 
inspect & check sheaves & V belts 

Monthly 

9 A-1 Continued 
 
      

Inspection of the interior of baghouse 
for structural integrity and fabric bag 
condition. Dye check baghouse, 
replace bags as necessary 

Semi-annual 

10 A-9, A-3, A-1 
 

Drain gear box oil and refill, test run Yearly 

Page 80 of 158

178



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 32 
 

C. Management Practices to Reduce Fugitive Emissions - FURNACE OPERATIONS 

 
Provide description of other housekeeping measures to abate and/or minimize fugitive emissions 
of odors and/or particulate matter at sources or source areas. 

 

S
e

c
ti

o
n

 

#
 

 
Description of  

Housekeeping Measure 

 
 

Purpose of Activity 

 
 

Schedule of Activity 

1 Baghouse dust bags 
secured to baghouse 
outlet      

Eliminate fugitive dust.  Baghouse dust is 
transferred from baghouse to dust bag in a 
closed system 

On going 

2 Sweeping around 
baghouse dust 
collectors      

Removal of potential Particulater Matter Daily 

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 81 of 158

179



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 33 
 

 

 

 

402.4 Forging Operations 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 82 of 158

180



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
3

4
 

    

 B
. 
D

e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 -

 F
O

R
G

IN
G

 O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
 

 

Section # 

 
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
N

a
m

e
 

a
n

d
 M

a
n

u
fa

c
tu

re
r/

 
M

o
d

e
l 
#
 

  
D

is
tr

ic
t 

S
#

 a
n

d
 A

p
p

li
c

a
b

le
  

N
E

S
H

A
P

s
 

S
e

c
ti

o
n

 

  
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

U
s

e
 

    
N

a
m

e
 o

f 
L

u
b

ri
c

a
n

ts
 

a
n

d
/o

r 
O

il
s
 

    
O

th
e

r 
M

a
te

ri
a

ls
 

U
s

e
d

 

  
S

o
u

rc
e

 
a

b
a

te
d

 

  
T

y
p

e
 o

f 
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 
D

e
v
ic

e
 

  
P

u
rp

o
s

e
 o

f 
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 

   
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 
M

o
n

it
o

re
d

 

    
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 P

a
ra

m
e

te
rs

 

  
 

  
 

N
A

 
   

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

Page 83 of 158

181



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
3

5
 

  
 

Page 84 of 158

182



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 36 

 

C. Management Practices to Reduce Fugitive Emissions - FORGING OPERATIONS 

 
Provide description of preventative maintenance (PM) activities including PM schedules and work 
practice standards for each abatement device for forging operations.  

 

  

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 #
  

 
Abatement Device and 
Manufacturer/Model # 

 
Description of  

Preventative Maintenance Activity 
and Work Practice Standards 

 
 

Schedule of PM 

            
 
      

            

            
 
      

            

            
 
      

            

            
 
      

            

            
 
      

            

            
 
      

            

            
 
      

            

            
 
      

            

            
 
      

            

            
 
      

            

            
 
      

            

Page 85 of 158

183



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 37 

 

C. Management Practices to Reduce Fugitive Emissions - FORGING OPERATIONS 

 
Provide description of other housekeeping measures to abate and/or minimize fugitive 
emissions of odors and/or particulate matter at sources or source areas. 

 

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 #
  

Description of  
Housekeeping Measure 

 
 

Purpose of Activity 

 
 

Schedule of Activity 

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

 
  

Page 86 of 158

184



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 38 
 

 

 

 

402.5 Casting and Cooling Operations 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 87 of 158

185



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
3

9
 

 

 B
. 
D

e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 -

 C
A

S
T

IN
G

 A
N

D
 C

O
O

L
IN

G
 O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
S

 
 

Section # 

 
N

a
m

e
 o

f 
P

o
u

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 C
o

o
li

n
g

 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 
M

a
n

u
fa

c
tu

re
r/

 M
o

d
e

l 
#

 

 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

S
#

 a
n

d
 

A
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

  
N

E
S

H
A

P
s

 
S

e
c

ti
o

n
 

  
C

o
o

li
n

g
 T

im
e

 
o

f 
P

ro
d

u
c

t 
o

r 
S

o
u

rc
e

 

  
D

e
s

ig
n

a
te

d
 L

o
c
a

ti
o

n
s

 
o

f 
C

o
o

li
n

g
 O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

 

 
S

o
u

rc
e

 
A

b
a

te
d

 

 
T

y
p

e
 o

f 
 

A
b

a
te

m
e

n
t 

D
e

v
ic

e
 

  
P

u
rp

o
s

e
 o

f 
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 
 

 
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 
M

o
n

it
o

re
d

 

   
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 P

a
ra

m
e

te
rs

 

1 
C

as
tin

g 
Po

ur
 o

ff
 a

re
a 

 
 Pl

an
t 1

87
 

18
7 

S2
 

   
  

  

A
-li

ne
 1

 h
r. 

m
in

im
um

 
B

-li
ne

 3
-2

4 
hr

s. 

A
-li

ne
 c

oo
lin

g 
de

ck
, B

-li
ne

 
m

ai
n 

flo
or

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
in

to
 

C
ar

bo
n  

A
ds

or
pt

io
n 

 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 m

at
te

r a
nd

 o
do

rs
 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

Pr
es

su
re

 d
ro

p 
ac

ro
ss

 C
ar

bo
n 

un
its

 
1<

P<
9,

 T
em

p 
<1

10
 F

 

2 
C

as
t m

ol
d 

co
ol

in
g 

ro
om

 
 Pl

an
t 7

03
 

70
3 

S3
0 

   
  

  
45

 m
in

. 
C

oo
lin

g 
ro

om
 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
in

to
 

C
ar

bo
n 

A
ds

or
pt

io
n 

 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 m

at
te

r a
nd

 o
do

rs
 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

Pr
es

su
re

 d
ro

p 
ac

ro
ss

 B
ag

ho
us

e 
1<

P<
9 

C
ar

bo
n 

un
its

 1
<P

<9
, T

em
p 

<1
10

 F
 

3 
C

oo
lin

g 
R

oo
m

  
 Pl

an
t 1

60
3 

16
03

 S
19

 
   

  
  

23
 - 

13
1 

hr
s. 

de
pe

nd
an

t o
n 

Sl
ee

ve
 

D
ia

m
et

er
 

C
oo

lin
g 

R
oo

m
 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
in

to
 

C
ar

bo
n 

A
ds

or
pt

io
n 

 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 m

at
te

r a
nd

 o
do

rs
 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
3 

an
d 

A
7 

- P
re

ss
ur

e 
dr

op
 a

cr
os

s 
ba

gh
ou

se
s -

 4
.5

<P
<7

; 
V

is
ua

l i
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

  
  

  
A

8 
- F

ID
 c

on
tin

uo
us

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
 

A
t 5

0 
pp

m
 in

 a
 9

0 
m

in
ut

e 
av

er
ag

e)
: 

H
av

e 
fu

ll 
lo

ad
 c

ar
bo

n 
(5

2,
00

0 
lb

s.)
 o

n 
st

an
db

y 
w

ith
in

 3
 b

us
in

es
s d

ay
s. 

A
t 6

5 
pp

m
 in

 a
 9

0 
m

in
ut

e 
av

er
ag

e 
ch

an
ge

 c
ar

bo
n 

no
 la

te
r t

ha
n 

7 
ca

le
nd

ar
 

da
ys

.  
A

t 8
5 

pp
m

 in
 a

 9
0 

m
in

ut
e 

av
er

ag
e 

- 
C

ea
se

 sh
ak

eo
ut

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 

an
d 

po
ur

in
g 

op
er

at
io

ns
 w

ith
in

 2
 h

ou
rs

. 
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

In
le

t F
ac

e 
ve

lo
ci

ty
 in

to
 

co
ol

in
g 

ro
om

, m
in

im
um

 2
00

 ft
/m

in
.  

 
  

 
  

 
  

  
  

   
  

  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

 

Page 88 of 158

186



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 40 

 

C. Management Practices to Reduce Fugitive Emissions - CASTING AND COOLING    
OPERATIONS 

 
Describe the method to verify  adequate cooling times are achieved to ensure minimization of 
fugitive emissions of particulates and odors prior to commencing shake out operations.  

 
During the design phase of a new part at Pacific Steel Casting, the cooling rate/minimum cooling time is 
determined.  Minimum cooling times are unique to each  part. The cooling time is dependent on the mold 
type, mold size and sleeve size. The cooling time is recorded on all job/part cards.  Quality assurance 
requires all minimum cooling times are achieved.  Adequate cooling time is required to avoid hardening, 
cracking, internal damage or an undesired microstructure in the finished part.   

 
      Plant 187 - A Line molding is a batch process. The time each heat/batch is poured is recorded.  At all 

times, the operators verify that each mold has cooled for a minimum of one hour before transfering the 
mold into the shakeout.  During continuous pouring, the time of each heat is recorded, however, the 
minimum cooling time is achieved due to process constraints. Each batch of molds is poured from a 
small ladle, filled from the larger furnace ladle. The pouring deck space is limited by the small ladle 
travel availablity. Molds are lined up in the pouring deck area. As a mold is poured it is moved forward 
on to the cooling deck. To make space for the just poured mold, the molds already on the cooling deck 
are shuttled forward one position towards the shakeout. The cooling deck has space for multiple molds. 
As each batch is poured the molds are moved forward one position, on the cooling deck. During 
continuous pouring, the process of shuttling forward molds, one position for each heat, takes a minimum 
of one hour before the mold reaches the shakeout unit. Plant 187 - B line Molds are tagged with the 
pouring date and time and the time after which shakeout can proceed. Employees verify the tags in order 
to insure the minimum cooling time has transpired, prior to shaking out the parts.  

 
      Plant 703 - The molds are loaded on a continuous conveyor line which circulates around from 1) the 

mold loading station, 2) to the pouring station, 3) into the cooling room (multiple switch backs are 
located  inside the cooling room which insure the minimum cooling times are achieved), 4) to the 
automatic shakout unit and 5) back to the mold loading station. If the conveyor is continuously run, the 
parts are in the cooling room for 45 minutes. During normal operations the conveyor is stopped and 
started, as each heat is poured, increasing the time molds are in the cooling room. 

 
      Plant 1603 - Floor molds are tagged on the flask with the pouring date and time and the time after which 

shakout can proceed.  Tags are verified by employees prior to shakout. Line molds have the heat number 
written on the side of the molds, as they are poured. The melting reports are used to establish the pouring 
date and time from which the shakout time is verified. 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Page 89 of 158

187



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 41 
 

C. Management Practices to Reduce Fugitive Emissions - CASTING AND COOLING   
OPERATIONS 

 
Provide description of preventative maintenance (PM) activities including PM schedules and work 
practice standards for each abatement device for casting and cooling operations. 

 

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 #
  

Abatement Device and 
Manufacturer/Model # 

 
Description of  

Preventative Maintenance Activity and 
Work Practice Standards 

 
 

Schedule of PM 

1 

187 A8 Baghouse, Pulse Jet 
 
Torit Cartridge 

1.Check manometer across baghouse. 
2.Visual inspection internal & external, 
check cartridge filter integrity and 
condition. 
3.Replace cartridge filters based on 
inspection and/or changing  manometer 
readings. 

1.Weekly  
2.SemiAnnual 
 
 
3. As required - 
based on visual 
inspection findings 
and/or manometer 
data 

2 187 A7 Carbon Adsorption  
 
Melrose/Blamer Eng. 60,000 
cfm 

Replace carbon and prefilters based on 
daily pressure readings across the carbon 
beds, prefilters and the bi-weekly odor 
tests  

As required - based 
on monitoring data 
(1<P<9), Odor test 
>25 odor units  

3 703 A2 Baghouse Shaking 
 
Industrial Clean Air/10-700 SN 

1.Inspect & lube shaker & fan bearings, 
inspect & check sheaves & V belts.  
2. Inspection of the interior of baghouse 
for structural integrity and fabric bag 
condition. Dye check baghouse, replace 
bags as necessary. Wire brush fan blades. 

1. Weekly 
 
2. Semi-Annual 

4 703 A7 Carbon Adsorption 
 
Melrose 

Replace carbon and prefilters based on 
daily pressure readings across the carbon 
beds, prefilters and the bi-weekly odor 
tests 

As required - based 
on monitoring data 
(1<P<9), Odor test 
>25 odor units 

5 1603 A3 Baghouse, Pulse Jet 
 
Bahnson Hwaley/HE-378-10 

1.Check manometer across baghouse. 
2.Inspection of the interior of baghouse 
for structural integrity and fabric bag 
condition. 
3.Replace bags based on inspection and/or 
changing manometer readings . 

1. Quarterly 
2. Semi-Annual 
 
 
3. As required, based 
on inspection 

6 1603 A7 Baghouse, Pulse Jet 
 
Bahnson Hwaley/HE-378-10 

1.Check manometer across baghouse. 
2.Inspection of the interior of baghouse 
for structural integrity and fabric bag 
condition. 
3.Replace bags based on inspection and/or 
changing manometer readings  

1. Quarterly 
2. Semi-Annual 
 
 
3. As required, based 
on inspection 

7 1603 A8 Carbon Adsorption 
 

Replace carbon and prefilters based on 
FID, steel output, pressure drops across 

Permit required - FID 
>65ppm  (PSC policy  

Page 90 of 158

188



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 42 
 

Melrose carbon bed & prefilters checked daily when FID outlet >20 
ppm and/or >700 
tons of steel 
prosessed) 

 
 

  

Page 91 of 158

189



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 43 
 

C. Management Practices to Reduce Fugitive Emissions - CASTING AND COOLING 

OPERATIONS 

Provide description of other housekeeping measures to abate and/or minimize fugitive emissions 
of odors and/or particulate matter at sources or source areas. 

 

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 #
  

Description of  
Housekeeping Measure 

 
 

Purpose of Activity 

 
Schedule of 

Activity 

1 Configure door openings & 
room enclosures to 
enhance odor capture Plant 
#187 Pouring room, all 2nd 
street doors 1-C, & 1-J 
closed at all times, south 
doors open on calm days.  
Plant #703 2-D, 2-J doors 
closed. Plant #1603 3-A, 3-
B, 3-D, 3-E, 3-O doors 
closed. 

Eliminate odors through enhanced capture of 
casting and cooling fugitive emissions. 

Daily 

2 Hot molds only stored in 
designated areas. Plant 
#187 A line cooling deck 
or B line floor, Plant #703 
inside the cooling room on 
the conveyor line, Plant 
#1603 inside the cooling 
room 

Ensure molds are located in areas where odor 
abatement equipment is located 

Continuous 

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

 

Page 92 of 158

190



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 44 
 

 

 

 
 

 

402.6 Shake Out Operations 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 93 of 158

191



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
4

5
 

  B
. 
D

e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 -

 S
H

A
K

E
 O

U
T

 O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
 

Section # 

N
a

m
e

 o
f 

S
h

a
k

e
o

u
t 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s

 a
n

d
 

M
a

n
u

fa
c

tu
re

r/
 M

o
d

e
l 
#

 

 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

S
#

 a
n

d
 

A
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

  
N

E
S

H
A

P
s

 
S

e
c

ti
o

n
 

 
D

e
s

c
ri

b
e

 L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

h
a

k
e
 

O
u

t 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

 

 
S

o
u

rc
e

 
A

b
a

te
d

 

 
A

#
 

 
T

y
p

e
 o

f 
 

A
b

a
te

m
e

n
t 

D
e

v
ic

e
 

  
P

u
rp

o
s

e
 o

f 
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 

 
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 
M

o
n

it
o

re
d

 

 
  

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 P
a

ra
m

e
te

rs
 

 

1 
B

 S
ha

ke
 O

ut
  

 Si
m

pl
ic

ity
 M

-1
1 

18
7 

S-
3 

   
  

  

Fl
oo

r i
n 

th
e 

m
id

dl
e 

of
 B

-li
ne

 
co

ol
in

g 
ro

om
 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
-1

, 
 A

-7
 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
in

to
 

C
ar

bo
n 

A
ds

or
pt

io
n 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 m

at
te

r a
nd

 o
do

r 
ab

at
em

en
t 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

Pr
es

su
re

 d
ro

p 
ac

ro
ss

 B
ag

ho
us

e 
1<

P<
9 

/  
C

ar
bo

n 
un

its
 1

<P
<9

, T
em

p 
<1

10
 F

 
2 

A
 S

ha
ke

 O
ut

 
 Fl

oa
te

x 
M

F7
 

18
7 

S-
4 

   
  

  

Ea
st

 e
nd

 o
f A

-li
ne

 d
ec

k 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

A
-1

, 
 A

-7
 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
in

to
 

C
ar

bo
n 

A
ds

or
pt

io
n 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 m

at
te

r a
nd

 o
do

r 
ab

at
em

en
t 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

Pr
es

su
re

 d
ro

p 
ac

ro
ss

 B
ag

ho
us

e 
1<

P<
9 

/  
C

ar
bo

n 
un

its
 1

<P
<9

, T
em

p 
<1

10
 F

 
3 

Sh
ak

eo
ut

 &
 T

ra
y 

Sa
nd

in
g 

 Si
m

pl
ic

ity
 O

A
-1

0-
N

 

70
3 

S-
31

 
   

  
  

In
 c

le
an

 &
 fi

ni
sh

 ro
om

 ju
st

 
ou

ts
id

e 
th

e 
co

ol
in

g 
ro

om
 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
-1

, 
 A

-7
 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
in

to
 

C
ar

bo
n 

A
ds

or
pt

io
n 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 m

at
te

r a
nd

 o
do

r 
ab

at
em

en
t 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

Pr
es

su
re

 d
ro

p 
ac

ro
ss

 B
ag

ho
us

e 
1<

P<
9 

/  
C

ar
bo

n 
un

its
 1

<P
<9

, T
em

p 
<1

10
 F

 
4 

C
as

tin
g 

M
ol

d 
Sh

ak
e 

O
ut

 
St

at
io

n  
 G

en
er

al
 K

in
em

at
ic

s T
M

TM
-

96
X

12
-0

 

16
03

 S
-4

 
   

  
  

M
ol

di
ng

 ro
om

 ju
st

 o
ut

si
de

 th
e 

co
ol

in
g 

ro
om

 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
3,

A
7,

 
A

-8
 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
in

to
 

C
ar

bo
n 

A
ds

or
pt

io
n 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 m

at
te

r a
nd

 o
do

r 
ab

at
em

en
t  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

Pr
es

su
re

 d
ro

p 
ac

ro
ss

 b
ag

ho
us

es
 

4.
5<

P<
7;

 V
is

ua
l i

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
   

   
FI

D
 c

on
tin

uo
us

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
- A

t 5
0 

pp
m

 in
 a

 9
0 

m
in

ut
e 

av
er

ag
e)

: S
ub

m
it 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f f

ul
l l

oa
d 

ca
rb

on
 (5

2,
00

0 
lb

s.)
 o

n 
st

an
db

y 
w

ith
in

 3
 b

us
in

es
s 

da
ys

.  
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

th
e 

In
le

t f
ac

e 
ve

lo
ci

ty
 a

t t
he

 
op

en
in

gs
 o

f t
he

 p
ou

rin
g 

an
d 

co
ol

in
g 

ar
ea

s a
t a

 m
in

im
um

 2
00

 fp
m

 . 
       

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  

      

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  

      

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  

      

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  

      

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  

      

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  

Page 94 of 158

192



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 46 

 

C. Management Practices to Reduce Fugitive Emissions - SHAKE OUT OPERATIONS 

 
Provide description of preventative maintenance (PM) activities including PM schedules and 
work practice standards for each abatement device for shake out operations. 

 

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 #
  

Abatement Device and 
Manufacturer/Model # 

 
Description of  

Preventative Maintenance Activity and 
Work Practice Standards 

 
 

Schedule of PM 

1 

187 A1 Baghouse, Pulse Jet 
 
Industrial Clean Air 

Monitor carbon prefilters.  Excessive 
prefilter pressure can indicate problem 
with A1 baghouse. 
Inspection of the interior of baghouse for 
structural integrity and fabric bag 
condition, replace bags as necessary  

Weekly 
 
 
SemiAnnual 

2 187 A7 Carbon Adsorption 
 
Melrose 

Replace carbon and prefilters based on 
daily pressure readings across the carbon 
beds & prefilters and the semi-weekly odor 
tests  

As required - based 
on  monitoring data 
(1<P<9), Odor test 
>25 odor units  

3 703 A1 Baghouse, Shaker 
 
Industrial Clean Air/7-3200AE 

1. Inspect & lube shaker & fan bearings, 
inspect & check sheaves & V belts. 
2. Inspection of the interior of baghouse 
for structural integrity and fabric bag 
condition. Dye check baghouse, replace 
bags as necessary. Wire brush fan blades. 

1.Weekly 
 
2.Quarterly 

4 703 A7 Carbon Adsorption 
 
Melrose 

Replace carbon and prefilters based on 
daily pressure readings across the carbon 
beds & prefilters and the semi-weekly odor 
tests 

As required - based 
on  monitoring data 
(1<P<9), Odor test 
>25 odor units 

5 1603 A3 Baghouse, Pulse Jet 
 
Bahnson Hwaley/HE-378-10 

1.Check manometer across baghouse. 
2.Inspection of the interior of baghouse for 
structural integrity and fabric bag 
condition. 
3.Replace bags based on inspection and/or 
changing manometer readings. 

1. Monthly 
2. Quarterly 
 
 
3.As required, based 
on inspection 

6 1603 A7 Baghouse, Pulse Jet 
 
      

1.Check manometer across baghouse. 
2.Inspection of the interior of baghouse for 
structural integrity and fabric bag 
condition. 
3.Replace bags based on inspection and/or 
changing manometer readings 

1. Monthly 
2. Quarterly 
 
 
3.As required, based 
on inspection 

7 

1603 A8 Carbon Adsorption 
 
Bahnson Hwaley/HE-378-10 

Replace carbon and prefilters based on 
FID, steel output, pressure drops across 
carbon bed & prefilters checked daily 

Permit required - 
FID >65ppm  (PSC 
policy when FID 
outlet >20 ppm 
and/or >700 tons of 
steel prosessed) 

Page 95 of 158

193



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 47 
 

C. Management Practices to Reduce Fugitive Emissions- SHAKE OUT OPERATIONS 

 
Provide description of other housekeeping measures to abate and/or minimize fugitive 
emissions of odors and/or particulate matter at sources or source areas. 

 

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 #
  

Description of  
Housekeeping Measure 

 
 

Purpose of Activity 

 
Schedule of 

Activity 

1 Plant 187 B line shakout 
sand piles are frequently 
loaded into the shakout unit 

Minimize the accumulation of sand emissions On going 

2 Plant 1603 Inlet face 
velocity monitored 

Inlet face velocity maintained at a minimum 200 
fpm, to insure adequate draw into the shakeout 
unit and into the control devices 

Weekly 

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

 

  

Page 96 of 158

194



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 48 
 

 

 
 

 

 

402.7 Finishing Operations 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 97 of 158

195



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
4

9
 

 

B
. 

D
e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 -

 F
IN

IS
H

IN
G

 O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
 

 

Section # 

T
y
p

e
 o

f 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
S

#
 a

n
d

 
A

p
p

li
c

a
b

le
  

N
E

S
H

A
P

s
 

S
e

c
ti

o
n

 

 
D

e
s

c
ri

b
e

 L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

in
is

h
in

g
 O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

M
a

c
h

in
e

s
 

A
b

a
te

d
 

S
o

u
rc

e
 

A
#

 
T

y
p

e
 o

f 
 

A
b

a
te

m
e

n
t 

D
e

v
ic

e
 

 
P

u
rp

o
s

e
 o

f 
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 

 
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 
M

o
n

it
o

re
d

 

  
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 P
a

ra
m

e
te

rs
 

 

1 
   

G
rin

di
ng

 

   
W

el
di

ng
 

   
O

th
er

:  
   

   
  

  
  

18
7 

S1
2 

   
  

  

N
or

th
 e

nd
 o

f P
la

nt
 1

, c
le

an
 &

 
fin

is
h 

ro
om

 
GR

IN
DE

RS
:  

7 
W
EL

DE
RS
:  

  
  

  
OT

HE
R: 

   
   

  
  

  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
4 

B
ag

ho
us

e,
 S

ha
ke

r 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r 
A

ba
te

m
en

t  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 - 

V
is

ua
l i

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
of

 
st

ac
k 

em
is

si
on

s  

2 
   

G
rin

di
ng

 

   
W

el
di

ng
 

   
O

th
er

:  
   

   
  

  
  

18
7 

S1
3 

   
  

  

Ea
st

 A
rc

-A
ir 

B
oo

th
 in

 P
la

nt
 1

 
cl

ea
n 

&
 fi

ni
sh

 ro
om

 
GR

IN
DE

RS
:  

  
  

  
W
EL

DE
RS
:  

1 
OT

HE
R: 

   
   

  
  

  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
4 

B
ag

ho
us

e,
 S

ha
ke

r 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r 
A

ba
te

m
en

t 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 - 

V
is

ua
l i

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
of

 
st

ac
k 

em
is

si
on

s 

3 
   

G
rin

di
ng

 

   
W

el
di

ng
 

   
O

th
er

:  
   

   
  

  
  

18
7 

S1
4 

   
  

  

W
es

t A
rc

-A
ir 

B
oo

th
 in

 P
la

nt
 1

 
cl

ea
n 

&
 fi

ni
sh

 ro
om

 
GR

IN
DE

RS
:  

  
  

  
W
EL

DE
RS
:  

1 
OT

HE
R: 

   
   

  
  

  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
6 

B
ag

ho
us

e,
 S

ha
ke

r 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r 
A

ba
te

m
en

t 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 - 

V
is

ua
l i

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
of

 
st

ac
k 

em
is

si
on

s 

4 
   

G
rin

di
ng

 

   
W

el
di

ng
 

   
O

th
er

:  
   

   
Ta

bl
e 

B
la

st
 

18
7 

S1
5 

   
  

  

So
ut

h 
w

al
l i

n 
Pl

an
t 1

 c
le

an
 &

 
fin

is
h 

ro
om

 n
ex

t t
o 

fu
rn

ac
e 

 
GR

IN
DE

RS
:  

  
  

  
W
EL

DE
RS
:  

  
  

  
OT

HE
R: 

   
   

1 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
3 

B
ag

ho
us

e,
 S

ha
ke

r 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r 
A

ba
te

m
en

t 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 - 

V
is

ua
l i

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
of

 
st

ac
k 

em
is

si
on

s 

5 
   

G
rin

di
ng

 

   
W

el
di

ng
 

   
O

th
er

:  
   

   
R

ot
oB

la
st

 

18
7 

S1
6,

 S
17

 
   

  
  

Ea
st

 w
al

l a
nd

 N
W

 c
or

ne
r i

n 
Pl

an
t 1

 c
le

an
 &

 fi
ni

sh
 ro

om
 

GR
IN
DE

RS
:  

  
  

  
W
EL

DE
RS
:  

  
  

  
OT

HE
R: 

   
   

2 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
2 

B
ag

ho
us

e,
 S

ha
ke

r 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r 
A

ba
te

m
en

t 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 - 

V
is

ua
l i

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
of

 
st

ac
k 

em
is

si
on

s 

6 
   

G
rin

di
ng

 

   
W

el
di

ng
 

   
O

th
er

:  
   

   
R

ot
ob

la
st

 

70
3 

S3
2 

   
  

  

N
or

th
-W

es
t e

nd
 o

f C
le

an
 &

 
Fi

ni
sh

 ro
om

 
GR

IN
DE

RS
:  

  
  

  
W
EL

DE
RS
:  

  
  

  
OT

HE
R: 

   
   

1 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
2 

A
7 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
Sh

ak
er

 
C

ar
bo

n 
A

ds
or

pt
io

n 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r 
A

ba
te

m
en

t 
O

do
r 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 - 

Pr
es

su
re

 d
ro

p 
ac

ro
ss

 
ba

gh
ou

se
, P

re
ss

ur
e 

C
ar

bo
n 

U
ni

t 1
<P

<9
), 

O
do

r t
es

t >
25

 
od

or
 u

ni
ts

  

7 
   

G
rin

di
ng

 

   
W

el
di

ng
 

70
3 

S3
3,

 S
34

, S
35

, S
36

 
   

  
  

W
es

t e
nd

 o
f C

le
an

 a
nd

 F
in

is
h 

lin
es

 
GR

IN
DE

RS
:  

  
  

  
W
EL

DE
RS
:  

  
  

  
OT

HE
R: 

   
   

4 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
5 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
Sh

ak
er

 
Pa

rti
cu

la
te

 M
at

te
r 

A
ba

te
m

en
t 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 - 

Pr
es

su
re

 d
ro

p 
ac

ro
ss

 
ba

gh
ou

se
 1

<P
<9

 

Page 98 of 158

196



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
5

0
 

 

   
O

th
er

:  
   

   
C

ut
 O

ff
 S

aw
 

8 
   

G
rin

di
ng

 

   
W

el
di

ng
 

   
O

th
er

:  
   

   
  

  
  

 7
03

 S
37

, S
38

, S
39

, S
40

   
  

   
  

  

Ea
st

 e
nd

 o
f C

le
an

 &
 F

in
is

h 
lin

es
 

GR
IN
DE

RS
:  

4 
W
EL

DE
RS
:  

  
  

  
OT

HE
R: 

   
   

  
  

  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
5 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
Sh

ak
er

 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r 
A

ba
te

m
en

t 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 - 

Pr
es

su
re

 d
ro

p 
ac

ro
ss

 
ba

gh
ou

se
 1

<P
<9

 

     

B
. 

D
e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 -

 F
IN

IS
H

IN
G

 O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
 

 

Section # 

T
y
p

e
 o

f 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
S

#
 a

n
d

 
A

p
p

li
c

a
b

le
  

N
E

S
H

A
P

s
 

S
e

c
ti

o
n

 

 
D

e
s

c
ri

b
e

 L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

in
is

h
in

g
 O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

M
a

c
h

in
e

s
 

A
b

a
te

d
 

S
o

u
rc

e
 

A
#

 
T

y
p

e
 o

f 
 

A
b

a
te

m
e

n
t 

D
e

v
ic

e
 

 
P

u
rp

o
s

e
 o

f 
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 

 
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 
M

o
n

it
o

re
d

 

  
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 P
a

ra
m

e
te

rs
 

 

9 
   

G
rin

di
ng

 

   
W

el
di

ng
 

   
O

th
er

:  
   

   
Tu

m
bl

e 
B

la
st

 

16
03

 S
6 

   
  

  

M
id

dl
e 

of
 W

es
t W

al
l 

GR
IN
DE

RS
:  

  
  

  
W
EL

DE
RS
:  

  
  

  
OT

HE
R: 

   
   

1 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
2 

A
6 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
Sh

ak
in

g 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r 
A

ba
te

m
en

t 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 - 

Pr
es

su
re

 d
ro

p 
ac

ro
ss

 
ba

gh
ou

se
 1

<P
<9

 

10
 

   
G

rin
di

ng
 

   
W

el
di

ng
 

   
O

th
er

:  
   

   
Ta

bl
e 

B
la

st
 

16
03

 S
5 

   
  

  

Ea
st

 C
en

te
r w

al
l o

f C
le

an
 &

 
Fi

ni
sh

 ro
om

 
GR

IN
DE

RS
:  

  
  

  
W
EL

DE
RS
:  

  
  

  
OT

HE
R: 

   
   

1 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
2 

A
6 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
Sh

ak
in

g 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r 
A

ba
te

m
en

t  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 - 

Pr
es

su
re

 d
ro

p 
ac

ro
ss

 
ba

gh
ou

se
 1

<P
<9

 

11
 

   
G

rin
di

ng
 

   
W

el
di

ng
 

   
O

th
er

:  
   

   
  

  
  

Ex
em

pt
 

   
  

  

5 
G

rin
di

ng
 st

at
io

ns
 m

id
dl

e 
of

 
cl

ea
n 

&
 fi

ni
sh

 ro
om

 P
la

nt
 1

87
 

GR
IN
DE

RS
:  

5 
W
EL

DE
RS
:  

  
  

  
OT

HE
R: 

   
   

  
  

  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

N
A

 
  

  
  

  
  

  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

12
 

   
G

rin
di

ng
 

   
W

el
di

ng
 

   
O

th
er

:  
   

   
  

  
  

Ex
em

pt
 

   
  

  

8 
W

el
di

ng
 st

at
io

ns
 in

si
de

 P
la

nt
 

18
7 

C
le

an
 &

 F
in

si
h 

ro
om

 
GR

IN
DE

RS
:  

  
  

  
W
EL

DE
RS
:  

8 
OT

HE
R: 

   
   

  
  

  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

N
A

 
  

  
  

  
  

  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

Page 99 of 158

197



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
5

1
 

 

13
 

   
G

rin
di

ng
 

   
W

el
di

ng
 

   
O

th
er

:  
   

   
Pl

as
m

a 
U

ni
t 

Ex
em

pt
 

   
  

  

W
es

t s
id

e 
of

 P
la

nt
 1

87
 C

le
an

 &
 

Fi
ns

ih
 ro

om
 

GR
IN
DE

RS
:  

  
  

  
W
EL

DE
RS
:  

  
  

  
OT

HE
R: 

   
   

1 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

N
A

 
  

  
  

  
  

  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

14
 

   
G

rin
di

ng
 

   
W

el
di

ng
 

   
O

th
er

:  
   

   
  

  
  

Ex
em

pt
 

   
  

  

G
rin

di
ng

 st
at

io
ns

 in
 P

la
nt

 1
87

 
C

el
l 

GR
IN
DE

RS
:  

2 
W
EL

DE
RS
:  

  
  

  
OT

HE
R: 

   
   

  
  

  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

N
A

 
  

  
  

  
  

  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

15
 

   
G

rin
di

ng
 

   
W

el
di

ng
 

   
O

th
er

:  
   

   
  

  
  

Ex
em

pt
 

   
  

  

W
el

di
ng

 st
at

io
ns

 in
 P

la
nt

 1
87

 
C

el
l  

GR
IN
DE

RS
:  

  
  

  
W
EL

DE
RS
:  

9 
OT

HE
R: 

   
   

  
  

  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

N
A

 
  

  
  

  
  

  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

16
 

   
G

rin
di

ng
 

   
W

el
di

ng
 

   
O

th
er

:  
   

   
R

ot
ob

la
st

. 

Ex
em

pt
 

   
  

  

Ea
st

 e
nd

 o
f P

la
nt

 1
87

 C
el

l 
GR

IN
DE

RS
:  

  
  

  
W
EL

DE
RS
:  

  
  

  
OT

HE
R: 

   
   

1 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

N
A

 
B

ag
ho

us
e 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 - 

V
is

ua
l i

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
of

 
st

ac
k 

em
is

si
on

s 

    

B
. 

D
e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 -

 F
IN

IS
H

IN
G

 O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
 

 

Section # 

T
y
p

e
 o

f 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
S

#
 a

n
d

 
A

p
p

li
c

a
b

le
  

N
E

S
H

A
P

s
 

S
e

c
ti

o
n

 

 
D

e
s

c
ri

b
e

 L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

in
is

h
in

g
 O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

M
a

c
h

in
e

s
 

A
b

a
te

d
 

S
o

u
rc

e
 

A
#

 
T

y
p

e
 o

f 
 

A
b

a
te

m
e

n
t 

D
e

v
ic

e
 

 
P

u
rp

o
s

e
 o

f 
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 

 
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 
M

o
n

it
o

re
d

 

  
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 P
a

ra
m

e
te

rs
 

 

17
 

   
G

rin
di

ng
 

   
W

el
di

ng
 

   
O

th
er

:  
   

   
  

  
  

Ex
em

pt
 

   
  

  

So
ut

h 
W

al
l o

f T
om

bs
to

ne
 

GR
IN
DE

RS
:  

9 
W
EL

DE
RS
:  

  
  

  
OT

HE
R: 

   
   

  
  

  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

N
A

 
  

  
  

  
  

  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

18
 

   
G

rin
di

ng
 

   
W

el
di

ng
 

Ex
em

pt
 

   
  

  

M
id

dl
e 

N
or

th
 W

al
l o

f 
To

m
bs

to
ne

 
GR

IN
DE

RS
:  

  
  

  
W
EL

DE
RS
:  

  
  

  
OT

HE
R: 

   
   

1 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

N
A

 
B

ag
ho

us
e 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 - 

Pr
es

su
re

 d
ro

p 
ac

ro
ss

 
ba

gh
ou

se
 

Page 100 of 158

198



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
5

2
 

 

   
O

th
er

:  
   

   
Sh

ot
 B

la
st

 M
ac

h.
 

19
 

   
G

rin
di

ng
 

   
W

el
di

ng
 

   
O

th
er

:  
   

   
  

  
  

Ex
em

pt
 

   
  

  

A
rc

-A
ir 

B
oo

th
s N

W
 c

or
ne

r o
f 

Pl
an

t 1
60

3 
C

le
an

 &
 F

in
is

h 
ro

om
 

GR
IN
DE

RS
:  

  
  

  
W
EL

DE
RS
:  

2 
OT

HE
R: 

   
   

  
  

  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
2,

 
A

6  
B

ag
ho

us
e,

 S
ha

ki
ng

 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 - 

Pr
es

su
re

 d
ro

p 
ac

ro
ss

 
ba

gh
ou

se
 

20
 

   
G

rin
di

ng
 

   
W

el
di

ng
 

   
O

th
er

:  
   

   
  

  
  

Ex
em

pt
 

   
  

  

C
om

bi
na

tio
n 

gr
in

di
ng

/w
el

di
ng

 
bo

ot
hs

 lo
ca

te
d 

on
 S

ou
th

 a
nd

 
W

es
t e

nd
 o

f P
la

nt
 1

60
3 

C
&

F 
ro

om
 

GR
IN
DE

RS
:  

8 
W
EL

DE
RS
:  

8 
OT

HE
R: 

   
   

  
  

  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
2,

 
A

6  
B

ag
ho

us
e,

 S
ha

ki
ng

 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 - 

Pr
es

su
re

 d
ro

p 
ac

ro
ss

 
ba

gh
ou

se
 

21
 

   
G

rin
di

ng
 

   
W

el
di

ng
 

   
O

th
er

:  
   

   
  

  
  

Ex
em

pt
 

   
  

  

W
el

di
ng

 b
oo

th
s l

oc
at

ed
 S

E 
co

rn
er

 o
f P

la
nt

 1
60

3 
C

&
F 

ro
om

 
GR

IN
DE

RS
:  

  
  

  
W
EL

DE
RS
:  

4 
OT

HE
R: 

   
   

  
  

  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
2,

 
A

6 
B

ag
ho

us
e,

 S
ha

ki
ng

 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 - 

Pr
es

su
re

 d
ro

p 
ac

ro
ss

 
ba

gh
ou

se
 

  
 

  
 

   
G

rin
di

ng
 

   
W

el
di

ng
 

   
O

th
er

:  
   

   
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
GR

IN
DE

RS
:  

  
  

  
W
EL

DE
RS
:  

  
  

  
OT

HE
R: 

   
   

  
  

  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

  
 

  
 

   
G

rin
di

ng
 

   
W

el
di

ng
 

   
O

th
er

:  
   

   
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
GR

IN
DE

RS
:  

  
  

  
W
EL

DE
RS
:  

  
  

  
OT

HE
R: 

   
   

  
  

  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

  
 

  
 

   
G

rin
di

ng
 

   
W

el
di

ng
 

   
O

th
er

:  
   

   
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
GR

IN
DE

RS
:  

  
  

  
W
EL

DE
RS
:  

  
  

  
OT

HE
R: 

   
   

  
  

  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

Page 101 of 158

199



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 53 

 

C. Management Practices to Reduce Fugitive Emissions- FINISHING OPERATIONS 

 
Provide description of preventative maintenance (PM) activities including PM schedules and 
work practice standards for each abatement device for finishing operations. 

 

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 #
  

 
Abatement Device and 
Manufacturer/Model # 

 
Description of  

Preventative Maintenance Activity 
and Work Practice Standards 

 
 

Schedule of PM 

1 
187 A2 Baghouse Shaker 
 
Industrial Clean Air/6-700 

1. Inspect & lube shaker & fan bearings, 
inspect & check sheaves & V belts. 
2. Inspection of the interior of baghouse 
for structural integrity and fabric bag 
condition. 

Quarterly 
 
Semi Annual 

2 187 A3 Baghouse Shaker 
 
Industrial Clean Air/10,000 cfm 

1. Inspect & lube shaker & fan bearings, 
inspect & check sheaves & V belts. 
2. Inspection of the interior of baghouse 
for structural integrity and fabric bag 
condition 

Quarterly 
 
Semi Annual 

3 187 A4 Baghouse Shaker 
 
Industrial Clean Air/30,000 cfm 

1. Inspect & lube shaker & fan bearings, 
inspect & check sheaves & V belts. 
2. Inspection of the interior of baghouse 
for structural integrity and fabric bag 
condition    

Quarterly 
 
Semi Annual 

4 
187 A6 Baghouse Shaker 
 
Industrial Clean Air/8,000 cfm 

1. Inspect & lube shaker & fan bearings, 
inspect & check sheaves & V belts. 
2. Inspection of the interior of baghouse 
for structural integrity and fabric bag 
condition 

Quarterly 
 
Semi Annual 

5 703 A2 
 
Industrial Clean Air/10-700SN 

1. Inspect & lube shaker & fan bearings, 
inspect & check sheaves & V belts. 
2. Inspection of the interior of baghouse 
for structural integrity and fabric bag 
condition /dye check baghouse, replace 
bags as necessary. Wire brush fan 
blades. 

Quarterly 
 
Semi Annual 

6 703 A7 
 
Melrose 

1. Inspect & lube shaker & fan bearings, 
inspect & check sheaves & V belts. 
2. Inspection of the interior of baghouse 
for structural integrity and fabric bag 
condition /dye check baghouse, replace 
bags as necessary. Wire brush fan 
blades. 

Quarterly 
 
Semi Annual 

7 703 A5 
 
Industrial Clean Air/M-7-800SW 

1. Inspect & lube shaker & fan bearings, 
inspect & check sheaves & V belts. 
2. Inspection of the interior of baghouse 
for structural integrity and fabric bag 

Quarterly 
 
Semi Annual 

Page 102 of 158

200



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 54 
 

condition /dye check baghouse, replace 
bags as necessary. Wire brush fan 
blades. 

8 1603 A2 
 
Pitter Metal Pulse Jet 

1. Inspect & lube fan bearings, inspect 
& check sheaves & V belts. 
2. Inspection of the interior of baghouse 
for structural integrity and fabric bag 
condition / dye check baghouse, replace 
bags as necessary.  

Quarterly  
 
Semi Annual 

9 1603 A6 
 
Pitter Metal Pulse Jet 

1. Inspect & lube fan bearings, inspect 
& check sheaves & V belts. 
2. Inspection of the interior of baghouse 
for structural integrity and fabric bag 
condition / dye check baghouse, replace 
bags as necessary.  

Quarterly  
 
Semi Annual 

            
 
      

            

            
 
      

            

            
 
      

            

  

Page 103 of 158

201



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 55 

 

C. Management Practices to Reduce Fugitive Emissions - FINISHING OPERATIONS 

 
Provide description of other housekeeping measures to abate and/or minimize fugitive 
emissions of odors and/or particulate matter at sources or source areas. 

 

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 #
  

 
Description of  

Housekeeping Measure 

 
 

Purpose of Activity 

 
 

Schedule of 
Activity 

1 Run magnetic sweeper 
followed by Auto Sweeper 

Pick up and remove particulate matter from 
operational area 

Twice per shift 

2 Visually check exhaust 
stacks for particulates and 
dust. 

Insure proper functioning of the baghouse, and 
identify presence of torn bags or bags that have 
fallen off. 

Daily 

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

                        

 

 

Page 104 of 158

202



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 56 
 

 

 

 

 

402.7 Sand Reclamation 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 105 of 158

203



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
5

7
 

 

 B
. 
D

e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 -

 S
A

N
D

 R
E

C
L

A
M

A
T

IO
N

 

Section # 

N
a

m
e

 o
f 

S
a

n
d

 
R

e
c

la
m

a
ti

o
n

 E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

 
a

n
d

  
M

a
n

u
fa

c
tu

re
r/

M
o

d
e

l 
#

 

 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

S
#

 a
n

d
 A

p
p

li
c

a
b

le
  

N
E

S
H

A
P

s
 

S
e

c
ti

o
n

 

D
e

s
c

ri
b

e
 T

y
p

e
 o

f 
S

a
n

d
 

R
e

c
la

m
a

ti
o

n
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

A
b

a
te

d
 

S
o

u
rc

e
 

A
#

 
T

y
p

e
 o

f 
 

A
b

a
te

m
e

n
t 

D
e

v
ic

e
 

P
u

rp
o

s
e

 o
f 

A
b

a
te

m
e

n
t 

 
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 
M

o
n

it
o

re
d

 

  
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 P

a
ra

m
e

te
rs

 
 

1 
2 

Sc
re

en
s -

 V
ib

ra
tin

g 
&

 
R

ot
at

in
g  

 Je
ff

er
y/

R
ot

ex
 

18
7 

S6
, S

7 
   

  
  

Sa
nd

 C
oo

le
r, 

6 
sc

re
en

 
w

/m
ol

d 
re

le
as

e 
vi

rb
ra

tin
g 

un
it 

&
 R

ot
at

in
g 

sa
nd

 
sc

re
en

 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
1 

A
7  

B
ag

ho
us

e 
Pu

ls
e 

Je
t 

/ C
ar

bo
n 

A
ds

or
pt

io
n  

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r 
O

do
rs

 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 v

is
ua

l c
he

ck
 fo

r p
ar

tic
ul

at
es

 
an

d 
du

st
.   

C
ar

bo
n 

un
its

 P
re

ss
ur

e 
1<

P<
9,

 
Te

m
p 

<1
10

 F
 

2 
Th

er
m

al
 R

ec
ov

er
y 

Lu
m

p 
B

re
ak

er
 

 D
ep

en
da

bl
e 

70
3 

S4
5 

   
  

  

Lu
m

p 
re

du
ce

r  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

A
10

 
B

ag
ho

us
e 

Pu
ls

e 
Je

t 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 v

is
ua

l c
he

ck
 fo

r p
ar

tic
ul

at
es

 
an

d 
du

st
. 

3 
TR

 F
lo

w
 B

in
 - 

R
ej

ec
te

d 
m

at
l. 

   
  

  

70
3 

S4
6 

   
  

  

M
ag

ne
tic

 S
ep

ar
at

or
, s

an
d 

ho
pp

er
 &

 b
uc

ke
t e

le
va

to
r 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
10

 
B

ag
ho

us
e 

Pu
ls

e 
Je

t 
Pa

rti
cu

la
te

 M
at

te
r 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 v

is
ua

l c
he

ck
 fo

r p
ar

tic
ul

at
es

 
an

d 
du

st
. 

4 
TR

 S
an

d 
C

oo
le

r/A
ir 

B
ed

 
 D

ep
en

da
bl

e/
V

TO
 JD

R
  

70
3 

S4
7 

   
  

  

Sa
nd

 C
oo

le
r, 

co
ol

in
g 

to
w

er
 &

 b
uc

ke
t e

le
va

to
r 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
10

 
B

ag
ho

us
e 

Pu
ls

e 
Je

t 
Pa

rti
cu

la
te

 M
at

te
r 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 v

is
ua

l c
he

ck
 fo

r p
ar

tic
ul

at
es

 
an

d 
du

st
. 

5 
TR

 M
at

er
ia

l H
an

dl
in

g 
Eq

ui
p.

 
 D

ep
en

da
bl

e 

70
3 

S4
8 

   
  

  

 3
 h

op
pe

rs
, 3

 b
uc

ke
t 

el
ev

at
or

s 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

A
10

 
B

ag
ho

us
e 

Pu
ls

e 
Je

t 
Pa

rti
cu

la
te

 M
at

te
r 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 v

is
ua

l c
he

ck
 fo

r p
ar

tic
ul

at
es

 
an

d 
du

st
. 

6 
Th

er
m

al
 R

ec
yc

lin
g 

U
ni

t 
 D

ep
en

da
bl

e 
2 

TP
H

 H
TC

C
 

70
3 

S4
9 

   
  

  

2 
to

n 
pe

r h
ou

r g
as

 fi
re

d 
th

er
m

al
 sa

nd
  r

ec
la

im
er

 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

A
10

 
B

ag
ho

us
e 

Pu
ls

e 
Je

t 
Pa

rti
cu

la
te

 M
at

te
r 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 v

is
ua

l c
he

ck
 fo

r p
ar

tic
ul

at
es

 
an

d 
du

st
. 

7 
Sa

nd
 C

oo
le

r C
la

ss
iri

er
 

 O
m

co
 F

in
 T

yp
e 

16
03

 S
9 

   
  

  

Fi
n 

ty
pe

 sa
nd

 c
oo

lin
g 

sy
st

em
 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
4 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
Pu

ls
e 

Je
t 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 v

is
ua

l c
he

ck
 fo

r p
ar

tic
ul

at
es

 
an

d 
du

st
. 

8 
2 

Sa
nd

 C
on

di
tio

ni
ng

 U
ni

ts
 

 B
 &

 P
 P

ne
u-

cl
ai

m
 

16
03

 S
10

, S
11

 
   

  
  

Pn
eu

m
at

ic
 sa

nd
  

re
cl

ai
m

er
s 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
4 

 B
ag

ho
us

e 
Pu

ls
e 

Je
t  

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 v

is
ua

l c
he

ck
 fo

r p
ar

tic
ul

at
es

 
an

d 
du

st
. 

9 
2 

Sa
nd

 st
or

ag
e 

si
lo

s 
   

  
  

16
03

 S
12

, S
13

 
   

  
  

R
et

ur
n 

sa
nd

 b
in

, 
R

ec
la

im
ed

 sa
nd

 b
in

 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

A
4 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
Pu

ls
e 

Je
t 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 M

at
te

r 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

D
ai

ly
 v

is
ua

l c
he

ck
 fo

r p
ar

tic
ul

at
es

 
an

d 
du

st
.  

      

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o

  
  

  

      

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  

Page 106 of 158

204



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 58 

 

C. Management Practices to Reduce Fugitive Emissions - SAND RECLAMATION 

 
Provide description of preventative maintenance (PM) activities including PM schedules and 
work practice standards for each abatement device for sand reclamation making operations. 

 

 S
e
c
ti

o
n

 #
  

 
Abatement Device and 
Manufacturer/Model # 

 
Description of  

Preventative Maintenance Activity and 
Work Practice Standards 

 
 

Schedule of PM 

1 187 A1 Baghouse Shaking 
 
Industrial Clean Air 30,000cf 

Monitor carbon prefilters. Increased 
prefilter pressure indicates A1 baghouse 
inefficiencies, troubleshoot if necessary.  
Visual inspection internal (bag condition  
(holes), linkage wear, excessive build-up, 
inner shell for holes) & external (outer 
shell for holes, leaks and seal condition). 
Replace or repair items based on 
inspection findings. 

Daily 
 
 
Semi Annual 

2 187 A7 Carbon Adsorption  
 
Melrose 

Replace carbon and prefilters as necessary 
based on odor test & pressure drops across 
carbon bed & prefilters checked daily 

As required - based on  
monitoring data 
(1<P<9), Odor test 
>25 odor units  

3 703 A10 Pulse Jet Baghouse 
 
Sly/STJ-1511-10 

Check pulse jet pressure. 
Check baghouse and filter cartridge 
integrity. 
Replace cartridge filters as necessary. 

Weekly 
 
Semi Annual 

4 1603 A4 Baghouse Pulse Jet 
 
Bahnson Hawley HE-210-10 

Inspect & lube fan bearings, inspect & 
check sheaves & V belts. 
Visual inspection internal (bag condition  
(holes), linkage wear, excessive build-up, 
inner shell for holes) & external (outer 
shell for holes, leaks and seal condition). 
Replace or repair items based on 
inspection findings. 

Quarterly 
 
Semi Annual 

            
 
      

            

            
 
      

            

            
 
      

            

            
 
      

            

Page 107 of 158

205



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 59 
 

C. Management Practices to Reduce Fugitive Emissions - SAND RECLAMATION 

 
Provide description of other housekeeping measures to abate and/or minimize fugitive 
emissions of odors and/or particulate matter at sources or source areas. 

 

 

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 #
  

Description of  
Housekeeping Measure 

 
 

Purpose of Activity 

 
 

Schedule of Activity 

1 Plant 187 sand reclaim unit is 
on the roof of the building.  
Regular roof inspections are 
conducted. Roof  sweeping is 
conducted if any sand is 
observed on the roof. 
 
 

Remove particulate matter Weekly 

            
 
 

            

            
 
 

        

            
 
 

            

            
 
 

            

            
 
 

            

            
 
 

            

            
 
 

            

Page 108 of 158

206



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 60 
 

 

 

 

 

402.9 Dross and Slag Management 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 109 of 158

207



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
6

1
 

 

 B
. 
D

e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 -

 D
R

O
S

S
 A

N
D

 S
L

A
G

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 

Section # 

M
a

te
ri

a
l 

 
D

e
s

c
ri

b
e

 
L

o
c
a
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
C

o
o

li
n

g
 o

f 
M

a
te

ri
a

l 
A

b
a

te
d

 
S

o
u

rc
e

 
A

#
 

T
y
p

e
 o

f 
 

A
b

a
te

m
e

n
t 

D
e

v
ic

e
 

P
u

rp
o

s
e

 o
f 

A
b

a
te

m
e

n
t 

 
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 
M

o
n

it
o

re
d

 

   
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 P
a

ra
m

e
te

rs
 

 

 
M

a
te

ri
a

l 
D

is
p

o
s

it
io

n
 

1 

D
ro

ss
 

D
o 

no
t g

en
er

at
e 

dr
os

s -
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 n

on
 

fe
rr

ou
s m

et
al

s 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  O

ffs
ite

 R
ec

yc
lin

g 

  O
ffs

ite
 D

is
po

sa
l 

  O
ns

ite
 R

ep
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

 

2 

Sl
ag

 

Pl
an

t 1
87

 B
et

w
ee

n 
EA

F 
an

d 
B

 li
ne

 p
ou

rin
g 

Pl
an

t 7
03

 M
el

tin
g 

ro
om

 N
or

th
 e

nd
 

Pl
an

t 1
60

3 
Po

ur
in

g 
ro

om
 S

ou
th

 e
nd

 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

A
8,

 A
7 

A
1,

 A
7 

A
3,

 A
7,

 
A

8  

B
ag

ho
us

e 
in

to
 C

ar
bo

n 
un

it 

Pa
rti

cu
la

te
 m

at
te

r a
nd

 o
do

r 
ab

at
em

en
t  

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

18
7 

&
 7

03
 - 

 C
ar

bo
n 

un
its

 P
re

ss
ur

e 
1<

P<
9,

  
70

3 
- T

em
p 

<1
10

 F
 

16
03

 - 
Pe

rm
it 

re
qu

ire
d 

- F
ID

 >
65

pp
m

  
(P

SC
 p

ol
ic

y 
 w

he
n 

FI
D

 o
ut

le
t >

20
 

pp
m

 a
nd

/o
r >

70
0 

to
ns

 o
f s

te
el

 
pr

os
es

se
d)

 

  O
ffs

ite
 R

ec
yc

lin
g 

  O
ffs

ite
 D

is
po

sa
l 

  O
ns

ite
 R

ep
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

 

              
 

Page 110 of 158

208



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 62 

 

C. Management Practices to Reduce Fugitive Emissions - DROSS AND SLAG 
MANAGEMENT 

 
Provide description of preventative maintenance (PM) activities including PM schedules and 
work practice standards for each abatement device for dross and slag operations. 

 

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 #
  

Abatement Device 
and Manufacturer/ 

Model # 

 
Description of  

Preventative Maintenance Activity and 
Work Practice Standards 

 
 

Schedule of PM 

1 187 A8 Baghouse, 
Pulse Jet 
 
ToritCartridge  

1.Check manometer across baghouse. 
2.Visual inspection internal (condition of 
filter railings and integrity/condition of 
cartridge filter) & external (frame 
integrity, diaphragm seal). 
3.Replace cartridge filters, based on 
inspection and/or changing  manometer 
readings . 

1.Weekly  
2.SemiAnnual 
 
 
3.As required, based on 
inspection 

2 187 A7 Carbon 
Adsorption  
 
Melrose 

Replace carbon and prefilters as necessary 
based on odor test & pressure drops across 
carbon bed & prefilters checked daily 

As required - based on  
monitoring data (1<P<9), 
Odor test >25 odor units  

3 703 A2 Baghouse 
Shaking 
 
Industrial Clean 
Air/10-700 SN      

1.Inspect & lube shaker & fan bearings, 
inspect & check sheaves & V belts. 
2. Inspection of the interior of baghouse 
for structural integrity and fabric bag 
condition/dye check baghouse, replace 
bags as necessary. Wire brush fan blades. 

1.Weekly 
 
2.Quarterly 

4 703 A7 Carbon 
Adsorption 
 
Melrose 

Replace carbon and prefilters as necessary 
based on odor test & pressure drops across 
carbon bed & prefilters checked daily 

As required - based on  
monitoring data (1<P<9), 
Odor test >25 odor units  

5 1603 A3 Baghouse, 
Pulse Jet 
 
Bahnson Hwaley/HE-
378-10 

1.Check manometer across baghouse. 
2.Inspection of the interior of baghouse for 
structural integrity and fabric bag 
condition. 
3.Replace cartridge filters based on 
inspection and/or changing  manometer 
readings  

1. Monthly 
2. Quarterly 
 
 
3.As required, based on 
inspection 

6 1603 A7 Baghouse, 
Pulse Jet 
 
Bahnson Hwaley/HE-
378-10 

1.Check manometer across baghouse. 
2.Inspection of the interior of baghouse for 
structural integrity and fabric bag 
condition. 
3.Replace cartridge filters based on 
inspection and/or changing  manometer 
readings  

1. Monthly 
2. Quarterly 
 
 
3.As required, based on 
inspection 

Page 111 of 158

209



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 63 
 

7 1603 A7 Carbon 
Adsorption 
 
Melrose 

Replace carbon and prefilters as necessary 
based on FID, pressure drops across 
carbon bed & prefilters checked daily 

Permit required - FID >65ppm  
(PSC policy when FID outlet 
>20 ppm and/or >700 tons of 
steel processed) 

            
 
      

            

            
 
      

            

            
 
      

            

            
 
      

            

 
  

Page 112 of 158

210



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 64 
 

C. Management Practices to Reduce Fugitive Emissions - DROSS AND SLAG 
MANAGEMENT 

 
Provide description of other housekeeping measures to abate and/or minimize fugitive 
emissions of odors and/or particulate matter at sources or source areas. 

 

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 #
  

Description of  
Housekeeping Measure 

 
 

Purpose of Activity 

 
 

Schedule of Activity 

1 Monitor bin loading to avoid 
overloading  
 
 

Eliminate spills On going 

2 Sweep area after loading trucks 
for offsite disposition 
 
 

Remove particulate matter Every load pick up 

3 Configure door openings & 
room enclosures to enhance 
odor capture Plant #187 
Pouring room, all 2nd street 
doors 1-C, & 1-J closed at all 
times, south doors open on 
calm days.  Plant #703 2-D, 2-J 
doors closed. Plant #1603 3-A, 
3-B, 3-D, 3-E, 3-O doors 
closed. 
 
 

Eliminate odors through enhanced 
capture of slag emissions 

Daily 

            
 
 

            

            
 
 

            

            
 
 

            

            
 
 

            

 
 

  

Page 113 of 158

211



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
6

5
 

 

B
. 

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

A
b

a
te

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 

Pr
ov

id
e 

a 
co

m
pr

eh
en

siv
e 

lis
t o

f a
ll 

ab
at

em
en

t a
nd

 c
on

tr
ol

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t f

or
 o

pe
ra

tio
ns

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
12

-1
3-

40
2 

an
d 

id
en

tif
y 

th
e 

so
ur

ce
(s

) o
f o

pe
ra

tio
n 

in
 w

hi
ch

 it
 a

ba
te

s.
  I

f t
he

 a
ba

te
m

en
t e

qu
ip

m
en

t a
ba

te
s m

ul
tip

le
 

so
ur

ce
s,

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 d

et
ai

le
d 

de
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 h
ow

 th
e 

ab
at

em
en

t i
s d

es
ig

na
te

d 
to

 th
os

e 
so

ur
ce

s.
  

   

Section # 

  
N

a
m

e
 o

f 
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
 

  
D

is
tr

ic
t 

A
#

 

  
N

a
m

e
s

 o
f 

S
o

u
rc

e
(s

) 
A

b
a

te
d

 

  
D

is
tr

ic
t 

S
#
 

  
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

A
b

a
te

m
e

n
t 

1 
18

7 
A

1 
B

ag
ho

us
e 

 
A

1 
A

 li
ne

 S
ha

ke
ou

t, 
B

 li
ne

 S
ha

ke
ou

t, 
Sa

nd
 M

ul
le

r, 
Sa

nd
 re

cl
ai

m
 s

ys
te

m
 

S3
, S

4,
 

S 5
, S

6,
 

S7
, S

8 

Pu
ls

e 
Je

t 

2 
18

7 
A

2 
B

ag
ho

us
e 

 
A

2 
Tw

o 
R

ot
ob

la
st

 u
ni

ts
 lo

ca
te

d 
in

 C
le

an
 &

 F
in

is
h 

ro
om

 
S1

6,
 

S1
7 

Sh
ak

er
 

3 
18

7 
A

3 
B

ag
ho

us
e 

 
A

3 
Ta

bl
e 

B
la

st
 

S1
5 

Sh
ak

er
 

4 
18

7 
A

4 
B

ag
ho

us
e 

 
A

4 
C

le
an

in
g 

&
 G

rin
di

ng
 D

ep
t.,

 A
rc

-A
ir 

B
oo

th
 

S1
2,

 
S1

3  
Sh

ak
er

 

5 
18

7 
A

6 
B

ag
ho

us
e 

 
A

6 
A

rc
-A

ir 
Bo

ot
h 

N
A

 
Sh

ak
er

 

6 
18

7 
A

7 
A

ds
or

pt
io

n,
 A

ct
iv

at
ed

 c
ar

bo
n 

A
7 

Po
ur

in
g 

A
re

a 
(S

2)
 

A
 li

ne
 (S

4)
 &

 B
 li

ne
 (S

3)
 sh

ak
eo

ut
s 

Sa
nd

 re
cl

ai
m

 (s
an

d 
co

ol
er

,sa
nd

 sc
re

en
) (

S6
, S

7)
 

Sa
nd

 M
ix

er
 (S

5,
 S

8)
  

S2
, S

3,
 

S4
, S

5,
 

S6
, S

7,
 

S8
  

A
8 

Pu
ls

e 
Je

t-S
2.

  
A

1 
Pu

ls
e 

Je
t-S

3,
S4

,S
5,

S6
,S

7,
S8

.  
C

A
-1

, C
A

-2
a 

an
d 

C
A

-2
b 

C
ar

bo
n 

be
d-

A
1 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
an

d 
A

8 
B

ag
ho

us
e.

  

7 
18

7 
A

8 
B

ag
ho

us
e 

 
A

8 
Po

ur
 o

ff
 a

re
a,

 m
ai

n 
flo

or
 

S2
 

Pu
ls

e 
Je

t 

8 
18

7 
A

9 
B

ag
ho

us
e 

 
A

9 
El

ec
tri

c 
A

rc
 F

ur
na

ce
 

S1
 

Sh
ak

er
 

9 
18

7 
A

10
 B

ag
ho

us
e 

 
A

10
 

C
or

e 
Sa

nd
 M

ul
le

r 
S1

0 
Pu

ls
e 

Je
t 

10
 

18
7 

E2
5 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
Ex

em
pt

 
Pl

an
t 1

 C
el

l R
ot

ob
la

st
 

N
A

 
Sh

ak
er

 

11
 

70
3 

A
1 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
 

A
1 

EA
F 

La
dl

e 
St

at
io

n 
w

/ c
an

op
y 

ho
od

, S
he

ll 
M

ol
d 

Po
ur

 S
ta

tio
n,

Sh
ak

eo
ut

 
S2

8,
 

S2
9,

 
S3

1 

Sh
ak

er
 

Page 114 of 158

212



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
6

6
 

    

Section # 

  
N

a
m

e
 o

f 
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
 

  
D

is
tr

ic
t 

A
#

 

  
N

a
m

e
s

 o
f 

S
o

u
rc

e
(s

) 
A

b
a

te
d

 

  
D

is
tr

ic
t 

S
#
 

  
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

A
b

a
te

m
e

n
t 

12
 

70
3 

A
2 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
 

A
2 

C
as

t M
ol

d 
C

oo
lin

g 
R

oo
m

, R
ot

ob
la

st
 

S2
9,

 
S3

1 
Sh

ak
er

 

13
 

70
3 

A
3 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
A

3 
EA

F 
El

ec
tir

c 
A

rc
 F

ur
na

ce
 

S2
7 

Sh
ak

er
 

14
 

70
3 

A
4 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
 

A
4 

Sa
nd

 H
ea

te
r, 

Sa
nd

 C
oa

tin
g,

 C
oa

te
d 

sa
nd

 p
ug

 m
ill

, C
oa

te
d 

sa
nd

 
vi

br
at

in
g 

sc
re

en
, B

uc
ke

t e
le

va
to

r 
S6

, S
7,

 
S8

, S
9,

 
S1

0 

Sh
ak

er
 

15
 

70
3 

A
5 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
 

A
5 

Sa
nd

 si
lo

s #
1,

  #
2 

&
 lo

ad
in

g 
el

ev
at

or
, B

uc
ke

t e
le

va
to

r, 
4 

ab
ra

si
ve

 c
ut

-
of

f s
aw

s, 
4 

gr
in

de
rs

 
S1

, S
2,

 
S3

, S
4,

 
S3

3-
S4

0 

Sh
ak

er
 

16
 

70
3 

A
10

 B
ag

ho
us

e 
 

A
10

 
Sa

nd
 si

lo
, L

um
p 

br
ea

ke
r, 

flo
w

 b
in

, S
an

d 
co

ol
er

, M
at

er
ia

l h
an

dl
in

g 
eq

ui
pm

en
t, 

Th
er

m
al

 re
cy

cl
in

g 
un

it 
S4

4,
S4

5
S4

6,
S4

7
S4

8,
S4

9 

Pu
ls

e 
Je

t 

17
 

70
3 

T1
27

 B
ag

ho
us

e 
 

Ex
em

pt
 

Sh
ot

 b
la

st
 m

ac
hi

ne
 

N
A

 
Pu

ls
e 

Je
t 

18
 

70
3 

A
7 

A
ds

or
pt

io
n,

 A
ct

iv
at

ed
 C

ar
bo

n 
A

7 
EA

F 
La

dl
e 

St
at

io
n 

w
/ c

an
op

y 
ho

od
 (S

28
) 

Sh
el

l M
ol

d 
Po

ur
 S

ta
tio

n 
(S

29
) 

Sh
ak

eo
ut

 (S
31

) 
C

oo
lin

g 
R

oo
m

 (S
30

) 
R

ot
ob

la
st

 (S
32

) 
2 

Sh
el

l t
w

in
 m

ol
di

ng
 m

ac
hi

ne
s (

S2
2,

 S
23

) 

S2
2,

S2
3

S2
8,

S2
9 

S3
0,

S3
1 

S3
2  

A
1 

Sh
ak

er
-S

28
, S

29
,S

31
. 

A
2 

Sh
ak

er
-S

30
,S

32
. 

C
A

-1
 c

ar
bo

n 
be

d-
A

2 
B

ag
ho

us
e.

  
C

A
-2

 &
 C

A
-3

 C
ar

bo
n 

be
d-

S2
2,

S2
3 

an
d 

A
1 

B
ag

ho
us

e.
  

 

 19
 

16
03

 A
1 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
 

A
1 

El
ec

tri
c 

A
rc

 F
ur

na
ce

 
S1

 
Pu

ls
e 

Je
t 

20
 

16
03

 A
2B

ag
ho

us
e 

 
A

2 
B

la
st

 ta
bl

e,
 R

ot
ob

la
st

,  
A

rc
-a

ir 
bo

ot
hs

, W
el

di
ng

 b
oo

th
s 

S5
, S

6 
Sh

ak
er

 

21
 

16
03

 A
3B

ag
ho

us
e 

 
A

3 
M

ol
d 

Sh
ak

ou
t, 

Sa
nd

 M
ix

er
 u

til
tiz

in
g 

Te
ch

ni
se

t b
in

de
rs

, M
ol

d 
co

at
in

g,
 

Po
ur

in
g/

co
ol

in
g 

S4
, S

14
 

S1
8,

S1
9 

Pu
ls

e 
Je

t 

22
 

16
04

 A
4 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
 

A
4 

Sa
nd

 si
lo

 #
1,

 S
an

d 
co

ol
er

, S
an

d 
co

nd
iti

on
in

g 
un

its
 #

1 
&

 #
2,

 R
et

ur
n 

sa
nd

 
bi

n 
#1

 &
 #

2,
 S

an
d 

el
ev

at
or

s #
1,

 #
2,

 &
 #

3.
 

S7
, S

9,
 

S1
0,

S1
1 

S1
2,

S1
3 

S1
5,

S1
6 

S1
7 

Pu
ls

e 
Je

t 

Page 115 of 158

213



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
6

7
 

  

Section # 

  
N

a
m

e
 o

f 
A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
 

  
D

is
tr

ic
t 

A
#

 

  
N

a
m

e
s

 o
f 

S
o

u
rc

e
(s

) 
A

b
a

te
d

 

  
D

is
tr

ic
t 

S
#
 

  
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

A
b

a
te

m
e

n
t 

23
 

16
04

 A
5 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
A

5 
Sa

nd
 M

ix
er

 u
til

iz
in

g 
Te

ch
is

et
 B

in
de

rs
 

S1
4 

D
ry

 F
ilt

er
 

24
 

16
03

 A
6 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
 

A
6 

B
la

st
 ta

bl
e,

 T
um

bl
e 

bl
as

t, 
A

rc
-a

ir 
bo

ot
hs

, W
el

di
ng

 b
oo

th
s 

S5
, S

6 
Sh

ak
er

  

25
 

16
03

 A
7 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
 

A
7 

M
ol

d 
Sh

ak
eo

ut
, S

an
d 

M
ix

er
 u

til
tiz

in
g 

Te
ch

ni
se

t b
in

de
rs

, M
ol

d 
co

at
in

g,
 

Po
ur

in
g/

co
ol

in
g 

S4
, S

14
 

S1
8,

S1
9 

Pu
ls

e 
Je

t 

26
 

16
03

 A
8 

A
ds

or
pt

io
n,

 A
ct

iv
at

ed
 C

ar
bo

n 
A

8 
M

ol
d 

Sh
ak

eo
ut

 (S
4)

 
Sa

nd
 M

ix
er

 u
til

tiz
in

g 
Te

ch
ni

se
t b

in
de

rs
 (S

14
) 

M
ol

d 
co

at
in

g 
(S

18
) 

Po
ur

in
g/

co
ol

in
g 

(S
19

) 

S4
, S

14
 

S1
8,

S1
9 

A
3 

an
d 

A
7 

Pu
ls

e 
Je

t-S
4,

S1
4,

S1
8 

an
d 

S1
9.

 
C

A
-1

, C
A

-2
 a

nd
 C

A
-3

 C
ar

bo
n 

be
d-

A
3 

B
ag

ho
us

e 
an

d 
A

7 
B

ag
ho

us
e.

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Page 116 of 158

214



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 68 

 

Technical Data 

12-13-403.1 

 

A. Process Flow Diagram – Facilities must indicate all operations in Section 12-13-
402, the flow of materials used and identify all monitoring of processes, abatement 
and controls to minimize emissions beginning from material receipt to achievement of 
final product.  Identify all abatement and control devices by District source numbers 
according to District Permit or as exempt from District Permit. 

 
B. Facility Layout / Floor Plan - Facilities must indicate all relative locations of 

processing equipment and monitoring and controls, all permitted and exempt sources 
identified in the process flow diagram per Section 12-13-403.1.1 and any other 
source(s) that may contribute to particulates and odors. Include all building walls, 
partitions, doors, windows, vents and openings and indicate all areas that have 
abatement for particulates and odors. Identify all metal melting and processing 
equipment by District source numbers according to District Permit or as exempt from 
District Permit.    

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 117 of 158

215



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
6

9
 

  

A.
  P

ro
ce

ss
 F

lo
w

 D
ia

gr
am

  

  A
pp

en
di

xB
 - 

C
on

fid
en

tia
l

Page 118 of 158

216



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
7

0
 

 

B.
 Fa

ci
lit

y 
La

yo
ut

 /
 F

lo
or

 P
la

n 

 A
pp

en
di

xC
 - 

 C
on

fid
en

tia
ls

. 
                                        

Page 119 of 158

217



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 71 

 

Fugitive Emissions Reductions Previously Realized 

12-13-403.2 

 

Facilities must provide a description of the equipment, processes and procedures installed or 
implemented within the last five years to reduce fugitive emissions.  Include the purpose for 
implementation and detail any employee training that was conducted for that equipment, 
process or procedure and the frequency of any ongoing training. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 120 of 158

218



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
7

2
 

  

 1
2

-1
3

-4
0

3
.2

  
 F

U
G

IT
IV

E
 E

M
IS

S
IO

N
S

 P
R

E
V

IO
U

S
L

Y
 R

E
A

L
IZ

E
D

 

Section # 

  
Id

e
n

ti
fy

 T
y
p

e
 o

f 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

  
p

e
r 

S
e
c

ti
o

n
 1

2
-1

3
-

4
0

2
 

   
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t,

 P
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 o

r 
P

ro
c

e
d

u
re

s
 P

re
v
io

u
s

ly
 R

e
a

li
z
e

d
 

  
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

D
a

te
 

 
 

P
u

rp
o

s
e

 o
f 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
 

 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 

C
o

n
d

u
c

te
d

 

  
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 T

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
 o

f 
T

ra
in

in
g

 

1 
M

ol
d 

&
 c

or
e 

m
ak

in
g,

 
m

et
al

 m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

Fu
rn

ac
e 

op
er

at
io

ns
, 

ca
st

in
g 

&
 c

oo
lin

g,
 

sh
ak

eo
ut

, f
in

is
hi

ng
, 

Sa
nd

 re
cl

ai
m

, S
la

g 

 O
do

r M
an

ag
em

en
t P

la
n 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

B
A

A
Q

M
D

 
 

10
/0

3/
20

08
 

R
ed

uc
e 

od
or

s a
nd

 p
ar

tic
ul

at
e 

m
at

te
r. 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

A
ll 

em
pl

oy
ee

s t
ra

in
ed

 a
fte

r i
ni

tia
l r

ol
l o

ut
.  

Y
ea

rly
 re

fr
es

he
r t

ra
in

in
g 

is
 c

on
du

ct
ed

. P
la

n 
el

em
en

ts
 a

re
 a

ls
o 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 P
SC

 
op

er
at

in
g 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
. J

ob
 sp

ec
ifi

c 
tra

in
in

g 
is

 
in

cl
ud

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
PS

C
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
tra

in
in

g,
 w

he
n 

co
nd

uc
te

d.
 

2 
M

ol
d 

&
 c

or
e 

m
ak

in
g,

  
ca

st
in

g 
&

 c
oo

lin
g,

 
sh

ak
eo

ut
, S

an
d 

re
cl

ai
m

 

 P
la

nt
 1

60
3 

ch
an

ge
 to

 lo
w

er
 V

O
C

 b
in

de
r; 

 
 

20
08

 
R

ed
uc

e 
V

O
C

 e
m

is
si

on
s 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

In
iti

al
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 to

 m
ak

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s a

w
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

sa
nd

 re
ci

pe
 c

ha
ng

e.
 

3 
Fu

rn
ac

e 
op

er
at

io
ns

 
Pl

an
t 1

60
3 

EA
F 

R
oo

m
 fu

m
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

in
st

al
le

d;
 

 
20

08
 

In
cr

ea
se

 c
ap

tu
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

nc
y 

of
 o

do
rs

 a
nd

 p
ar

tic
ul

at
e 

m
at

te
r 

 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 tr
ai

ne
d 

on
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t P
M

 

4 
M

ol
d 

&
 c

or
e 

m
ak

in
g,

  
ca

st
in

g 
&

 c
oo

lin
g,

 
sh

ak
eo

ut
, S

an
d 

re
cl

ai
m

 

Pl
an

t 7
03

 p
re

co
at

ed
 sa

nd
 c

ha
ng

ed
 to

 lo
w

er
 V

O
C

 
pr

od
uc

t  
 

20
09

 
R

ed
uc

e 
V

O
C

 e
m

is
si

on
s 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s t
ra

in
ed

 o
n 

ne
w

 M
SD

S 
af

te
r c

ha
ng

e.
 

5 
C

as
tin

g 
&

 c
oo

lin
g,

 
sh

ak
eo

ut
 

Pl
an

t 1
87

 M
ai

n 
Fl

oo
r f

um
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 
ba

gh
ou

se
 a

nd
 c

ar
bo

n 
un

it 
 

 
20

10
 

In
cr

ea
se

 c
ap

tu
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

nc
y 

of
 o

do
rs

 a
nd

 p
ar

tic
ul

at
e 

m
at

te
r 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 tr
ai

ne
d 

on
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t P
M

 

6 
M

ol
d 

&
 c

or
e 

m
ak

in
g 

Pl
an

t 1
87

 C
or

e 
R

oo
m

 b
ag

ho
us

e 
in

st
al

le
d.

 
 

20
10

 
A

ba
te

 c
or

e 
ro

om
 p

ar
tic

ul
at

e 
m

at
te

r. 
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 tr
ai

ne
d 

on
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t P
M

 

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
  

  

  
 

Page 121 of 158

219



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 73 

 

Schedule for the Implementation of the EMP Elements  

12-13-403.3 

  

A. Provide a list of existing or current EMP elements in place pursuant to and under a District 
Authority to Construct as of the initial date of EMP submittal (on or before May 1, 2014). 
Include a description, the purpose and schedule of the element(s). 
 

B. Provide a list of new or future EMP elements to be implemented following APCO approval of 
the EMP. Include a description, the purpose and schedule of the element(s) to be 
implemented.  

 

  

Page 122 of 158

220



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
7

4
 

  

 
A

. 
1

2
-1

3
-4

0
3

.3
.1

  
 S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E
 F

O
R

 T
H

E
 I

M
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 O
F

 T
H

E
 E

M
P

 E
L

E
M

E
N

T
S

 (
o

n
 o

r 
b

e
fo

re
 M

a
y
 1

, 
2

0
1

4
) 

Section # 

  
Id

e
n

ti
fy

 T
y
p

e
 o

f 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

  
p

e
r 

S
e
c

ti
o

n
 1

2
-1

3
-4

0
2

 

  
L

is
t 

S
p

e
c
if

ic
 E

le
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 b

e
 I

m
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

  
o

n
 o

r 
b

e
fo

re
 M

a
y
 1

, 
2
0

1
4

 

  
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

D
a

te
 

  
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

E
le

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 b
e

 I
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

 
 

P
u

rp
o

s
e

 o
f 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
 

 

  
 

  
 

N
A

 
  

  
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

  
  

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

Page 123 of 158

221



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
7

5
 

    
 

 
B

. 
1

2
-1

3
-4

0
3

.3
.2

  
N

E
W

 O
R

 F
U

T
U

R
E

 E
M

P
 E

L
E

M
E

N
T

S
 T

O
 B

E
 I

M
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

E
D

 

Section # 

 
Id

e
n

ti
fy

 T
y
p

e
 o

f 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

  
p

e
r 

S
e
c

ti
o

n
 1

2
-1

3
-4

0
2

 

  
L

is
t 

S
p

e
c
if

ic
 E

le
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 b

e
 I

m
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 
F

o
ll

o
w

in
g

 A
P

C
O

 A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
o

f 
th

e
 E

M
P

 
 

  
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

D
a

te
 

  
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

E
le

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 b
e

 I
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

 
 

P
u

rp
o

s
e

 o
f 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
 

 

1 
M

ol
d 

an
d 

C
or

e 
M

ak
in

g 
- 7

03
 

C
on

si
de

r i
ns

ta
lla

tio
n 

of
 v

en
til

at
io

n 
ho

od
s o

ve
r S

-
19

 a
nd

 S
-2

6 
 

To
 B

e 
D

et
er

m
in

ed
 

W
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

an
d 

D
is

tri
ct

 S
ta

ff
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
ca

pa
bi

lit
ie

s a
nd

 p
er

m
it 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 fo
r i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n/
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 h
oo

ds
 o

ve
r S

-1
9 

an
d 

S-
26

 

Fu
rth

er
 re

du
ce

 fu
gi

tiv
e 

em
is

si
on

s o
f P

M
 a

nd
 

od
or

s 

2 
C

as
tin

g 
an

d 
C

oo
lin

g 
- 1

87
 

C
on

si
de

r i
ns

ta
lli

ng
 w

al
l t

o 
is

ol
at

e 
po

ur
in

g 
op

er
at

io
ns

 in
 P

la
nt

 1
 

 
To

 b
e 

D
et

er
m

in
ed

 
W

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
an

d 
D

is
tri

ct
 S

ta
ff

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 
an

d 
pe

rm
it 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 fo
r i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n/
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 w
al

l 
Fu

rth
er

 re
du

ce
 fu

gi
tiv

e 
em

is
si

on
s o

f P
M

 a
nd

 
od

or
s 

3 
M

ol
d 

Sh
ak

eo
ut

Sa
nd

 M
ix

er
 

ut
ilt

iz
in

g 
Te

ch
ni

se
t b

in
de

rs
 

M
ol

d 
co

at
in

g 
Po

ur
in

g/
co

ol
in

g 
- 1

80
3 

C
on

si
de

r i
nc

re
as

in
g 

ca
rb

on
 sy

st
em

 c
ap

ac
ity

 
w

hi
ch

 a
ff

ec
ts

: 
M

ol
d 

Sh
ak

eo
ut

 (S
4)

 
Sa

nd
 M

ix
er

 (S
14

) 
M

ol
d 

co
at

in
g 

(S
18

) 
Po

ur
in

g/
co

ol
in

g 
(S

19
) 

 
To

 b
e 

D
et

er
m

in
ed

 
W

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
an

d 
D

is
tri

ct
 S

ta
ff

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

ca
pa

bi
lit

ie
s a

nd
 p

er
m

it 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 fo

r i
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

 

Im
pr

ov
e 

ab
at

em
en

t c
ap

ac
ity

  
 

4 
Sa

nd
 R

ec
la

m
at

io
n 

- 7
03

 
C

on
si

de
r c

on
ne

ct
in

g 
Sa

nd
 R

ec
la

m
at

io
n 

U
ni

t (
S-

49
)  t

o 
C

ar
bo

n 
U

ni
t 

 
To

 b
e 

D
et

er
m

in
ed

 
W

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
an

d 
D

is
tri

ct
 S

ta
ff

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

ca
pa

bi
lit

ie
s a

nd
 p

er
m

it 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 fo

r i
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

Fu
rth

er
 re

du
ce

 fu
gi

tiv
e 

em
is

si
on

s o
f P

M
 a

nd
 

od
or

s  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

  
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Page 124 of 158

222



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 76 

 

Compliance Schedule for the EMP 

12-13-404 

 

A.  APCO Recommendations to EMP and Determination of Approvability– 
Acknowledge acceptance or rejection of each of the APCO’s recommendations. For each 
of the accepted recommendations, describe the measures to be implemented and 
include the date of proposed implementation.  If the facility rejects a recommendation, 
provide a detailed basis for that rejection. 

 

  

Page 125 of 158

223



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
7

7
 

 

A
. 

-
-

  
  

  

P
ro

v
id

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
c
c
e
p

ta
n

c
e
 t

o
 A

P
C

O
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
. 
In

c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
c
c
e
p

ta
n

c
e
 b

y
 t

h
e

 fa
ci

lit
y’

s 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

a
n

d
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
is

 f
o

r 
re

je
c

ti
n

g
 a

n
y
 A

P
C

O
 r

e
c

o
m

m
e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
. 

 I
f 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 i
s
 a

c
c
e
p

te
d

, 
in

c
lu

d
e

 m
e

a
s

u
re

s
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

A
P

C
O

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 d
a
te

 o
f 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

. 
 

 

Section # 

 
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

A
P

C
O

 
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 

 
(F

O
R

 A
P

C
O

 U
S

E
 O

N
L

Y
) 

 
 

A
P

C
O

 R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
 

  
A

c
c
e
p

ta
n

c
e
 o

f 
A

P
C

O
 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 

 
If

 N
O

: 
  B

a
s
is

 f
o

r 
R

e
je

c
ti

n
g

 A
P

C
O

 R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 

 
If

 Y
E

S
: 

 
M

e
a

s
u

re
s
 t

o
 I
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

  

  
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 D
a
te

  
o

f 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

 (A
P

C
O

 U
S

E
 O

N
L

Y
) 

 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

V
e
ri

fi
e
d

 b
y
 A

P
C

O
 

  
 

  
 

 

 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
 

  
 

 

 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
 

  
 

 

 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
 

  
 

 

 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

     

Page 126 of 158

224



 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

, R
u

le
 1

3
: 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 a
n

d
 F

o
rg

in
g

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
M

in
im

iz
a

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
7

8
 

 

A
. 

-
-

  
  

  

Pr
ov

id
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 a
cc

ep
ta

nc
e 

to
 A

PC
O

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

. I
nc

lu
de

 th
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 a
cc

ep
ta

nc
e 

by
 th

e 
fa

ci
lit

y’
s 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 M
a
n

a
g

e
r 

a
n

d
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
is

 f
o

r 
re

je
c

ti
n

g
 a

n
y
 A

P
C

O
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s
. 
 I
f 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 i
s
 a

c
c
e
p

te
d

, 
in

c
lu

d
e

 m
e

a
s

u
re

s
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

A
P

C
O

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 d
a
te

 o
f 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

. 
 

 

Section # 

 
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

A
P

C
O

 
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 

 
(F

O
R

 A
P

C
O

 U
S

E
 O

N
L

Y
) 

 
 

A
P

C
O

 R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
 

  
A

c
c
e
p

ta
n

c
e
 o

f 
A

P
C

O
 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 

 
If

 N
O

: 
  B

a
s
is

 f
o

r 
R

e
je

c
ti

n
g

 A
P

C
O

 R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 

 
If

 Y
E

S
: 

 
M

e
a

s
u

re
s
 t

o
 I
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

  

  
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 D
a
te

  
o

f 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

 (A
P

C
O

 U
S

E
 O

N
L

Y
) 

 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

V
e
ri

fi
e
d

 b
y
 A

P
C

O
 

  
 

  
 

 

 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
 

  
 

 

 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
 

  
 

 

 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

  
 

  
 

 

 

  Y
es

 

  N
o 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  Y

es
 

  N
o 

      
 

Page 127 of 158

225



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 79 

 

Appendix 

If additional information are to be included in the EMP, identify the associated Appendix # as 
“*#*” in the text box of the specific table.  

In the table below, note the Appendix # and provide the Page # and Section # of the EMP where 
the material references. 

Appendix # Reference to Page # and Section # of EMP 

A Page #9         , Section # 403.1.3 A 
B Page #75       , Section # 403.1.A 
C Page #76       , Section # 403.1.B 

      Page #           , Section #       
      Page #           , Section #       
      Page #           , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       
      Page #     , Section #       

 

  

Page 128 of 158

226



 

Regulation 12, Rule 13: Foundry and Forging Operations 

Emissions Minimization Plan 80 
 

Appendix # A 

Reference to Page #9, Section # Confidential 

      

Page 129 of 158

227



Attachment 2Page 130 of 158

228



Page 131 of 158

229



Page 132 of 158

230



Page 133 of 158

231



Attachment 3
Page 134 of 158

232



Page 135 of 158

233



Culminating months of process analysis and discussions between Berkeley City Staff, Councilmember 
Linda Maio, and Lehigh Hanson (Berkeley Asphalt), the company has agreed to process additional 
improvements that will further reduce emissions and odors at the company's Berkeley asphalt plant. 
  
The Company has agreed to install new equipment, upgrade their process, and engage in staff 
training, all of which will significantly change their asphalt. 
  
"It should provide improve the situation for nearby residents, be better environmentally, and better 
for the actual construction workers who are laying down the asphalt," said Councilmember Maio.  
 
"We appreciate Councilmember Maio’s diplomacy and tenacity. This solution is a win-win for all 
involved," said Mike Roth, Vice President for Lehigh Hanson – Region West.  
  
The new equipment and training will result in an enhanced production process known as "Warm Mix 
Asphalt," an emerging technology that has been increasingly endorsed by federal and state officials. 
Typical asphalt is prepared at temperatures reaching 330 degrees Fahrenheit. The new process will 
use temperatures of 260 to 280 degrees Fahrenheit.  
  
"We believe that the new technology (WMA) will meet or exceed 30-50% reduction in odor emissions. 
We think we can convert half of our customers to WMA immediately. It will take some time to 
educate and convert the remaining customers from conventional hot mix asphalt (HMA) to WMA. For 
our part, we will immediately begin educating our customers to accelerate that acceptance. We are 
confident that we can achieve the same success that others have with WMA," Roth said. 
  
The new technology should reduce emissions and odors significantly and result in a more 
environmentally sustainable operation. The company has committed to installing all of the equipment 
and completing all of its employee training by the end of the year.  
  
“With this state-of-the-art approach to production, other companies have reduced their emissions 
and odors by as much as 50 percent,” said Roth. “We hope to experience similar success.”  
  
This agreement is the latest result of pressure from Councilmember Maio on the City and the 
company to address odors. Residents experiencing odors have been contacting Maio's office and 
documenting problems. This led to numerous conversations between City staff and neighbors and 
Lehigh Hanson. City Staff has been diligent in meeting met with Lehigh Hanson on several occasions to 
discuss ways technological and operational improvements to address complaints about noise, odor 
and dust. This resulted in the company implementing a series of mitigations, including the following: 
  

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 4
Page 136 of 158

234



Noise : 
· Installed silencer on exhaust stack: May 2013  
(Reduces sound emitting from exhaust fan) 

  
· Installed Variable Frequency Drives on exhaust fan motors: September 2013 
(Enables operator to turn fan down when not in production mode which reduces sound emitting from 

exhaust fan) 

  
· Vulcanized conveyor belts: September 2013  
(Removed metal clips on conveyor belts to eliminate clicking sound) 

  
· Replaced sound blankets: October 2013 
(Reduces sound emitting from various equipment on the plant) 

  
Odor : 
 · Added deodorant to incoming oil loads: September 2012 to current  
(Reduces odor in oil loads being delivered to plant) 

  
· Replaced four condensers on oil tanks: July 2013  
(Reduces odor emitting for oil storage tanks) 

  
· Tuned burner: September 2013  
(Improves efficiency of natural gas burner used to heat aggregate) 

  
· Installed four charcoal filters on oil tanks: September 2013  
(Eliminates odor emitting from oil storage tanks) 

  
· Hired professional odor consultant: September 2013  
(Working to improve best practices at the plant) 

  
Dust: 
· Installed sprinkler on waste pile: July 2013  
(Eliminates dust while loading trucks with asphalt waste) 

  
· Installed fence fabric: August 2013  
(Reduces dust being blown onto the site from unpaved Second Street) 

  
This new, proposed enhancement to use state-of-the art equipment and manufacturing processes is a 
great improvement and demonstrates the City’s and the Company’s ability to work together to 
contribute to for a cleaner and more sustainable city. 

Page 137 of 158

235



 

Page 138 of 158

236



Page 139 of 158

237



Page 140 of 158

238



Page 141 of 158

239



Page 142 of 158

240



Page 143 of 158

241



Page 144 of 158

242



Page 145 of 158

243



Page 146 of 158

244



 
Community Health Commission 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099 
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager 

ACTION CALENDAR 
January 20, 2015 

(Continued from December 16, 2014) 

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

From:  Community Health Commission 

Submitted by:  Linda Franklin, Chairperson, Community Health Commission 

Subject:  West Berkeley Industrial Plants Air Quality 

RECOMMENDATION 
Take the following actions regarding air quality complaints in West Berkeley: 
 

1. The City Council hold a Public Hearing regarding air quality complaints on the 
West Berkeley Lehigh Hanson Asphalt Company plant, Bayline Concrete 
Cutting Company and Pacific Steel Casting Company; and that the City 
provide relevant health information. 

2. Direct the City Manager to complete the compliance check list based on the 
1999 Settlement Agreement with the Oceanview Neighborhood Association; 
and 

3. If the City Manager and delegated staff or department finds the West Berkeley 
Lehigh Asphalt Company plant is not compliant with the compliance check list 
based on the 1999 Settlement Agreement with the Oceanview Neighborhood 
Association, the City and its jurisdictional bodies or the appropriate authority 
implements corrective action and enforces the 1999 Settlement Agreement 
compliance checklist immediately. 

 
FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION 
Potential Costs to the City of Berkeley include but are not limited to: the staff costs of 
preparing for and attending a public hearing at a City Council meeting and providing 
relevant health information; the cost to assess compliance of the West Berkeley Lehigh 
Asphalt Company plant with the 1999 Settlement Agreement with the Oceanview 
Neighborhood Association; City staff time for implementing and enforcing potential 
corrective actions. 
 
Potential costs to the West Berkeley Lehigh Hanson Asphalt Company plant include but 
are not limited to purchasing of requisite equipment and/or reforming practices in order 
to be compliant with the 1999 Settlement Agreement. 
 
CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
According to a September 4, 2014 memo submitted to the Housing Advisory 
Commission, 93 residents, workers, and business owners signed and submitted a 

Page 147 of 158

245

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
25a



West Berkeley Industrial Plants Air Quality ACTION CALENDAR 
 January 20, 2015 

Page 2 

California Public Records Act in June 2014, to get City records on whether the City of 
Berkeley complied with a 1999 settlement agreement between the Oceanview 
Neighborhood Association, Communities for a Better Environment, BAC, BARM, and 
the City of Berkeley.  The 1999 settlement agreement was designed to create stricter 
regulation on the plant’s day-to-day operations. Since the 1999 settlement agreement, 
BAC was sold to Lehigh Hanson Cement. Residents, workers, and business owners 
believe that strict adherence to the terms of the settlement has not yet been met.  
Residents, such as the two residents and members of the Oceanview Neighborhood 
Association who provided public comment on this matter at the CHC meeting on 
September 11, 2014, have indicated that the fumes have gotten worse over the last five 
years, the plant operates at unauthorized hours, and that compliance with several terms 
of the settlement has not been fully realized. 
 
Due to the potentially significant health effects of these fumes and pollutants, which 
constitute health ramifications exacerbated by possible noncompliance, the citizens of 
West Berkeley and the Health Commission are asking the City Council and the City 
Manager to take meaningful actions to ensure that the air around these plants in West 
Berkeley where many people live or encounter is safe and does not pose a health risk. 
 
BACKGROUND 
According to a memo submitted to the Housing Advisory Commission on September 4, 
2014, in a one-year period, between 2012 and 2013, West Berkeley Alliance for Clean 
Air and Safe Jobs, and California Environmental Justice Coalition; and homeowners 
and residents made 111 complaints to the Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
(BAAQMD).  
 
Lehigh Hanson Cement is by owned by an international conglomerate company 
Heidelberg Cement. Heidelberg Cement is the global market leader in aggregates and a 
prominent player in the fields of cement, concrete and other downstream activities, 
making it one of the world’s largest manufacturers of building materials. The company 
employs some 52,600 people at 2,500 locations in more than 40 countries. In addition 
to the referral to the HAC, a request was made to the CHC to consider the 
recommendations due to Health concerns over air quality.  Therefore, this topic was 
framed as a health concern and discussed at the regularly scheduled Community 
Health Commission meeting on September 11, 2014 where the following motion was 
approved. 
 
M/S/C (Nathan/Kwanele) Motion to Recommend to City Council that: 

1. The City Council hold a Public Hearing regarding air quality complaints on the 
West Berkeley Lehigh Hanson Asphalt Company plant, Bayline Concrete 
Cutting Company and Pacific Steel Casting Company; and that the City 
provide relevant health information. 

2. Direct the City Manager to complete the compliance check list based on the 
1999 Settlement Agreement with the Oceanview Neighborhood Association; 
and 

3. If the City Manager and delegated staff or department finds the West Berkeley 

Page 148 of 158

246



West Berkeley Industrial Plants Air Quality ACTION CALENDAR 
 January 20, 2015 

Page 3 

Lehigh Asphalt Company plant is not compliant with the compliance check list 
based on the 1999 Settlement Agreement with the Oceanview Neighborhood 
Association, the City and its jurisdictional bodies or the appropriate authority 
implements corrective action and enforces the 1999 Settlement Agreement 
compliance checklist immediately. 

 
Ayes: Commissioners Franklin, Kwanele, Lee, Nathan, Neuhauser, 

Rosales, Shaw, Stein, M. Wong 
Noes: None 
Abstain:  None 
Absent from vote:   Commissioners Collins, Delgadilo, Namkung, Tempelis 
Excused:   Commissioners  Barry, Speich, A. Wong 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY 
This recommendation can potentially support the cause of environmental sustainability if 
the possibly noncompliant Lehigh Hanson Asphalt Company plant adopts any needed 
reformative practices as a result of the enforcement of the 1999 Settlement Agreement, 
which could lead to more efficient resource consumption and reduced environmental 
degradation caused by extracting less resources. Moreover, as emissions of 
greenhouse gases and other potentially environmentally harmful compounds could 
decrease if any possibly needed improved practices are employed, the environment 
could greatly benefit from the potential results of implementing the recommended acts. 
 
RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION 
This is a health issue because many of the Oceanview residents and homeowners are 
unable to enjoy clean air that may have harmful or discomforting smoke and pollutants, 
as directly described to the CHC by two residents of the Oceanview community who 
provided public comment during the September 11, 2014 CHC meeting. There is a clear 
nexus between air quality and health as poor air quality relates to asthma incidence 
rates and hospitalizations. According to the 2013 City of Berkeley Health Status Report, 
“asthma hospitalizations of children under five years of age are most common in West 
Berkeley,” which demonstrates the importance of evaluating environmental factors that 
may be contributing to a disproportionately higher rate of youth asthma hospitalizations 
in West Berkeley (Health Status Report found at 
http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/uploadedFiles/Health_Human_Services/Level_3_-
_Public_Health/BerkeleyHealthReport_online_FINALv2.pdf).   
 
In addition to health statistics justifying a closer look at possible causes of asthma, the 
City Manager's most recent report to the City Council on the Breathmobile scheduled on 
the September 16, 2014 Information Calendar states: “The new “Health Happens in 
Berkeley” initiative has identified asthma hospitalizations in children (up to 15 years of 
age) as one of four preliminary Public Health priorities. The Public Health Division is 
committed to addressing the asthma health inequities seen in Berkeley’s Health Status 
Report 2013.” Therefore, in order to cooperate with this health initiative and take 
potentially substantial action toward realizing the objective of “addressing the asthma 
health inequities seen in Berkeley’s Health Status Report 2013,” this recommendation 

Page 149 of 158

247

http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/uploadedFiles/Health_Human_Services/Level_3_-_Public_Health/BerkeleyHealthReport_online_FINALv2.pdf
http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/uploadedFiles/Health_Human_Services/Level_3_-_Public_Health/BerkeleyHealthReport_online_FINALv2.pdf


West Berkeley Industrial Plants Air Quality ACTION CALENDAR 
 January 20, 2015 

Page 4 

encouraging the City Manager and City Council to act on this issue was approved. 
Moreover, as the Occupational Health and Safety Administration states that potential 
health effects of exposure asphalt pollutants and fumes include: headache, skin rash, 
sensitization, fatigue, reduced appetite, throat and eye irritation, cough, and skin cancer, 
it is imperative the City act to mitigate the potential for these health effects to manifest in 
the citizens of West Berkeley (https://www.osha.gov/SLTC/asphaltfumes/).  The City 
Council and City Manager should be responsive to the needs of their residents. Thus, 
the Community Health Commission calls on the City Council to hold a public hearing on 
air quality complaints, and requests the City Manager to complete the checklist based 
on the 1999 settlement agreement and take immediate corrective action. 
 
ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED 
The Community Health Commission chose its recommendation as being the most 
efficient and effective, but recognizes that alternative or additional actions may be 
considered by the City Council. Toward that end, the Commission discussed the 
following during its deliberations: 
 

1. Gather more information before making a recommendation to the City Council 
by forming a subcommittee to explore the issue. 

2. Let the process take its course without support, as citizens have already filed 
complaints with the Bay Area Air Quality Management District. 

3. Instead of having a Public Hearing, solely recommend that the City Manager 
and appropriate city staff evaluate the compliance of the West Berkeley 
Lehigh Hanson Asphalt plant with the 1999 Settlement Agreement between 
the owners of the plant and the Oceanview Neighborhood Association. 

 
Alternative action #1 was not taken as waiting to gather more information before making 
a recommendation to the City Council would delay any meaningful action such as 
assessing compliance and having a public hearing for the people of West Berkeley to 
voice their concerns while the residents of West Berkeley continue to suffer from 
polluted air. This delay proved too costly, as it is believed that immediate action is 
required in order work toward providing answers and relief to those in West Berkeley. 
 
Alternative action #2 was not taken since the fact that 111 complaints have been filed 
with Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) in a one-year period without 
any consequential significant review of the air quality situation proves that the complaint 
process with BAAQMD is insufficient to address this issue requiring more efficient 
action.  Alternative action #3 was not taken because it is believed that it is vital to our 
political system that the people have the opportunity to voice their concerns, and 
because a public hearing would be productive in establishing a public record and source 
of evidence from the anecdotal experiences of the residents of West Berkeley. 
 
CITY MANAGER 
See City Manager companion report. 
 
CONTACT PERSON 

Page 150 of 158

248

https://www.osha.gov/SLTC/asphaltfumes/


West Berkeley Industrial Plants Air Quality ACTION CALENDAR 
 January 20, 2015 

Page 5 

Gail Feldman, Commission Secretary, HHCS, (510) 981-5232 

Page 151 of 158

249



 

Page 152 of 158

250



Lehigh Hanson Berkeley Asphalt  
Site #A0123 

699 Virginia Street 
Berkeley, CA 94710 

 

West Berkeley Odors Fact Sheet 
December 9, 2020 

Background 

• Berkeley Asphalt is an industrial facility located in Berkeley, CA. The facility began 
operations in 1955 and was acquired by Lehigh Hanson in 2005. 

• Berkeley Asphalt has a Permit to Operate, issued by the Air District, which limits 
total asphalt production to 3,000 tons per day and 250,000 tons per consecutive 12 
months. Berkeley Asphalt is in compliance with these limits. 

• There are thirteen (13) Air District permitted sources at the facility that include the 
asphalt batch plant, asphalt oil tanks, conveyers and stockpiles.  

• Dust abatement devices include conveyer water sprays, particulate baghouse and 
cyclone, and a street sweeper. 

• Starting October 29, 2020, the Air District began receiving many complaints from 
West Berkeley residents alleging “sulfur”, “sewage” and “burning” odors from 
unknown source(s). Staff have received approximately 193 similar Berkeley odor 
complaints through December 8, 2020. The alleged odor has been fleeting and 
difficult for staff to confirm even when response times often only takes minutes. 

Air District investigation 

• In the past, the Air District has received many ‘sulfur’ odor complaints related to 
naturally occurring Bay waterfront decomposition throughout the Bay Area, 
especially at times like this, after a long, hot and dry summer.  Thus, Air District 
Inspectors initially conducted multiple investigations around Aquatic Park and the 
Berkeley waterfront, but did not observe these locations as the cause of the alleged 
sulfur odors.  Berkeley Council Member Rashi Kesarwani’s December 6, 2020 
newsletter confirmed the same observation: “City of Berkeley facilities, such as 
Aquatic Park and the Transfer Station, have been ruled out by City staff.” 

• During the first week of November 2020, Air District staff contacted PG&E to inquire 
if any gas-line work was being conducted in the area of complaints.  PG&E’s 
response was that there wasn’t any such work being done in the area. 

• The Air District also received multiple complaints alleging a “sewage” odor in the 
same area.  It appears there have been two odors occurring in the West Berkeley 

Page 153 of 158

251



area during the past month: a sewage odor and the “burning, sulfur” industrial odor. 
In early November 2020, Air District staff contacted the East Bay Municipal Utility 
District (EBMUD), which operates the main sewer intersect line from Berkeley to the 
EBMUD Sewage Treatment Plant (STP) at the I-580/I-80 interchange. EBMUD 
stated they had also received odor complaints, so its personnel conducted a patrol 
along the entire route between North Berkeley and the STP and did not observe any 
unusually strong odors or evidence of any leaks. EBMUD said the City of Berkeley 
(City) Public Works Department has jurisdiction over the sewage lines within the city 
of Berkeley.  Air District staff contacted the City Public Works Department, which 
confirmed they weren’t conducting any projects in the vicinity of West Berkeley 
where the sewage odors were reported. The City Public Works Department 
concluded that it was King Tide season and they have observed that water table 
pressure can force sewer gases to the surface and cause above-ground odors, but 
they can’t control that natural process.  

• On November 6, 2020, an Air District Inspector investigated at Berkeley Asphalt but 
did not observe the alleged odor on site. The Berkeley Asphalt plant manager 
confirmed the sulfur odor with the Inspector off-site of the facility, up the street, but 
could not determine where the odor could be originating from within Berkeley 
Asphalt. The Inspector then suspected the “burning sulfur” odor was being caused 
by Berkeley Asphalt, but the nature of its operation is intermittent asphalt batches 
based on demand and momentary truck loading made actively tracing the odor to 
the facility after meeting with complainants difficult.  However, multiple complaints 
were confirmed by the Inspector on December 3, 2020 and it was the same odor 
observed on November 6, 2020.  Air District staff now suspect the odors rise aloft 
and settle blocks away in the community downwind from the facility. 

Air District response 

• The Air District issued a Notice of Violation (NOV) to Berkeley Asphalt on December 
8, 2020. The NOV involved a one-day violation for off-site odors which caused 
multiple confirmed complaints and a public nuisance on December 3, 2020. The 
NOV is expected to prompt Berkeley Asphalt to evaluate the root cause of the odor 
and take corrective action(s) necessary to remedy and alleviate the ongoing odor 
problem. 

• To address asphalt smoke odors at Berkeley Asphalt, the facility had submitted a 
permit application to the Air District. On November 30, 2020, the Air District issued 
an Authority to Construct to install a new blue smoke abatement system that will be 
in place by the end of the first quarter 2021. Blue smoke abatement systems capture 
and abate asphalt plant loading emissions and the Air District is working with the 
facility to understand how these controls may reduce odors. 

Page 154 of 158

252



• Air District staff will continue to actively investigate the situation and monitor the 
facility for visible emissions and odors. 

What to do if you smell odor 

• Call the Air District complaint line 1-800-334-ODOR (6367) or file a complaint online 
at www.baaqmd.gov/complaints if you smell an odor. This helps to establish a record 
of where and when odors are detected, and to trace the cause of the odors. The Air 
District strives to respond to air quality complaints as soon as possible, typically 
within thirty minutes during business hours. 

• The Air District is not an emergency response (first responder) agency. In case of 
emergencies, please contact 911, and, for health-related symptoms, your primary 
care doctor or local health department.  

Page 155 of 158

253

http://www.baaqmd.gov/complaints


 

Planning Department 

1947 Center Street, 5th Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510.981.7400    TDD: 510.981.6903    Fax: 510.981.7490 
E-mail: planning@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

 

          
 
April 2, 2021 
 
Igor Tregub, Chair 
Sierra Club Northern Alameda County Group 
[Delivered via e-mail to itregub@gmail.com] 
 
Dear Mr. Tregub, 
 
Thank you for your March 8, 2021 letter to the Berkeley City Council regarding Lehigh 
Hanson/Berkeley Asphalt (BA) in Berkeley. I understand that the concerns regarding 
emissions from the facility represent a longstanding issue for neighbors and community 
members. The City of Berkeley is committed to using its regulatory authority to ensure 
compliance with the 1999 Settlement Agreement and Use Permit conditions, to the 
fullest extent possible. 
 
Here is a summary of the enforcement activities that the City has recently undertaken 
regarding BA: 
 

 On December 21, 2020, January 14, 2021, and March 19, 2021, City of Berkeley 
staff from four divisions in three departments conducted comprehensive site 
inspections to evaluate BA’s compliance with the conditions of approval of their 
1999 Use Permit. During the December and January inspections, City staff 
observed that the truck loading area was only partially enclosed, and vacuum 
sweeping was occurring on a portion of the yard rather than all of it.  
 

 The City issued a notice of violation (NOV) on January 11, 2021, citing an 
insufficient enclosure of the asphalt truck loading area in violation of the revised 
condition of approval 8.1 of Use Permit #98-70000018/Modification of Use Permit 
#3033 pursuant to BMC Chapter 23B.32. The NOV required BA to resubmit by 
February 1, 2021 application materials for building permit B2020-04108 for 
construction of an enhanced enclosure and smoke capture system for the 
asphalt truck loading area. BA did not meet this deadline, so the City issued a 
Citation warning on February 10, 2021, giving them 15 days to resubmit 
information for their building permit application. The City added a second 
violation, related to sweeping, to the citation warning based on observations from 
the second site visit. 
 

Page 156 of 158

254



Igor Tregub, Chair  Page 2 

Sierra Club Northern Alameda County Group  April 2, 2021 

 

 

 

 On February 16, 2021, BA resubmitted plans for their building permit B2020-
04108, which was subsequently approved on March 1, 2021. The plans to 
enclose the asphalt truck loading area addressed the first violation.  
 

 On March 1, 2021, BA responded to the second violation with a letter 
documenting how they currently vacuum the yard and proposing updates to their 
sweeping regimen. The City has posed follow-up questions to BA regarding their 
proposed sweeping regimen to determine whether it satisfies the obligations 
established through the facility’s Use Permit conditions, and whether it 
appropriately mitigates any potential impacts of dust and dirt on the surrounding 
neighborhood. 
 

 On March 3, 2021, the City issued BA a citation warning establishing a deadline 
of April 15, 2021 for BA to complete construction and inspections associated with 
building permit B2020-04108. If BA does not meet this deadline, they will be cited 
and fined daily until they are in compliance, with initial fines set at $250 per day 
and escalating subsequently. 
 

 BA has made substantial progress towards the construction of the enhanced 
enclosure and smoke capture system. In late March, the City of Berkeley 
determined that a portion of the construction activities occurred prior to formal 
authorization; although staff had reviewed and approved the plans for that work, 
the City had not yet received payment for the permit and it had not yet been 
issued. The City is continuing its investigation of this issue and, if appropriate, will 
cite and fine BA for this violation. 

 
The Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) has regulatory authority over 
emissions and odors at the Berkeley Asphalt facility, while the City regulates the 1999 
Settlement Agreement and Use Permit conditions. The City has been coordinating with 
BAAQMD in response to the concerns raised by community members. BAAQMD issued 
four NOVs to BA related to odors on 12/3/20, 12/21/20, 2/3/2021 and 2/5/2021. 
BAAQMD informed the City on March 24 that the last confirmed odor complaint from the 
Berkeley Asphalt plant occurred on February 12, 2021. In the same communication, 
BAAQMD staff indicated that they expect that the enclosure and smoke capture system 
enhancements that are currently under construction will reduce the odors impacting 
neighbors and decrease particulate matter.  
 
The City of Berkeley will continue to conduct regular inspections of the Berkeley Asphalt 
facility; the next inspection is scheduled to occur today. The City will continue to take 
enforcement action as needed if the facility is found to be out of compliance with any 
applicable conditions and regulations.  
 
Please feel free to contact me if you have any additional questions regarding this 
matter. 

Page 157 of 158

255



Igor Tregub, Chair  Page 3 

Sierra Club Northern Alameda County Group  April 2, 2021 

 

 

 

 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Jordan Klein 
Interim Director, Planning & Development Department 
 
 
 
Cc:  Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager 
 Paul Buddenhagen, Deputy City Manager 

Berkeley City Council 

Page 158 of 158

256



CONSENT CALENDAR
September 28, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Councilmember Terry Taplin

Subject: Amending BMC Section 14.56.070 for 3-Ton Commercial Truck Weight Limit 
on Berkeley’s Bicycle Boulevards and on At-Risk West Berkeley Residential Streets

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt first reading of an Ordinance amending Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) Section 
14.56.070 to add 3-ton commercial truck weight limits on:

1. Ninth Street between Dwight Way and Heinz Avenue
2. Addison Street between San Pablo Avenue and Sixth Street;
3. Allston Way between San Pablo Avenue and Sixth Street;
4. Bancroft Way between San Pablo Avenue and Sixth Street; 
5. Channing Way between San Pablo Avenue and Fourth Street;
6. Dwight Way between San Pablo Avenue and Sixth Street;
7. Camelia Street between Eighth Street and Ninth Street;
8. Eighth Street between Jackson Street and Camelia Street;
9. Ninth Street between Camelia Street and Cedar Street;
10.Virginia Street between Sacramento Street and Martin Luther King Jr. Way;
11.Virginia Street between Shattuck Avenue and Euclid Avenue;
12.Channing Way between Martin Luther King Jr. Way and Piedmont Avenue;
13.Heinz Avenue between Ninth Street and San Pablo Avenue;
14.Russell Street between San Pablo Avenue and Shattuck Avenue;
15.Russell Street between Telegraph Avenue and Claremont Avenue;
16.California Street between Hopkins Street and University Avenue;
17.California Street between Dwight Way and Russell Street;
18.King Street between Russell Street and Stanford Avenue;
19.Milvia Street from Dwight Way to Russell Street;
20.Bowditch Street from Bancroft Way to Dwight Way;
21.Hillegass Avenue from Dwight Way to Woolsey Street

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
Berkeley’s Bicycle Boulevard Network is a centerpiece of the City’s mobility justice and 
greenhouse gas emission reduction policies. The Bicycle Boulevards were established 

Page 1 of 6

257

sbunting
Typewritten Text
02a.24	



with the adoption of the Bicycle Plan in 1999 “with the goal of providing safe, 
convenient, and low stress bikeways on pleasant neighborhood streets.”1 Despite 
having this goal in mind for more than twenty-two years, cyclists using a Bicycle 
Boulevard in Berkeley can still expect degraded road conditions, reckless drivers 
speeding alongside them, and large commercial trucks with low visibility threatening the 
safety of the children, families, and daily commuters who rely on the network. Despite 
their status as cyclist-priority streets, the Bicycle Boulevards still include many of the 
streets identified by the City’s Vision Zero Action Plan as “High-Injury” Streets where the 
most traffic injuries and fatalities have occured.2 The Bicycle Boulevards identified by 
Vision Zero include California Street, Milvia Street, and Channing Way. Eliminating 
large truck traffic on the Bicycle Boulevards will mark an important step towards creating 
a network of streets that truly prioritizes the safety and ease of travel for cyclists in 
Berkeley. 

Beyond protecting the bodily safety of cyclists on Berkeley’s streets, restricting large 
truck traffic goes a long way towards reducing the degradation of the street 
infrastructure that is itself important for cyclist safety and for increasing bicycle mode 
share. As the following chart lays out, the stresses on street pavement increases with 
the size and weight of the vehicles travelling on it:

Minimizing the amount of unnecessary large vehicle traffic on our residential streets is 
an important supplement to the Street Rehabilitation and Repair Policy and the 5-Year 
Street Rehabilitation Plan that will work to address the underlying causes of pavement 
degradation.

1https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Public_Works/Level_3_-_Transportation/Berkeley-Bicycle-Plan-2017-
Executive%20Summary.pdf 
2https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Public_Works/Level_3_-
_Transportation/Berkeley_Vision_Zero_Action_Plan_Approved_03102020.pdf 

Page 2 of 6

258

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Public_Works/Level_3_-_Transportation/Berkeley-Bicycle-Plan-2017-Executive%20Summary.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Public_Works/Level_3_-_Transportation/Berkeley-Bicycle-Plan-2017-Executive%20Summary.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Public_Works/Level_3_-_Transportation/Berkeley_Vision_Zero_Action_Plan_Approved_03102020.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Public_Works/Level_3_-_Transportation/Berkeley_Vision_Zero_Action_Plan_Approved_03102020.pdf


As the Vision Zero Action Plan makes clear, Berkeley’s traffic injuries are particularly 
concentrated in the neighborhoods of West Berkeley which the plan notes as “Equity 
Priority Areas” due to the disparity. Due to its proximity to the heavily trafficked 
commercial streets of University Avenue and San Pablo Avenue, the neighborhood 
encompassed by the non-Bicycle Boulevard streets within this proposal are regularly 
trafficked by large trucks cutting through the area. Truck traffic in this neighborhood, 
which is home to George Florence Park, the West Berkeley YMCA/Head Start facility, 
and Rosa Parks Elementary School, presents an ongoing danger to the pedestrians, 
cyclists, and especially children who use these streets on a daily basis. This 
neighborhood also includes University Avenue and Addison Street, which are also 
identified by the Vision Zero Action Plan as “High-Injury Streets”.3 In July of this year, 
the Berkeley City Council extended the 3-ton truck ban to the North-South streets of this 
neighborhood, but East-West coverage is necessary as well to truly protect this at-risk 
community. 

FISCAL IMPACTS
Staff time and an estimated $250 per sign location.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS
The City estimates that transportation-related emissions accounts for approximately 
60% of our community’s total annual greenhouse gas emissions.4 Restricting large truck 
traffic will make Berkeley’s Bicycle Boulevards safer for pedestrian and cyclist 
transportation, thus encouraging zero-emission forms of transportation and standing to 
lower the emissions from our community’s dominant source of carbon emissions.

CONTACT
Terry Taplin, Councilmember, District 2, (510) 981-7120

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance

3https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Public_Works/Level_3_-
_Transportation/Berkeley_Vision_Zero_Action_Plan_Approved_03102020.pdf 
4https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/12_Dec/Documents/2018-12-
06_WS_Item_01_Climate_Action_Plan_Update_pdf.aspx 

Page 3 of 6

259

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Public_Works/Level_3_-_Transportation/Berkeley_Vision_Zero_Action_Plan_Approved_03102020.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Public_Works/Level_3_-_Transportation/Berkeley_Vision_Zero_Action_Plan_Approved_03102020.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/12_Dec/Documents/2018-12-06_WS_Item_01_Climate_Action_Plan_Update_pdf.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/12_Dec/Documents/2018-12-06_WS_Item_01_Climate_Action_Plan_Update_pdf.aspx


ORDINANCE NO. ##,###-N.S.

AMENDING BERKELEY MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 14.56.070 TO ADD NEW SECTIONS 
OF ROAD IN THE LIST OF LOCATIONS PROHIBITING THE USE OF CERTAIN STREETS BY 
COMMERCIAL VEHICLES EXCEEDING 3 TONS GROSS VEHICLE WEIGHT

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows: 

Section 1. That Section 14.56.070 of the Berkeley Municipal Code is amended to read as 
follows: 

14.56.070 Prohibiting the use of certain streets by commercial trucks exceeding three 
tons gross vehicle weight. 

A. It is unlawful for any person to operate any commercial vehicle exceeding three tons 
gross vehicle weight on the following portions of streets, hereafter referred to as 
"restricted streets": 

1. Hearst Avenue between 6th Street and San Pablo Avenue; 
2. Hearst Avenue between San Pablo Avenue and Sacramento Street; 
3. 7th Street between University Avenue and Cedar Street; 
4. 8th Street between University Avenue and Cedar Street; 
5. 9th Street between University Avenue and Cedar Street; 
6. 10th Street between University Avenue and Cedar Street; 
7. Delaware Street between San Pablo Avenue and 6th Street; 
8. Delaware Street between San Pablo Avenue and Sacramento Street; 
9. Virginia Street between San Pablo Avenue and 6th Street; 
10. Virginia Street between San Pablo Avenue and Sacramento Street; 
11. Francisco Street between San Pablo Avenue and Sacramento Street; 
12. Hopkins Street west of Gilman Street; 
13. Blake Street between Shattuck Avenue and Telegraph Avenue; 
14. Blake Street between San Pablo Avenue and Sacramento Street; 
15. Parker Street between Shattuck Avenue and Telegraph Avenue; 
16. Carleton Street between Shattuck Avenue and Telegraph Avenue; 
17. Carleton Street between San Pablo Avenue and Sacramento Street; 
18. Channing Way between San Pablo Avenue and Sacramento Street; 
19. Derby Street between Shattuck Avenue and Telegraph Avenue; 
20. Ward Street between Shattuck Avenue and Telegraph Avenue; 
21. Stuart Street between Shattuck Avenue and Telegraph Avenue; 
22. Oregon Street between Shattuck Avenue and Telegraph Avenue; 
23. Parker Street between San Pablo Avenue and Sacramento Street; 
24. Russell Street between Shattuck Avenue and Telegraph Avenue; 
25. Howe Street between Ellsworth Street and Telegraph Avenue; 
26. Fulton Street between Ashby Avenue and Dwight Way; 
27. Ellsworth Street between Ashby Avenue and Dwight Way; 
28. Dana Street between Ward Street and Dwight Way; 

Page 4 of 6

260



29. Spaulding Avenue between Dwight Way and Addison Street; 
30. California Street between Dwight Way and University Avenue; 
31. Jefferson Avenue between Dwight Way and University Avenue; 
32. McGee Avenue between Dwight Way and University Avenue; 
33. Roosevelt Avenue between Dwight Way and Addison Street; 
34. McKinley Avenue between Dwight Way and Addison Street; 
35. Addison Street between Sacramento Street and Martin Luther King Jr. Way; 
36. Allston Way between Sacramento Street and Martin Luther King Jr. Way; 
37. Bancroft Way between Sacramento Street and Martin Luther King Jr. Way; 
38. Channing Way between Sacramento Street and Martin Luther King Jr. Way; 
39. Grant Street between Dwight Way and University Avenue; 
40. Cedar Street east of 6th Street; 
41. Dwight Way between San Pablo Avenue and Martin Luther King Jr. Way; 
42. Claremont Avenue between Ashby Avenue and Belrose Avenue; 
43. Belrose Avenue between Claremont Avenue and Derby Street; 
44. Derby Street between Belrose Avenue and Warring Street; 
45. Warring Street between Derby Street and Dwight Way; 
46. Piedmont Avenue between Dwight Way and Bancroft Way; 
47. Milvia Street between Dwight Way and Hopkins Street; 
48. The Uplands between Claremont Avenue and Tunnel Road; 
49. Panoramic Way between Canyon Road and Berkeley/Oakland city limits.; 
50. Kains Avenue between Virginia Street and Harrison Street; 
51. Virginia Street between Shattuck Avenue and Martin Luther King Jr. Way, 
52. Francisco Street between Shattuck Avenue and Martin Luther King Jr. Way, 
53. Delaware Street between Shattuck Avenue and Martin Luther King Jr. Way, 
54. Hearst Avenue between Shattuck Avenue and Martin Luther King Jr. Way, 
55. Berkeley Way between Shattuck Avenue and Martin Luther King Jr. Way. 
56. Tenth Street between University Avenue and Dwight Way;
57. Ninth Street between University Avenue and Heinz AvenueDwight Way;
58. Eighth Street between University Avenue and Dwight Way;
59. Seventh Street between University Avenue and Dwight Way;
60. Addison Street between San Pablo Avenue and Sixth Street;
61. Allston Way between San Pablo Avenue and Sixth Street;
62. Bancroft Way between San Pablo Avenue and Sixth Street; 
63. Channing Way between San Pablo Avenue and Fourth Street;
64. Dwight Way between San Pablo Avenue and Sixth Street;
65. Camelia Street between Eighth Street and Ninth Street;
66. Eighth Street between Jackson Street and Camelia Street;
67. Ninth Street between Camelia Street and Cedar Street;
68. Virginia Street between Sacramento Street and Martin Luther King Jr. Way;
69. Virginia Street between Shattuck Avenue and Euclid Avenue;
70. Channing Way between Martin Luther King Jr. Way and Piedmont Avenue;
71. Heinz Avenue between Ninth Street and San Pablo Avenue;
72. Russell Street between San Pablo Avenue and Shattuck Avenue;

Page 5 of 6

261



73. Russell Street between Telegraph Avenue and Claremont Avenue;
74. California Street between Hopkins Street and University Avenue;
75. California Street between Dwight Way and Russell Street;
76. King Street between Russell Street and Stanford Avenue;
77. Milvia Street from Dwight Way to Russell Street;
78. Bowditch Street from Bancroft Way to Dwight Way;
59.79. Hillegass Avenue from Dwight Way to Woolsey Street
B. All inter-city buses and tourist buses will be prohibited on these streets. School buses, 

emergency vehicles, and buses converted for use by disabled people will be allowed to use 
three-ton commercial truck weight limit routes. 

C. The provisions of this section shall not apply to subsections 14.56.050 B and C. 

Section 2. Copies of this Ordinance shall be posted for two days prior to adoption in the display 
case located near the walkway in front of Council Chambers, 2134 Martin Luther King Jr. Way. 
Within 15 days of adoption, copies of this Ordinance shall be filed at each branch of the 
Berkeley Public Library and the title shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation.

Page 6 of 6

262



CONSENT CALENDAR
September 29, 2021

          FITES Committee

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Councilmember Terry Taplin 

Subject: Native and Drought Resistant Plants and Landscaping Ordinance Referral

RECOMMENDATION
Refer to the City Manager the development of an ordinance amending the Berkeley 
Municipal Code to require that plant materials (1) native to Berkeley and Northern 
California and (2) resistant to drought conditions shall be used exclusively in designing, 
planting, maintaining, and managing the landscape features of all City roadsides, parks, 
public areas, and other City properties and facilities. 

BACKGROUND
As of the summer of 2021, the City of Berkeley and most of California are facing 
exceptional drought conditions.1 The region’s drought conditions have varied annually in 
the past decade, but the projects for our future under climate change are clear: 
California’s drought will as much as triple in severity by 2050.2 Drought conditions have 
escalated so radically that the East Bay Municipal Utility District asked residents to cut 
back on their water consumption.3 The City must plan for a future in which it operates 
successfully with significantly reduced water use and should begin using water more 
efficiently as soon as possible.

To plan for a long-term urban infrastructure that consumes water in a manner that 
reflects the drought conditions that we are certain to face in the next century, Berkeley 
can pursue a policy of only using native and drought-resistant plant materials in all City 
landscaping and public areas. While a relatively less significant consumer of water than 
residential and commercial buildings, the opportunity to save water by switching all City 
landscaping to native and drought resistant plants is immense. In addition to requiring 
less watering, native plant landscaping has been shown to have higher infiltration rates 
of water runoff, taking in water that would otherwise be discharged into sewers and 

1 https://www.drought.gov/states/california/county/Alameda 
2 https://statesatrisk.org/california/all 
3https://www.berkeleyside.org/2021/04/27/east-bay-area-water-officials-declare-drought-ask-residents-to-conserve-
water 

Page 1 of 6

263

https://www.drought.gov/states/california/county/Alameda
https://statesatrisk.org/california/all
https://www.berkeleyside.org/2021/04/27/east-bay-area-water-officials-declare-drought-ask-residents-to-conserve-water
https://www.berkeleyside.org/2021/04/27/east-bay-area-water-officials-declare-drought-ask-residents-to-conserve-water
sbunting
Typewritten Text
02a.25



filtering toxic materials before they reach the waterfront. Native plants also provide 
critical food and habitat for local birds and pollinators.4 Furthermore, native plants that 
are already adapted to our local environment are more resistant to extreme weather and 
often do not require pesticide and fertilizer use.5 

Various cities and counties throughout the country have pursued similar measures to 
implement native, drought resistant landscaping mandates that Berkeley can learn from 
in its own approach. These cities and counties include Westchester County, New York, 
Eugene, Oregon, and Chicago, Illinois.6 While Berkeley can learn from similar efforts 
elsewhere, each native plant ordinance is inherently different between each location 
with different local ecosystems. City staff will have to identify the native plants that are 
most practical and suitable for wide-scale use throughout the City and set planting 
policy accordingly. 

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
Increased use of native and drought resistant plants on City property will make major 
strides towards increased urban biodiversity, reduced water usage in the maintenance 
of public lands, and increased resiliency of plantings on City property to extreme 
weather conditions.7

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Staff time and cost differences related to the exclusive use of native and drought-
resistant plantings in City landscaping work. Increased use of native and drought 
resistant plants may lead to reduced landscaping maintenance work related to a 
reduced need for pesticides, fertilizers, and extra watering that non-native plants often 
require.8

CONTACT
Terry Taplin, Councilmember, District 2, (510) 981-7120

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution
2. Westchester County Ordinance

4 https://law.pace.edu/sites/default/files/Team%20%233%20Brief.pdf 
5 https://perma.cc/FK54-B7L7 
6 https://law.pace.edu/sites/default/files/Team%20%233%20Brief.pdf 
7 https://sustainablecitycode.org/brief/require-use-of-native-plants/ 
8 https://sustainablecitycode.org/brief/require-use-of-native-plants/ 

Page 2 of 6

264

https://law.pace.edu/sites/default/files/Team%20#3%20Brief.pdf
https://perma.cc/FK54-B7L7
https://law.pace.edu/sites/default/files/Team%20#3%20Brief.pdf
https://sustainablecitycode.org/brief/require-use-of-native-plants/
https://sustainablecitycode.org/brief/require-use-of-native-plants/


RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

REQUIRING NATIVE & DROUGHT RESISTANT PLANTS IN ALL CITY 
LANDSCAPING

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley and the State of California are facing historic drought 
conditions that are projected to worsen over the course of the next half century or more, 
and 

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley must adapt its operations to future climate conditions 
characterized by excessive dryness, extreme weather, and declining populations of 
pollinators and other local wildlife, and 

WHEREAS, the exclusive use of native plants in City landscaping offers an opportunity 
for less water-intensive landscaping throughout Berkeley, and

WHEREAS, native plants intake and filter toxic water runoff more easily than non-native 
landscaping, and 

WHEREAS, native plants provide critical food and habitat for native animals and 
pollinators that are at risk under future climate conditions, and 

WHEREAS, the costs of native plant landscaping may reduce overall landscaping costs 
due to a decreased need for pesticides and fertilizers, 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Berkeley 
refers the City Manager to draft an ordinance requiring that: 

1. Plant materials native to Berkeley and Northern California and resistant to 
drought conditions be used exclusively in designing, planting, maintaining, and 
managing the landscape features of all City roadsides, parks, public areas, and 
other City properties and facilities. 

2. Contracts with the City of Berkeley involving landscaping and/or plantings shall, 
when appropriate, require the use of native and drought resistant plant materials.

Page 3 of 6

265



Page 4 of 6

266



Page 5 of 6

267



Page 6 of 6

268



2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7120 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 
E-Mail: TTaplin@cityofberkeley.info  

CONSENT CALENDAR
September 28, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Councilmember Taplin, Mayor Arreguín (co-author)

Subject: Resolution in Support of Afghan Refugees

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt a Resolution in support of refugees from Afghanistan.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
None.

BACKGROUND
Following the conclusion of the two-decade War in Afghanistan, the United States 
anticipates the immediate arrival of thousands of refugees fleeing the Taliban 
government. U.S. Sen. Alex Padilla (D-CA) has requested that the State Department 
streamline and expedite the issuance of special immigrant visas (SIVs) to evacuate 
refugees.1 Governor Gavin Newsom has requested $16.7 million in the state budget to 
aid resettling refugees.2 The City of Berkeley must voice its support for these efforts.

CONTACT PERSON
Councilmember Taplin Council District 2 510-981-7120

Attachments: 
1: Resolution

1 https://www.padilla.senate.gov/wp-content/uploads/Afghan-Parole-Letter-8.25.21.pdf
2 Associated Press. (Sept. 4, 2021). “California Governor seeks $16.7 Million in Aid for Afghan 
Refugees.” Retrieved from https://www.nbcbayarea.com/news/california/california-governor-seeks-16-7m-
in-aid-for-afghan-refugees/2648391/

Page 1 of 2

269

sbunting
Typewritten Text
02a.26



RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF AFGHAN REFUGEES

WHEREAS, the ongoing uncertainty and violence in Afghanistan and the takeover of the 
Afghan government by the Taliban has created a humanitarian crisis, with rapidly 
deteriorating human rights and reductions in safety particularly for vulnerable individuals, 
including, but not limited to: women and girls, members of the LGBT community, those 
who have direct ties to the U.S. government and military, members of ethnic minority 
communities, those who are Shi'a Muslim, adherents of non-Muslim faiths, including 
those of Sikh and Hindu faiths, and individuals who work for or have ties to aid 
organizations; and;

WHEREAS, refugees and their families face a multitude of challenges when arriving in 
the United States and transitioning to a new life, including but not limited to; resettlement, 
language barriers, understanding cultural nuances, financial hardship, accessing 
education, finding work and legal status; and

WHEREAS, federal and state leaders in California, specifically in Alameda County, 
home to the largest concentration of Afghans and Afghan Americans in the United 
States and the greater Bay Area, have the unique and moral responsibility to welcome 
Afghan refugees in our communities, while honoring the commitments of the United 
States government, assisting in the evacuation of vulnerable groups, providing support 
to organizations who will serve the refugee community, and showing support for the 
Afghan community during this difficult time;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the City of Berkeley supports 
and welcomes refugees from Afghanistan into our community and urges our state and 
federal leaders to act immediately and with determination, and rightfully bring at-risk and 
vulnerable Afghan peoples and their families to the United States for safety and prosperity 
and be afforded full benefits to transition into American life; and encourages California to 
accept more, and house more, Afghan refugees than any other US State; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Council of the City of Berkeley supports access to 
significant opportunities and benefits to individuals and families arriving from Afghanistan, 
including, but not limited to: immediate eligibility for reception and placement afforded 
under Special Immigrant Visa (SIV) and refugee status conditions within a week of 
arriving on US soil.

Page 2 of 2

270



Susan Wengraf
Councilmember District 6

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7160 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7166
E-Mail: swengraf@cityofberkeley.info 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
SEPTEMBER 28, 2021
 

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Councilmember Susan Wengraf

Subject: Adopt a Resolution Renewing and Re-Affirming Wildfire Prevention and Safety
as a Top Priority in the City of Berkeley

RECOMMENDATION
Request that the Berkeley City Council adopt a resolution re-affirming that wildfire 
prevention and safety is a top priority in the City of Berkeley. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
None

BACKGROUND
The Berkeley City Council adopted Resolution No. 69,147-N.S. Declaring Wildfire 
Prevention And Safety As A Top Priority In The City of Berkeley on October 15, 2019. 
Since then, extreme weather events have increased in California. Wildfires are starting 
earlier and ending later each year. Climate change is considered a key driver of this 
trend. Warmer spring and summer temperatures, reduced snowpack, and earlier spring 
snowmelt create longer and more intense seasons that increase moisture stress on 
vegetation and make forests more susceptible to severe wildfire. The length of fire 
season is estimated to have increased by at least 75 days across the Sierras and 
seems to correspond with an increase in the extent of forest fires across the state. 
Wildfires in 2021 have already exceeded the 2020 season, which itself  was the largest 
season in the state's recorded history. As of July 11, more than three times as many 
acres have burned compared to the previous year  through that date, with 
drought, extreme heat, and reduced snowpack contributing to the severity of the fires. 
As of August 18, 2021, the state of California was facing unprecedented fire conditions 
as multiple fires including the Dixie Fire, McFarland Fire, Caldor Fire, and multiple 
others rage on. 
Berkeley's hills are subject to extremely high fire hazards due to proximity to park land 
where the fuel load is high; narrow, curvy roads, hampering access by first responders 
and obstructing efficient evacuation routes; steep topography and changing weather 
conditions. CalFire, has ranked Berkeley at the same risk level of many of the cities that 
have already been decimated by fire throughout the statei. Berkeley's risk to wildfire is 
designated as the highest in the state.ii 

Page 1 of 5

271

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/2020_California_wildfires
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Heat_wave
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Dixie_Fire
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/McFarland_Fire
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Caldor_Fire
sbunting
Typewritten Text
02a.27



 Resolution Renewing and Re-Affirming Wildfire Prevention and Safety a Top Priority CONSENT CALENDAR
September 28, 2021

Page 2

In 1923, a wildfire swept through north Berkeley, ultimately destroying approximately 
600 homes, including churches, schools, libraries, and student living quarters. The fire 
traveled down to the intersection of Shattuck and Hearst.  At that time, the population of 
Berkeley was 52,000, Today, the population density is 122,000.

In 1980, a fire in Berkeley's Wildcat Canyon destroyed 5 homes and then, on October 
17,1991, The Tunnel Fire consumed homes in southeast Berkeley and Oakland, 
claiming 25 lives and reducing approximately 3,000 structures to ashes. Had the wind 
direction not shifted, it is possible that many more people would have died and more of 
Berkeley would have been destroyed.

Berkeley's acknowledgment of the serious risk we face to the threats of wildfire is an 
essential component to a successful program to raise public awareness, and to educate 
and prepare our community. Our renewed commitment, by resolution, will allow us to 
move forward with projects and programs to achieve our shared goals of wildfire 
prevention and safety.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
Wildfires negatively impact the ozone and air quality. Wildfires release large amounts of 
carbon dioxide, black carbon, brown carbon, and ozone precursors into the atmosphere. 
These emissions affect radiation, clouds, and climate on regional and even global 
scales. Wildfires also emit substantial amounts of volatile and semi-volatile organic 
materials and nitrogen oxides that form ozone and organic particulate matter.iii 

CONTACT PERSON
Councilmember Wengraf Council District 6 510-981-7160

Attachments: 
1: Resolution
2: Berkeley Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone Map 

Page 2 of 5

272

https://osfm.fire.ca.gov/media/5604/berkeley.pdf


 Resolution Renewing and Re-Affirming Wildfire Prevention and Safety a Top Priority CONSENT CALENDAR
September 28, 2021

Page 3

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S

RESOLUTION REAFFIRMING WILDFIRE PREVENTION AND SAFETY AS A TOP 
PRIORITY FOR THE CITY OF BERKELEY AND ENCOURAGING A VARIETY OF 

STRATEGIES TO PREVENT AND ABATE FIRE RISK

WHEREAS, on October 15, 2019, The City Council adopted Resolution NO. 69,147-
N.S. declaring "Wildfire Prevention and Safety a Top Priority" for the City of Berkeley; 
and

WHEREAS, since 2019, wildfires have continued to grow larger and increase in 
intensity due to drought, climate change, and unmanaged and overgrown vegetation; 
and 

WHEREAS, the East Bay Hills experienced a wildfire in 1991 which burned over 1,600 
acres and 2,900 structures, causing 25 deaths and injuring 150 people; and 

WHEREAS, the entire City of Berkeley is potentially at risk of wildfire, not only in the hill 
neighborhoods but in the lower neighborhoods between the hills and the Bay; and 

WHEREAS, unhealthy and hazardous air quality is a consequence of wildfires, seriously 
impacting the health of all, and of particular concern, the health of our children, seniors 
and other vulnerable populations throughout the city; and

WHEREAS, Cal Fire has designated a large geographical area of Berkeley to be in a 
Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone (VHFHSZ) within the Local Responsibility Area 
(LRA) where the City has the financial responsibility for wildfire protection; and 

WHEREAS, when a wildfire destroys neighborhoods, the economic impact is 
devastating and impacts the City’s quality of life, infrastructure, and ability to recover 
financially, and would adversely impact the City’s ability to collect its current level of 
property and sales taxes and other revenue sources that comprise the City budget; and  

WHEREAS, there is a housing shortage in Berkeley and wildfires could exacerbate this 
situation, in addition to concerns that when wildfires hit, financially disadvantaged 
people are disproportionately affected.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Berkeley that 
it reaffirms its commitment to wildfire prevention and safety as a top priority and that 
discussions and efforts will continue locally and regionally on how best to prevent and 
abate fire hazards in the City, including but not limited to:

Page 3 of 5

273



 Resolution Renewing and Re-Affirming Wildfire Prevention and Safety a Top Priority CONSENT CALENDAR
September 28, 2021

Page 4

 Working collaboratively with neighboring agencies and jurisdictions on a 
comprehensive approach to fire prevention

 Seeking grants and other resources for wildfire education, prevention and 
mitigation 

 Planning for and implementing policies for safe evacuation 
 Implementing a Vegetation Management Plan to require the removal of 

flammable vegetation on private properties 
 Updating building and fire codes as necessary to make structures more resistant 

to fire
 Reducing fuel loads in the VHFHSZ in city owned parks and other properties.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall become effective immediately 
upon passage and adoption.

Page 4 of 5

274



 Resolution Renewing and Re-Affirming Wildfire Prevention and Safety a Top Priority CONSENT CALENDAR
September 28, 2021

Page 5

i https://www.berkeleyside.org/2019/10/17/the-berkeley-hills-are-kindling-city-takes-steps-to-tackle-
wildfire-dangers-safety-issues 
ii https://egis.fire.ca.gov/FHSZ/
iii https://csl.noaa.gov/factsheets/csdWildfiresFIREX.pdf

Page 5 of 5

275

https://www.berkeleyside.org/2019/10/17/the-berkeley-hills-are-kindling-city-takes-steps-to-tackle-wildfire-dangers-safety-issues
https://www.berkeleyside.org/2019/10/17/the-berkeley-hills-are-kindling-city-takes-steps-to-tackle-wildfire-dangers-safety-issues
https://egis.fire.ca.gov/FHSZ/
https://csl.noaa.gov/factsheets/csdWildfiresFIREX.pdf


276



Susan Wengraf
Councilmember District 6

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7160 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7166
E-Mail: swengraf@cityofberkeley.info 

CONSENT CALENDAR
September 28, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Councilmember Wengraf (Author) Councilmember Hahn (Co-Sponsor)

Subject: Amending BMC Section 14.56.040 to reduce the commercial weight limit on 
Marin Ave

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt first reading of an Ordinance amending Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) Section 
14.56.040 to reduce the commercial vehicle weight limit from four tons gross weight to 
three tons gross weight on Marin Avenue between Grizzly Peak Boulevard and The 
Marin Fountain Circle. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Staff time and sign replacement. Expense covered by approved FY 2022 funding 
allocation for “Traffic Control Mitigations to Protect Pedestrian Access to Cragmont 
Elementary School”.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
Reducing the commercial vehicle weight limit on Marin Ave between Grizzly Peak 
Boulevard and The Marin Fountain Circle will make Marin Avenue safer to walk on, 
drive on and live on. Marin Avenue is the steepest street in the City of Berkeley; one of 
the steepest in the entire Bay Area. Accidents on Marin Ave involving failed brakes and 
other mechanical failures have resulted in deaths, severe injuries and property damagei. 
The heavier a vehicle the greater potential for catastrophic results from an accident.

On May 11, 2021, at approximately 1:40 PM, a driver of a sedan and his passenger 
died in a collision with a telephone pole. A second vehicle was impacted in the collision 
with injuries to the driver. A parked car was also hit. The reason for the accident is still 
under investigation but speculated to be some sort of mechanical failure. Cragmont 
Elementary students and parents were traumatized by witnessing the out of control car 
and hearing the resulting crash. Had the car been a high tonnage commercial vehicle 
the results would likely have been even more disastrous.

Councilmember Wengraf and Transportation staff participated in a Community Town 
Hall on Marin Ave Safety, hosted by the Cragmont School PTA on May 26, 2021. This 
item is a result of discussion and consideration of steps to improve safety on Marin Ave. 
The recent tragic deaths along with years of concern over traffic safety on Marin Ave 
bring this recommendation to Council. 

Page 1 of 4

277

sbunting
Typewritten Text
02a.28



Amending BMC Section 14.56.040 CONSENT CALENDAR
September 28, 2021

Page 2

BACKGROUND
The commercial vehicle weight limit for the upper section of Marin Ave, between The 
Marin Fountain Circle and Grizzly Peak Blvd. was set at four tons in 1957 and has 
remained unchanged. Weight limits were not set again in Berkeley until 1992 (BMC 
14.56.050) when five-ton vehicle weight limits were set for sections of collector streets 
Gilman, Hopkins, The Alameda and MLK Jr. Way. In 2000 the passage of Ordinance 
No. 6535 – N.S. created a designated truck route system for commercial vehicles 
exceeding seven tons (BMC 14.56.060). It wasn’t until 2004 that the City Council once 
again addressed commercial vehicle traffic on residential streets with the passage of 
Ordinance No. 6799 – N.S., which added BMC 14.56.070, and limited commercial 
vehicle weight limits to three tons on sections of 46 different streets. Marin Ave remains 
the only residential street in Berkeley with a four-ton weight limit.

Currently, Marin Ave remains the only residential street in Berkeley with a four-ton 
weight limit.  

Marin Avenue is a major thoroughfare for entry and exit from I-80 to all of North 
Berkeley. It is also a residential street where residents walk up, down and across for 
exercise and pleasure. As mentioned, Cragmont Elementary School is located on Marin 
where students, parents and staff walk and cross the street to get to and from school, 
daily. 

Reducing the commercial vehicle weight limit on Marin Avenue between Grizzly Peak 
Boulevard and The Marin Fountain Circle is consistent with the City’s Vision Zero 
strategy to eliminate all traffic fatalities and severe injuries while increasing safe, healthy 
and equitable mobility for all. Vison Zero has designated lower Marin Ave, below Spruce 
street, as one of the City’s “High Injury Streets” (16% of the City’s streets) where 91% of 
severe and fatal collisions occurred between 2008 and 2018. While the latest fatal 
collision on Marin Avenue occurred on lower Marin, the car’s speed began to get out of 
control in the steep, weight limited section of Marin, above Cragmont Elementary. 
Reducing the commercial vehicle weight limit on Marin Ave by one ton will make Marin 
Avenue safer for all. 

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
Safer streets encourage lower emission forms of transportation such as walking, biking 
and use of public transportation.

CONTACT PERSON
Councilmember Wengraf Council District 6 510-981-7160

Attachments: 
1: Ordinance
2: Commercial Vehicle Weight Limit Map

Page 2 of 4

278

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Public_Works/Level_3_-_Transportation/mapoftruckroutesystem.pdf


ORDINANCE NO.       -N.S.

AMENDING BERKELEY MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 14.56.040 TO REDUCE THE 
COMMERCIAL VEHICLE WEIGHT LIMIT FROM FOUR TONS TO THREE TONS AND 
UPDATE THE WORDING OF “THE CIRCLE” TO “THE MARIN FOUNTAIN CIRCLE”

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows:

Section 1.  That Section 14.56.040 of the Berkeley Municipal Code is amended to read 
as follows:

14.56.040 Prohibiting the operation of commercial vehicles on Marin Avenue between 
Grizzly Peak Boulevard and The Marin Fountain Circle.

A.    It is unlawful for any person to operate any commercial vehicle over three tons 
gross weight on Marin Avenue between Grizzly Peak Boulevard and The Marin 
Fountain Circle. Provided, however, that this section shall not apply to any commercial 
vehicle using said street when necessary for the purpose of making pickups or 
deliveries of goods, wares and merchandise from or to any building or structure located 
on said portion of Marin Avenue or for the purpose of delivering materials to be used in 
the actual and bona fide repair, alteration, remodeling or construction of any building or 
structure upon such portion of Marin Avenue for which a building permit has previously 
been obtained therefore, providing the operator of said commercial vehicle enters and 
leaves said portion of Marin Avenue by the cross street either above or below the point 
of pickup or delivery. Provided, further, that this section shall not apply to any vehicle 
owned by a public utility while necessarily in use in the construction, installation or 
repair of any public utility. 

Section 2. Copies of this Ordinance shall be posted for two days prior to adoption in the 
display case located near the walkway in front of Council Chambers, 2134 Martin Luther 
King Jr. Way. Within 15 days of adoption, copies of this Ordinance shall be filed at each 
branch of the Berkeley Public Library and the title shall be published in a newspaper of 
general circulation.

Page 3 of 4

279



Amending BMC Section 14.56.040 CONSENT CALENDAR
September 28, 2021

Page 4

i https://www.berkeleyside.org/2021/05/13/fatal-crash-revives-traffic-safety-concerns-for-berkeley-hills-
neighbors 

Page 4 of 4

280

https://www.berkeleyside.org/2021/05/13/fatal-crash-revives-traffic-safety-concerns-for-berkeley-hills-neighbors
https://www.berkeleyside.org/2021/05/13/fatal-crash-revives-traffic-safety-concerns-for-berkeley-hills-neighbors


2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6750 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-6760
E-mail: auditor@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/auditor 

INFORMATION CALENDAR
September 28, 2021

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Jenny Wong, City Auditor

Subject: Financial First Aid Kit: A Guide to Emergency Financial Preparedness for Berkeley 
Residents 

INTRODUCTION
To promote Berkeley’s financial fitness, my office created a guide to assist residents in preparing 
a Financial First Aid Kit for their households.

FISCAL IMPACTS
A Financial First Aid Kit can reduce the financial burden on residents in recovering from 
disasters or emergencies. 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
As climate change increases the risk of catastrophic wildfires and Berkeley’s location near the 
Hayward fault creates an ever-present risk of earthquakes, it is always important to be prepared 
for evacuation if disaster strikes. One way to prepare is to create a Financial First Aid Kit that 
contains the critical information needed to begin the recovery process after an emergency 
evacuation or other incident. My office compiled information from the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) and other sources to create a guide for Berkeley residents to 
prepare a Financial First Aid Kit for their household.

FEMA recommends that a Financial First Aid kit include key records and contact information 
that you will need to recover from disasters or emergencies, including identification documents, 
financial and legal documentation, medical information for all family members and pets, contact 
information, passwords, and cash. FEMA also recommends that Financial First Aid Kits are 
stored in a safe location and to save multiple electronic copies on secure devices. 

BACKGROUND
Emergencies can lead to unexpected expenses and may also require residents to evacuate their 
homes with little notice. It is important to be able to access financial information needed to meet 
basic needs during an emergency situation and to recover after the initial threat of harm has 
passed.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
There are no identifiable environmental effects or opportunities associated with this item.

CONTACT PERSON
Jenny Wong, City Auditor, City Auditor’s Office, 510-981-6750

Attachments: 
1: Financial First Aid Kit: A Guide to Emergency Financial Preparedness for Berkeley Residents 

Page 1 of 2

281

mailto:auditor@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/auditor
sbunting
Typewritten Text
02a.30



Be Prepared for Emergencies 

As climate change increases the risk of catastrophic wildfires and 
Berkeley’s location near the Hayward fault creates an ever-present 
risk of earthquakes, it is always important to be prepared for 
evacuation if disaster strikes. September is National Preparedness 
Month, which is a great reminder to take steps now to be ready for 
emergencies. One way to prepare is to create a Financial First Aid 
Kit that contains some of the critical information you will need to 
begin the recovery process after an emergency evacuation or other 
incident. This guide compiles information from the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and other sources to help 
you prepare a Financial First Aid Kit for your household. 

How to Create a Financial First Aid Kit 

1. Assemble your documents and information. When using 
copies of original documents, make sure to scan both sides of 
each page.

2. Verify that the information is correct and up-to-date.
3. Store your completed Financial First Aid Kit in a safe location. 

It’s best to save multiple electronic copies on secure devices, in 
addition to any physical copies.

4. Update this file at least once per year. 

While the documents in the checklist to the right are a good 
starting point, keep in mind that this list is not comprehensive. You 
may need to customize or add to your Financial First Aid Kit based 
on the needs of your household. See the sources below for more 
details. 

If you believe your Financial First Aid Kit has been stolen or illegally 
accessed, you should immediately contact all relevant financial and 
insurance institutions to report the concern.  

Sources 

(1) FEMA. 2019. Emergency Financial First Aid Kit (EFFAK): Strengthen
Your Financial Preparedness for Disasters and Emergencies.
https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/documents/fema_effak-
toolkit.pdf.

(2) LA City Controller. 2020. “How to Build a Financial First Aid Kit.”
https://lacontroller.org/data-stories-and-maps/financialfirstaidkit/.

(3) Ready Campaign. 2021. National Preparedness Month Information.
https://www.ready.gov/september.

Document and Information Checklist 

Identification Documents 
 Driver’s license(s) or other photo ID(s)
 Birth certificate(s), adoption/custody papers
 Marriage license or divorce decree
 Social Security card(s)
 Child ID card(s) with photograph, fingerprints/DNA swabs
 Passport(s)/Green Card(s)
 Naturalization papers
 Military ID or discharge papers
 Pet ID(s), proof of ownership or adoption, emotional support

letter/service animal certification, microchip information,

Medical Information 
 Physician, pediatrician, dentist, medical specialist contacts
 Health insurance, pharmacy card(s)
 Medicare/Medicaid cards
 Immunization, allergy, and dental records
 List of prescriptions/medications
 Disability documents
 Caregiver agency contract or service agreement, living will/power

of attorney
 Medical information for pet(s), e.g., veterinarian information,

immunization records, prescriptions/medications
 Models, serial numbers, and suppliers for medical equipment

Contacts, Passwords, and Cash 
 List of emergency contacts
 List of usernames and passwords
 Cash for daily expenses (physical file only)

Legal and Financial Documents 
 Bank/financial institution, investment, and retirement account

statements
 Lease/rental agreements
 Mortgage papers/real estate deed of trust
 Home equity line of credit
 Utility bills (e.g., electric, gas, water)
 Other financial obligations (e.g., vehicle loans, credit cards,

student loans, alimony/child support payments, elder care
facilities, automatic payments)

 Vehicle registration/proof of ownership
 Insurance papers for medical, life, property, renters, auto, pet,

flood, funeral, etc.
 Photographs/appraisals of property
 Pay stubs, alimony/child support income
 Contracts to which you are a party
 Government benefit statements (e.g., CalFresh)
 Estate planning papers, wills and trusts, power(s) of attorney
 Rewards accounts (e.g., frequent flyer programs, hotels)

Financial First Aid Kit A Guide to Emergency Financial Preparedness 
for Berkeley Residents  

Page 2 of 2

282

https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/documents/fema_effak-toolkit.pdf
https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/documents/fema_effak-toolkit.pdf
https://lacontroller.org/data-stories-and-maps/financialfirstaidkit/
https://lacontroller.org/data-stories-and-maps/financialfirstaidkit/
https://www.ready.gov/september


 
 
 
 

Upcoming Worksessions – start time is 6:00 p.m. unless otherwise noted 

Scheduled Dates  

Sept. 21 1. Housing Element 

Oct. 19 
1. Update: Zero Waste Rates & Priorities  
2. Berkeley Police Department Hiring Practices  
3. Crime Report  

Dec. 7 
1. Review and Update on City’s COVID-19 Response 
2. WETA / Ferry Service at the Marina 
3. Presentation by Bay Restoration Authority 

         

 

 

Unscheduled Workshops 
1.  Cannabis Health Considerations 
2.  Alameda County LAFCO Presentation 
 

Unscheduled Presentations (City Manager) 
1. Civic Arts Grantmaking Process & Capital Grant Program 
 

283

sbunting
Typewritten Text
05



 City Council Referrals to the Agenda & Rules Committee and Unfinished 
Business for Scheduling 
 

1. 47. Amending Chapter 19.32 of the Berkeley Municipal Code to Require Kitchen Exhaust 
Hood Ventilation in Residential and Condominium Units Prior to Execution of a Contract 
for Sale or Close of Escrow (Reviewed by Facilities, Infrastructure, Transportation, 
Environment, and Sustainability Committee) (Referred from the January 21, 2020 agenda) 
From: Councilmember Harrison 
Recommendation:  
1. Adopt an ordinance amending Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) 19.32 to require kitchen 
exhaust ventilation in residential and condominium units prior to execution of a contract for 
sale or close of escrow. 
2. Refer to the City Manager to develop a process for informing owners and tenants of the 
proper use of exhaust hoods.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Kate Harrison, Councilmember, District 4, (510) 981-7140 
Note: Referred to Agenda & Rules for future scheduling. 

2. 25. Surveillance Technology Report, Surveillance Acquisition Report, and Surveillance 
Use Policy for Automatic License Plate Readers  (Continued from February 25, 2020. Item 
contains revised and supplemental materials) (Referred from the May 12, 2020 agenda.) 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution accepting the Surveillance Technology Report, 
Surveillance Acquisition Report, and Surveillance Use Policy for Automatic License Plate 
Readers submitted pursuant to Chapter 2.99 of the Berkeley Municipal Code.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Andrew Greenwood, Police, (510) 981-5900; Dave White, City Manager's Office, 
(510) 981-7000 
Note: Referred to Agenda & Rules for future scheduling. 

3. Adopt a Resolution Updating City of Berkeley Street Maintenance and Rehabilitation 
Policy (Reviewed by the Facilities, Infrastructure, Transportation, Environment & Sustainability 
Committee) (Continued from the June 1, 2021 meeting) (Referred from the July 13, 2021 
meeting) 
From: Councilmember Harrison (Author), Councilmember Bartlett (Co-Sponsor), 
Councilmember Taplin (Co-Sponsor) 
Recommendation:  
1. Adopt a Resolution updating the City’s Street Maintenance and Rehabilitation Policy dated 
June 1, 2021. 
2. Refer the exploration of potential bonding and funding opportunities for improving the Paving 
Condition Index (PCI) of streets and creating a Paving Master Plan back to the Facilities, 
Infrastructure, Transportation, Environment & Sustainability (FITES) Committee for further 
review. 
Policy Committee Recommendation: To move the Public Works supplemental item “City of 
Berkeley Street Maintenance and Rehabilitation Policy to Council” with a positive 
recommendation including amendments made during the meeting today, and ask Council to 
refer the exploration of potential bonding and funding opportunities for improving the PCI of 
streets and creating a Paving Master Plan back to the FITES Committee for further review. 
Financial Implications: Staff time 
Contact: Kate Harrison, Councilmember, District 4, (510) 981-7140 
Note: Item referred to the Agenda & Rules Committee for future scheduling with the Five-Year 
Paving Plan. 

 

284

sbunting
Typewritten Text
06



Address
Board/

Commission
Appeal Period 

Ends 
Public

Hearing

NOD – Notices of Decision
840 Page Street (modifications to second story and ground floor on home) ZAB 9/21/2021

2808 Ninth Street (demolish 876 sq ft single family dwelling; construct 1,651 sq 
ft single family dwelling)

ZAB 9/21/2021

Public Hearings Scheduled
2943 Pine Street (construct second story on existing one story) ZAB 9/28/2021
1205 Peralta Avenue (conversion of an existing garage) ZAB 10/12/2021

Remanded to ZAB or LPC

Notes

9/9/2021

CITY CLERK DEPARTMENT
WORKING CALENDAR FOR SCHEDULING LAND USE MATTERS

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL

285

sbunting
Typewritten Text
07



286



 
Office of the City Manager 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099 
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager 

 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL 
AGENDA MATERIAL 

for Supplemental Packet 2 
 
 
Meeting Date:   November 10, 2020 
 
Item Number:   20 
 
Item Description:   Annual Commission Attendance and Meeting Frequency 
Report 
 
Submitted by:  Mark Numainville, City Clerk 
 
The attached memo responds to issues and questions raised at the October 26 
Agenda & Rules Committee Meeting and the October 27 City Council Meeting 
regarding the ability of city boards and commissions to resume regular meeting 
schedules. 
 
 

 

287

mailto:manager@CityofBerkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
08



Office of the City Manager 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099 
E-Mail: manager@cityofberkeley.info  Website: http://www.cityofberkeley.info/manager

G:\CLERK\MEMOS\Commissions\Memo - Commission Meetings - Council Supp 1 - Nov 10.docx

November 9, 2020 

To: Mayor and Council 

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager 

Subject: Commission Meetings Under COVID-19 Emergency (Item 20) 

____________________________________________________________________ 

This memo provides supplemental information for the discussion on Item 20 on the 
November 10, 2020 Council agenda.  Below is a summary and update of the status of 
meetings of Berkeley Boards and Commissions during the COVID-19 emergency 
declaration and the data collected by the City Manager on the ability of commissions to 
resume meetings in 2021. 

On March 10, 2020 the City Council ratified the proclamation of the Director of 
Emergency Services for a state of local emergency related to the COVID-19 pandemic.  
The emergency proclamation has been renewed twice by the Council and remains in 
effect. 

On March 17, 2020 the City Council adopted Resolution No. 69,331-N.S. which placed 
limitations of the meetings of City legislative bodies, including all boards and 
commissions.  The resolution allows for commissions to meet to conduct time-sensitive, 
legally mandated business with the authorization of the City Manager.  Since that time, 
several commissions have obtained this approval and held meetings; many other 
commissions have not met at all since March. 

The City Manager has periodically reviewed the status of commission meetings with the 
City Council Agenda & Rules Committee.  Recently, at the October 12, 2020 Agenda & 
Rules Committee meeting, the City Manager presented a proposal to allow all 
commissions to meet under limited circumstances.  The Committee voted to endorse 
the City Manager’s recommendation. 

Effective October 12, 2020, all City boards and commissions may meet once to develop 
and finalize their work plan for 2021 and to complete any Council referrals directly 
related to the COVID-19 pandemic response.  A second meeting may be held to 

288

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/manager


Commission Meetings Under COVID-19 Emergency November 9, 2020 

Page 2 

complete this work with specific authorization by the City Manager.  It is recommended 
that the meeting(s) occur by the end of February 2021. 

Commissions that have been granted permission to meet under Resolution No. 69,331-
N.S. may continue to meet pursuant to their existing authorization, and may also meet 
to develop their 2021 work plan. 

Commissions that have not requested meetings pursuant to the Resolution No. 69,331-
N.S. may meet pursuant to the limitations listed above. 

In response to questions from the Agenda & Rules Committee and the Council, the City 
Manager polled all departments that support commissions to obtain information on their 
capacity to support the resumption of regular commission meetings.  The information in 
Attachment 1 shows the information received from the departments and notes each 
commission’s ability to resume a regular, or semi-regular, meeting schedule in 2021. 

In summary, there are 24 commissions that have staff resources available to support a 
regular meeting schedule in 2021.  Seven of these 24 commissions have been meeting 
regularly during the pandemic.  There are five commissions that have staff resources 
available to support a limited meeting schedule in 2021. There are seven commissions 
that currently do not have staff resources available to start meeting regularly at the 
beginning of 2021.  Some of these seven commissions will have staff resources 
available later in 2021 to support regular meetings.  Please see Attachment 1 for the full 
list of commissions and their status. 

With regards to commission subcommittees, there has been significant discussion 
regarding the ability of staff to support these meetings in a virtual environment.  Under 
normal circumstances, the secretary’s responsibilities regarding subcommittees is 
limited to posting the agenda and reserving the meeting space (if in a city building).  
With the necessity to hold the meetings in a virtual environment and be open to the 
public, it is likely that subcommittee meetings will require significantly more staff 
resources to schedule, train, manage, and support the work of subcommittees on Zoom 
or a similar platform.  This additional demand on staff resources to support commission 
subcommittees is not feasible for any commission at this time. 

One possible option for subcommittees is to temporarily suspend the requirement for ad 
hoc subcommittees of city commissions to notice their meetings and require public 
participation.  Ad hoc subcommittees are not legislative bodies under the Brown Act and 
are not required to post agendas or allow for public participation.  These requirements 
are specific to Berkeley and are adopted by resolution in the Commissioners’ Manual.  If 
it is the will of the Council, staff could introduce an item to temporarily suspend these 

289



Commission Meetings Under COVID-19 Emergency November 9, 2020

Page 3 

requirements which will allow subcommittees of all commissions to meet as needed to 
develop recommendations that will be presented to the full commission. 

The limitations on the meetings of certain commissions are due to the need to direct 
staff resources and the resources of city legislative bodies to the pandemic response.  
Some of the staff assigned as commission secretaries are engaged in work with the City 
Emergency Operations Center or have been assigned new duties specifically related to 
the impacts of the pandemic. 

Meeting frequency for boards and commissions will continue to be evaluated on a 
regular basis by the City Manager and the Health Officer in consultation with 
Department Heads and the City Council.   

Attachments: 
1. List of Commissions with Meeting Status
2. Resolution 69,331-N.S.

290



November 10, 2020 - Item 20 

Supplemental Information

Att. 1

Boards and Commissions

Meetings Held 

Under COVID 

March - Oct

Regular Mtg. 

Date
Secretary Dept.

Resume Regular 

Schedule in 

January 2021?

Note

Fair Campaign Practices Commission 9 3rd Thur. Sam Harvey CA YES Have been meeting regularly under 
COVID Emergency

Open Government Commission 6 3rd Thur. Sam Harvey CA YES Have been meeting regularly under 
COVID Emergency

Animal Care Commission 0 3rd Wed. Amelia Funghi CM YES
Police Review Commission 10 2nd & 4th Wed. Katherine Lee CM YES Have been meeting regularly under 

COVID Emergency
Disaster and Fire Safety Commission 4 4th Wed. Keith May FES YES
Community Health Commission 0 4th Thur. Roberto Terrones HHCS YES
Homeless Commission 0 2nd Wed. Josh Jacobs HHCS YES
Homeless Services Panel of Experts 5 1st Wed Josh Jacobs HHCS YES
Human Welfare & Community Action 
Commission

0 3rd Wed. Mary-Claire Katz HHCS YES

Mental Health Commission 1 4th Thur. Jamie Works-Wright HHCS YES
Sugar-Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of 

Experts

0 3rd Thur. Dechen Tsering HHCS YES

Civic Arts Commission 2 4th Wed. Jennifer Lovvorn OED YES
Elmwood BID Advisory Board 1 Contact Secretary Kieron Slaughter OED YES
Loan Administration Board 0 Contact Secretary Kieron Slaughter OED YES
Solano Avenue BID Advisory Board 2 Contact Secretary Eleanor Hollander OED YES
Design Review Committee 6 3rd Thur. Anne Burns PLD YES Have been meeting regularly under 

COVID Emergency
Energy Commission 0 4th Wed. Billi Romain PLD YES
Landmarks Preservation Commission 6 1st Thur. Fatema Crane PLD YES Have been meeting regularly under 

COVID Emergency
Planning Commission 3 1st Wed. Alene Pearson PLD YES Have been meeting regularly under 

COVID Emergency
Zoning Adjustments Board 11 2nd & 4th Thur. Shannon Allen PLD YES Have been meeting regularly under 

COVID Emergency
Parks and Waterfront Commission 4 2nd Wed. Roger Miller PRW YES
Commission on Disability 0 1st Wed. Dominika Bednarska PW YES
Public Works Commission 4 1st Thur. Joe Enke PW YES
Zero Waste Commission 0 4th Mon. Heidi Obermeit PW YES
Commission on the Status of Women 0 4th Wed. Shallon Allen CM YES - LIMITED Secretary has intermittent COVID 

assignments

1 of 2291



November 10, 2020 - Item 20 

Supplemental Information

Att. 1

Boards and Commissions

Meetings Held 

Under COVID 

March - Oct

Regular Mtg. 

Date
Secretary Dept.

Resume Regular 

Schedule in 

January 2021?

Note

Commission on Aging 0 3rd Wed. Richard Castrillon HHCS REDUCED 
FREQUENCY

Significant Dept. resources assigned 
to COVID response

Housing Advisory Commission 0 1st Thur. Mike Uberti HHCS REDUCED 
FREQUENCY

Significant Dept. resources assigned 
to COVID response

Measure O Bond Oversight Committee 0 3rd Monday Amy Davidson HHCS REDUCED 
FREQUENCY

Significant Dept. resources assigned 
to COVID response

Transportation Commission 2 3rd Thur. Farid Javandel PW REDUCED 
FREQUENCY

Staff assigned to COVID response

Children, Youth, and Recreation 
Commission

0 4th Monday Stephanie Chu PRW NO - SEPT 2021 Staff assigned to COVID response

Youth Commission 0 2nd Mon. Ginsi Bryant PRW NO - SEPT 2021 Staff assigned to COVID response
Community Environmental Advisory 
Commission

0 2nd Thur. Viviana Garcia PLD NO - JUNE 2021 Staff assigned to COVID response

Cannabis Commission 0 1st Thur. VACANT PLD NO - JAN. 2022 Staff vacancy
Peace and Justice Commission 0 1st Mon. VACANT CM NO Staff vacancy
Commission on Labor 0 3rd Wed., alternate monthsKristen Lee HHCS NO Staff assigned to COVID response
Personnel Board 1 1st Mon. La Tanya Bellow HR NO Staff assigned to COVID response

2 of 2292



Att. 2

293



294



295



 
Office of the City Manager 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099 
E-Mail: manager@cityofberkeley.info  Website: http://www.cityofberkeley.info/manager 

October 22, 2020 
 
To: Berkeley Boards and Commissions 
 
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager 
 
Subject: Commission Meetings During COVID-19 Emergency 
 
 
This memo serves to provide a summary and update of the status of meetings of Berkeley 
Boards and Commissions during the COVID-19 emergency declaration. 

On March 10, 2020, the City Council ratified the proclamation of the Director of Emergency 
Services for a state of local emergency related to the COVID-19 pandemic.  The emergency 
proclamation has been renewed twice by the Council and remains in effect. 

On March 17, 2020, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 69,331-N.S. which placed 
limitations of the meetings of City legislative bodies, including all boards and commissions.  
The resolution allows for commissions to meet to conduct time-sensitive, legally mandated 
business with the authorization of the City Manager.  Since that time, several commissions 
have obtained this approval and held meetings; many other commissions have not met at 
all since March. 

The City Manager has periodically reviewed the status of commission meetings with the 
City Council Agenda & Rules Committee.  Recently, at the October 12, 2020, Agenda & 
Rules Committee meeting, the City Manager presented a proposal to allow all commissions 
to meet under limited circumstances.  The Committee voted to endorse the City Manager’s 
recommendation. 

Effective October 12, 2020, all City boards and commissions may meet once to develop and 
finalize their work plan for 2021 and to complete any Council referrals directly related to the 
COVID-19 pandemic response.  A second meeting may be held to complete this work with 
specific authorization by the City Manager.  It is recommended that the meeting(s) occur by 
the end of February 2021. 

Commissions that have been granted permission to meet under Resolution No. 69,331-N.S. 
may continue to meet pursuant to their existing authorization, and may also meet to develop 
their 2021 work plan. 

Commissions that have not requested meetings pursuant to the Resolution No. 69,331-N.S. 
may meet pursuant to the limitations listed above. 

296

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/manager


Page 2 
October 22, 2020 
Re:  Commission Meetings During COVID-19 Emergency 
 
 
To assist commissions with the development of their work plan and to provide the City 
Council with a consistent framework to review the work plans, the City Manager has 
developed the following items to consider in developing the work plan that is submitted to 
the City Council agenda. 

Prompts for Commissions to use in work plan: 

 What commission items for 2021 have a direct nexus with the COVID-19 response 
or are the result of a City Council referral pertaining to COVID-19? 

 What commission items for 2021 are required for statutory reasons? 

 What commission items for 2021 are required for budgetary or fund allocation 
reasons? 

 What commission items for 2021 support council-adopted or voter-adopted mission 
critical projects or programs? 

 What are the anticipated staff demands (above and beyond baseline) for analysis, 
data, etc., to support commission work in 2021 (baseline duties = posting agendas, 
creating packets, attend meetings, minutes, etc.)?  

The limitations on commission meetings are due to the need to direct staff resources and 
the resources of city legislative bodies to the pandemic response.  Many of the staff 
assigned as commission secretaries are engaged in work with the City Emergency 
Operations Center or have been assigned new specific duties related to the impacts of the 
pandemic. 
 
Meeting frequency for boards and commissions will continue to be evaluated on a regular 
basis by the City Manager in consultation with Department Heads and the City Council.  
More frequent meetings by commissions will be permitted as the conditions under COVID-
19 dictate. 
 
Thank you for your service on our boards and commissions.  The City values the work of 
our commissions and we appreciate your partnership and understanding as we address this 
pandemic as a resilient and vibrant community. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution 69,331-N.S. 
2. List of Commissions with Meeting Data 

 
 
cc: Mayor and City Councilmembers 

Senior Leadership Team 

297



298



299



300



Boards and Commissions Meetings Held Under COVID 
Emergency (through 10/11)

Scheduled Meetings in 
October

Regular Mtg. 
Date Secretary Department

Zoning Adjustments Board 10 1 2nd & 4th Thur. Shannon Allen PLD
Police Review Commission 9 1 2nd & 4th Wed. Katherine Lee CM
Fair Campaign Practices Commission 8 1 3rd Thur. Sam Harvey CA
Design Review Committee 5 1 3rd Thur. Anne Burns PLD
Landmarks Preservation Commission 5 1 1st Thur. Fatema Crane PLD
Open Government Commission 5 1 3rd Thur. Sam Harvey CA
Homeless Services Panel of Experts 4 1 1st Wed Brittany Carnegie HHCS
Disaster and Fire Safety Commission 3 1 4th Wed. Keith May FES
Parks and Waterfront Commission 3 1 2nd Wed. Roger Miller PRW
Planning Commission 3 1st Wed. Alene Pearson PLD
Public Works Commission 3 1 1st Thur. Joe Enke PW
Civic Arts Commission 2 4th Wed. Jennifer Lovvorn OED
Solano Avenue BID Advisory Board 2 Contact Secretary Eleanor Hollander OED
Elmwood BID Advisory Board 1 Contact Secretary Kieron Slaughter OED
Joint Subcom. on Implementation of State Housing Laws 1 4th Wed. Alene Pearson PLD
Mental Health Commission 1 4th Thur. Jamie Works-Wright HHCS
Personnel Board 1 1st Mon. La Tanya Bellow HR
Transportation Commission 1 1 3rd Thur. Farid Javandel PW

Animal Care Commission 0 3rd Wed. Amelia Funghi CM
Cannabis Commission 0 1st Thur. PLD
Children, Youth, and Recreation Commission 0 4th Monday Stephanie Chu PRW
Commission on Aging 0 3rd Wed. Richard Castrillon HHCS
Commission on Disability 0 1st Wed. Dominika Bednarska PW
Commission on Labor 0 3rd Wed., alternate monthsNathan Dahl HHCS
Commission on the Status of Women 0 4th Wed. Shallon Allen CM
Community Environmental Advisory Commission 0 2nd Thur. Viviana Garcia PLD
Community Health Commission 0 4th Thur. Roberto Terrones HHCS
Energy Commission 0 4th Wed. Billi Romain PLD
Homeless Commission 0 2nd Wed. Brittany Carnegie HHCS
Housing Advisory Commission 0 1st Thur. Mike Uberti HHCS
Human Welfare & Community Action Commission 0 3rd Wed. Mary-Claire Katz HHCS
Loan Administration Board 0 Contact Secretary Kieron Slaughter OED
Measure O Bond Oversight Committee 0 3rd Monday Amy Davidson HHCS
Peace and Justice Commission 0 1st Mon. Nina Goldman CM
Sugar-Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of Experts 0 3rd Thur. Dechen Tsering HHCS
Youth Commission 0 2nd Mon. Ginsi Bryant PRW
Zero Waste Commission 0 4th Mon. Heidi Obermeit PW

301



302



GOVERNOR GAVIN NEWSOM • SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95814 • (916) 445-2841 

 

O F F I C E  O F  T H E  G O V E R N O R
 
 
 

June 2, 2021 
 
 
VIA EMAIL 
 
Graham Knaus, Executive Director 
CA State Assoc. of Counties 
gknaus@counties.org 
 

Jean Kinney Hurst, Legislative Advocate 
Urban Counties of CA 
jhurst@counties.org  

Carolyn Coleman, Executive Director 
League of CA Cities 
ccoleman@cacities.org 

Laura Preston, Legislative Advocate 
Assoc. of CA School Administrators 
lpreston@acsa.org 
 

Staci Heaton, Acting Vice President of 
Government Affairs 
Rural County Representatives of CA 
sheaton@rcrcnet.org 

Amber King, Vice President, Advocacy 
and Membership 
Assoc. of CA Healthcare Districts 
amber.king@achd.org 
 

Pamela Miller, Executive Director 
CA Assoc. of Local Agency Formation 
Commissions 
pmiller@calafco.org 
 

Danielle Blacet-Hyden, Deputy Executive 
Director 
CA Municipal Utilities Assoc. 
dblacet@cmua.org 

Niel McCormick, Chief Executive Officer 
CA Special Districts Assoc. 
neilm@csda.net 

Kristopher M. Anderson, Esq., Legislative 
Advocate 
Assoc. of CA Water Agencies 
krisa@acwa.com 

 
RE: Transition Period Prior to Repeal of COVID-related Executive Orders 
 
 
Dear Mr. Knaus, Ms. Miller, Ms. Hurst, Ms. Preston, Ms. Heaton, Ms. King, Ms. Coleman, 
Ms. Blacet-Hyden, Mr. McCormick, Mr. Anderson, and colleagues, 
 
Thank you for your correspondence of May 18, 2021, inquiring what impact the 
anticipated June 15 termination of the Blueprint for a Safer Economy will have on 
Executive Order N-29-20, which provided flexibility to state and local agencies and 
boards to conduct their business through virtual public meetings during the COVID-19 
pandemic. 
 

303

mailto:jhurst@counties.org
mailto:lpreston@acsa.org
mailto:amber.king@achd.org
mailto:pmiller@calafco.org
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
09



 

Please be assured that this Executive Order Provision will not terminate on June 15 when 
the Blueprint is scheduled to terminate. While the Governor intends to terminate COVID-
19 executive orders at the earliest possible date at which conditions warrant, consistent 
with the Emergency Services Act, the Governor recognizes the importance of an 
orderly return to the ordinary conduct of public meetings of state and local agencies 
and boards. To this end, the Governor’s office will work to provide notice to affected 
stakeholders in advance of rescission of this provision to provide state and local 
agencies and boards time necessary to meet statutory and logistical requirements. Until 
a further order issues, all entities may continue to rely on N-29-20. 
 
We appreciate your partnership throughout the pandemic. 
 
 
Regards,  
 
 
 
 
Ana Matosantos 
Cabinet Secretary 

 

304



6/10/2021 Standards Board Readopts Revised Cal/OSHA COVID-19 Prevention Emergency Temporary Standards

https://www.dir.ca.gov/DIRNews/2021/2021-58.html 1

Release
Number:  2021-58

June 4, 2021

Press Room News Releases DIR News Release

N E W S  R E L E A S E

Standards Board Readopts Revised Cal/OSHA COVID-19
Prevention Emergency Temporary Standards

The revised Cal/OSHA standards are expected to go into effect no
later than June 15

Sacramento — The Occupational Safety and Health Standards Board on June 3
readopted Cal/OSHA’s revised COVID-19 prevention emergency temporary
standards.  

Last year, the Board adopted health and safety standards to protect workers from
COVID-19. The standards did not consider vaccinations and required testing,
quarantining, masking and more to protect workers from COVID-19.  

The changes adopted by the Board phase out physical distancing and make other
adjustments to better align with the state’s June 15 goal to retire the Blueprint.
Without these changes, the original standards, would be in place until at least
October 2. These restrictions are no longer required given today’s record low case
rates and the fact that we’ve administered 37 million vaccines.  

The revised emergency standards are expected to go into e�ect no later than June
15 if approved by the O�ice of Administrative Law in the next 10 calendar days.
Some provisions go into e�ect starting on July 31, 2021.  

The revised standards are the first update to Cal/OSHA’s temporary COVID-19
prevention requirements adopted in November 2020.  

The Board may further refine the regulations in the coming weeks to take into
account changes in circumstances, especially as related to the availability of
vaccines and low case rates across the state.

The standards apply to most workers in California not covered by Cal/OSHA’s
Aerosol Transmissible Diseases standard. Notable revisions include:  

Face Coverings:

Indoors, fully vaccinated workers without COVID-19 symptoms do not
need to wear face coverings in a room where everyone else is fully
vaccinated and not showing symptoms. However, where there is a
mixture of vaccinated and unvaccinated persons in a room, all workers
will continue to be required to wear a face covering.

Outdoors, fully vaccinated workers without symptoms do not need to
wear face coverings. However, outdoor workers who are not fully
vaccinated must continue to wear a face covering when they are less
than six feet away from another person.

Physical Distancing: When the revised standards take e�ect, employers can
eliminate physical distancing and partitions/barriers for employees working
indoors and at outdoor mega events if they provide respirators, such as N95s,
to unvaccinated employees for voluntary use. A�er July 31, physical distancing

305

https://www.dir.ca.gov/mediaroom.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dirnews/link_page.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/oshsb/documents/Jun032021-COVID-19-Prevention-Emergency-txtcourtesy-Readoption.pdf
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/5199.html


6/10/2021 Standards Board Readopts Revised Cal/OSHA COVID-19 Prevention Emergency Temporary Standards

https://www.dir.ca.gov/DIRNews/2021/2021-58.html 2

and barriers are no longer required (except during outbreaks), but employers
must provide all unvaccinated employees with N95s for voluntary use.

Prevention Program: Employers are still required to maintain a written COVID-
19 Prevention Program but there are some key changes to requirements:

Employers must review the California Department of Public Health’s
Interim guidance for Ventilation, Filtration, and Air Quality in Indoor
Environments.

COVID-19 prevention training must now include information on how the
vaccine is e�ective at preventing COVID-19 and protecting against both
transmission and serious illness or death.

Exclusion from the Workplace: Fully vaccinated workers who do not have
COVID-19 symptoms no longer need to be excluded from the workplace a�er a
close contact.

Special Protections for Housing and Transportation: Special COVID-19
prevention measures that apply to employer-provided housing and
transportation no longer apply if all occupants are fully vaccinated.   

The Standards Board will file the readoption rulemaking package with the O�ice of
Administrative Law, which has 10 calendar days to review and approve the
temporary workplace safety standards enforced by Cal/OSHA. Once approved and
published, the full text of the revised emergency standards will appear in the Title 8
sections 3205 (COVID-19 Prevention), 3205.1 (Multiple COVID-19 Infections and
COVID-19 Outbreaks), 3205.2 (Major COVID-19 Outbreaks) 3205.3 (COVID-19
Prevention in Employer-Provided Housing) and 3205.4 (COVID-19 Prevention in
Employer-Provided Transportation) of the California Code of Regulations. Pursuant
to the state’s emergency rulemaking process, this is the first of two opportunities to
readopt the temporary standards a�er the initial e�ective period. 

The Standards Board also convened a representative subcommittee to work with
Cal/OSHA on a proposal for further updates to the standard, as part of the
emergency rulemaking process.  It is anticipated this newest proposal, once
developed, will be heard at an upcoming Board meeting. The subcommittee will
provide regular updates at the Standards Board monthly meetings.  

The Occupational Safety and Health Standards Board, a seven-member body
appointed by the Governor, is the standards-setting agency within the Cal/OSHA
program. The Standards Board's objective is to adopt reasonable and enforceable
standards at least as e�ective as federal standards. The Standards Board also has
the responsibility to grant or deny applications for permanent variances from
adopted standards and respond to petitions for new or revised standards. 

The California Division of Occupational Safety and Health, or Cal/OSHA, is the
division within the Department of Industrial Relations that helps protect California’s
workers from health and safety hazards on the job in almost every workplace.
Cal/OSHA’s Consultation Services Branch provides free and voluntary assistance to
employers to improve their health and safety programs. Employers should call (800)
963-9424 for assistance from Cal/OSHA Consultation Services. 

Contact: Erika Monterroza / Frank Polizzi, Communications@dir.ca.gov, (510) 286-
1161.

The California Department of Industrial Relations, established in 1927, protects and improves
the health, safety, and economic well-being of over 18 million wage earners, and helps their
employers comply with state labor laws. DIR is housed within the Labor & Workforce
Development Agency

306

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Interim-Guidance-for-Ventilation-Filtration-and-Air-Quality-in-Indoor-Environments.aspx
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205_1.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205_2.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205_3.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205_4.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/samples/search/query.htm
https://oal.ca.gov/emergency_regulations/
https://www.dir.ca.gov/oshsb/oshsb.html
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/
https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/consultation.html
mailto:Communications@dir.ca.gov
https://www.dir.ca.gov/
https://www.labor.ca.gov/


 
Office of the City Manager 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099 
E-Mail: manager@cityofberkeley.info  Website: http://www.cityofberkeley.info/manager 

G:\CLERK\AGENDA\Admin\VIDEOSTREAMING - GRANICUS - ZOOM\ZOOM\Memo - Agenda & Rules City Meetings 6-1-
21_v2.docx 

June 1, 2021 
 
 
To: Agenda & Rules Committee 
 
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager 
 
Subject: Preliminary Analysis of Return to In-Person Meetings of City Legislative 

Bodies 
 
 
Introduction 
This memo responds to the request from the Agenda & Rules Committee on May 17, 
2021 for information from the City Manager on the options and timing for a return to in-
person meetings for City legislative bodies.  The analysis below is a preliminary 
summary of the considerations and options for returning to in-person meetings. 
 
With the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic, the shelter-in-place order, and the issuance 
of Executive Order N-29-20 (“Executive Order”) in the spring of 2020, the City quickly 
adjusted to a virtual meeting model.  Now, almost 15 months later, with the Blueprint for 
a Safer Economy scheduled to sunset on June 15, 2021, the City is faced with a new 
set of conditions that will impact how public meetings may be held in Berkeley.  While 
the June 15, 2021 date appears to be certain, there is still a great deal of uncertainty 
about the fate of the Executive Order.  In addition, the City is still awaiting concrete, 
specific guidance from the State with regards to regulations that govern public meetings 
and public health recommendations that will be in place after June 15, 2021. 
 
For background, Executive Order N-29-20 allows legislative bodies to meet in a virtual 
setting and suspends the following Brown Act requirements: 
 
• Printing the location of members of the legislative body on the agenda; 
• Posting the agenda at the location of members of the legislative body that are 

remote; and 
• Making publicly available remote locations from which members of the legislative 

body participate. 

 
 
 
 

307

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/manager


Preliminary Analysis of Return to In-Person Meetings June 1, 2021 
of City Legislative Bodies 

Page 2 

Meeting Options 
There are three groups of City Legislative bodies that are considered in this memo  

 
• City Council;  
• City Council Policy Committees; and  
• Boards and Commissions.   

The three meeting models available are: 
 

• In-person only;  
• Virtual only; or  
• Hybrid (in-person and virtual).   

 
The scenarios below show the options available for each given set of facts. 
 

Summary Recommendations of Meeting Options 
    

  Physical Distancing No Physical Distancing 

    In-Person Hybrid Virtual* In-Person Hybrid Virtual* 

        

City Council  X X X X X X 

        

Policy Committees    X X  X 

        
Board and Commissions   X X  X 

      
* The ability to hold virtual-only meetings is dependent on the status of Executive Order N-29-20 
 
Currently, the Centers for Disease Control recommends physical distancing for 
unvaccinated persons.  While the City and the community have made tremendous 
progress with regards to vaccination, the City would use the guidelines for unvaccinated 
persons when making determinations regarding public meetings. 
 
Meeting Type Considerations 
Our previous experience pre-pandemic and our experience over the past 15 months 
demonstrates that the City can conduct all in-person and all virtual meetings. However, 
the possibility of hybrid meetings presents new questions to consider. The primary 
concern for a return to in-person meetings using a hybrid model is the impact on the 
public experience and the legislative process. 
 

Will the legislative body be able to provide a transparent, coherent, stable, 
informative, and meaningful experience for the both the public in attendance and 
virtually? 
 

308



Preliminary Analysis of Return to In-Person Meetings June 1, 2021 
of City Legislative Bodies 

Page 3 

Will the legislative body be able to conduct the legislative process in an efficient, 
coherent, and meaningful manner with the members split between in-person and 
virtual, and considering the additional delays and logistical challenges of allowing 
for public participation in a hybrid model? 

 
For the City Council, testing has shown that the larger space and technology 
infrastructure at the Boardroom will allow the Council to conduct all three types of 
meetings (in-person, hybrid, virtual). 
 
For Policy Committees and Commissions, only the “all virtual” or “all in-person” 
meetings are recommended. Preliminary testing has shown that the audio/visual 
limitations of the meeting rooms available for these bodies would result in inefficient and 
cumbersome management of the proceedings in a hybrid model. In addition, there are 
considerations to analyze regarding the available bandwidth in city facilities and all 
members having access to adequate devices.  Continuing the all virtual model for as 
long as possible, then switching to an all in-person model when conditions permit 
provides the best access, participation, and legislative experience for the public and the 
legislative body.  
 
Other Considerations 
Some additional factors to consider in the evaluation of returning to in-person or hybrid 
meetings are:  

• How to address vaccination status for in-person attendees. 
• Will symptom checks and/or temperature checks at entry points be required?  
• Who is responsible for providing PPE for attendees? 
• How are protocols for in-person attendees to be enforced? 
• Physical distancing measures for the Mayor and City Councilmembers on the 

dais. 
• Installation of physical barriers and other temporary measures.  
• Will the podium and microphone need to be sanitized after every speaker? 
• High number of touch points in meeting rooms. 
• Will chairs for the public and staff need to be sanitized if there is turnover during 

the meeting? 
• Determining the appropriate capacity for meeting locations. 
• The condition and capacity of meeting room ventilation system and air cycling 

abilities. 
• How to receive and share Supplemental Items, Revisions, Urgent Items, and 

submissions by the public both in-person and virtually.   
• Budget including costs for equipment, physical improvements, A/V, PPE, and 

sanitization. 

 
 
 

309



Preliminary Analysis of Return to In-Person Meetings June 1, 2021 
of City Legislative Bodies 

Page 4 

Conclusion 
As stated above, conditions are changing daily, and there is a high degree of 
uncertainty surrounding the future guidance, regulations, and actions at the state level.   
Planning, testing and analysis are already underway to prepare for an eventual return to 
in-person meetings. Staff will continue to monitor the evolving legislative and public 
health circumstances and advise the committee at future meetings.   
 
Attachment: 
 

1. Executive Order N-29-20 

310



311



312



313



314


	09-13 Agenda - Agenda Committee
	08-30 Minutes - Agenda Committee
	Draft 09-28 Agenda - Council
	2021-09-28 Draft Item 16 Extending the Requirements for Telestaff
	2021-09-28 Draft Item 17 Appointment of Tommy Escarcega
	2021-09-28 Draft Item 21 Predevelopment Allocation ARCH
	2021-09-28 Draft Item 22 Approval of Interim Regulations for PAB
	2021-09-28 Draft Item 23 Referral to Strengthen Public Health
	2021-09-28 Draft Item 24 Amending BMC Section 14.56.070
	2021-09-28 Draft Item 25 Native and Drought Resistant Plants
	2021-09-28 Draft Item 26 Resolution in Support of Afghan
	2021-09-28 Draft Item 27 Adopt a Resolution Renewing
	2021-09-28 Draft Item 28 Amending BMC Section 14.56.040
	2021-09-28 Draft Item 30 Financial First Aid Kit
	Item 05 Upcoming Workshops
	Item 06 Council Referrals
	Item 07 Land Use Calendar
	Item 08 Legistative Body Meetings
	Item 09 Preliminary Analysis of Return



